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. The group’s mission is to retain leadership in cost-effective
and profitable retail operations and to achieve significant

- growth’ through employee contribution, innovative
differé[ltiation, new business development, acquisition and
aggre_ssivé expansion, including expansion across borders.

The company, which commenced trading in 1924, has been
listed on the JSE Limited since 1 January 1941 and is regarded
as one of the foremost independent chain store groups in the
country. The company's success is strongly driven by its
desire to provide the right merchandise to the respective
target markets of all its {rading divisions, and its skifi-in
achigving this objective has resubicd in o suocesshul track
record. The Foschini group believes that {eamwurk coupled
with professionalism in alt aspects of retailing will conlinue
" to be the foundation for the future.

« the maintenance of its intégrity by Eeing hpnest. open and-

ethical in all its dealings;

* 3 commitment to providing “exceeding service” to
customers, and giving them value for money,

* the treatment of people with dignity aﬁd respect, ensuring
a supportive and encouraging envircnment;

« the belief in equal opportunity and development for all, and
fair reward to people according to responsibility, effort and
performance; and

® the commitment'to a seli-critical professionalism, with
. visible and consistent standards and a constant search for
performance improvement.

contents

i Corporate Profile

Financial Highlights and Share Performance
" Corporate Structure

Turnover and Stores by Geographic Regions

Five Yearly Review 1982 — 2008

Group Statistics

Definitions

Directorate

Operating Board and Executive Management

Chairman's Report

Chief Executive Officer's Report

Financial Director’s Report

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND SERVICES

GOVERNANCE PROFILE
Corporate Governance Report
Sustainability Report

Value Added Statement

| GRiIndex

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: GROUP
Directors' Approval and

Company Secretary’s Certificate
Independent Auditor’s Report

Directors’ Report

| Group Balance Sheel

Group Income Staterent

Group Statement of Changes in Equity
Grdup Cash Flow Statement

Group Segmental Analysis

Notes to the Financial Statements

| ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: COMPANY
 Foschini Limited Balance Sheet 164
} Foschini Limited Income Statement 165
Foschini Limited Statement of Changes in Equity 165
Foschini Limited Appendix 1; Subsidiary Companies 166
! Foschini Limited Appendix 2: Related Party information 167

= Shareholdings 168
| Natice of Annual General Meeting 169
: Form of Proxy perforated page
'IAdminisualion and Financial Calendar  inside back cover




corporate profile

The Group

Foschini Limited has the following operating divisions:

Retail: Foschini, branded as Foschini, Donna-claire, Fashionexpress and Luella » Markham « Exact! = The Sports division,
branded as Sportscene, Totalsports and DueSouth » The Jewellery division, branded as American Swiss, Matrix and
Sterns « @home, branded as @home and @homelivingspace » TFG Apparel Supply Company and FG Financial Services.

External Financial Services “RCS Group™: RCS Personal Loans = RCS Cards « RCS Private: Label Cards and RCS Home Loans.

The retail divisions retait clothing, jeweliery, accessaries, cosmetics, sporting and outdocr appare! and equipment and
homeware 10 the broad, middle-income group throughout southern Africa, mainly as & credit retaiter. The ratio of cash
szles to total turnaver approximates 36%.

The external financial services division provides a range of broader financial services 10 customers of the group and

to customers of unrelated retailers.

FOSCHINI

A destination of choice for women
seeking fashionable, current
apparel and footwear, offering
good value, in an environment
that is modern and friendly.

donna-claire

FASHIGON IN SITES 146-2F

Ofiering stylish fashion for larger
sized women.

fashionexpress

A value fashion chain focusing on
the vaiue for money proposition.

Leetle

A range of ladies footwear, hand-
bags and accessories aimed at the
middle to upper middle market.

exact!

Accessible fashion for everybody
offering consistent quality and
reassuring affordability with
focused ranges that are easy to
dress up or down.

STERNS

— THE JEWELLER —

A trusted jewelier offering stylish
jewellery for special occasions,
with an emphasis an genile
sophistication, sincerity, emotional
warmth and romance.

AMERICANSWISS

YOU DESERVE 1T

The teading contempaorary jeweklery
retailer oftering new and exciting
merchandise for the aspirational,
confident individual.

MATRIX

Sunglasses + Cell phones

Strong lifestyle orientation providing
branded accessories aimed at a
generally younger customer.

Markham

Internationally inspired mens-
wear of great quality and value,
suitable for all occasions and daily
experiences.

DUESQUTH

BE AN OUTSIDER

A modern, hi-tech, outdoor lifestyle
and adventure destination offering a
comprehensive and fashionable range
of the latest brands and product
innovation.

sporiscene

Provides the street-wise active youth
in search of a more defined identity, a
unique blend of freesport brands and
urban style in their own environment.

Ttnlonnpre
Y LI HINY RO O

Top of mind sportswear destination
giving the everyday athlete the inspira-
tion to compete and perform by offering
a range of international sports brands.

@home

THE MCMEWARE S5TORYE

Fashionable merchandise covering the
Eat, Sleep, Bath, Cook and Live categories
for the discerning homeowner.

@homelivingspace
Offering design-conscious consumers
a comprehensive range of affordable
contemporary furniture.

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 = 1




financial highlights and share performance

Financial Statistics and Targets

Medium-term
target
Operating margin (%} 24,0
ROE (%) 35,0
Current ratio (times)
Debt equity ratio (%) 40,0
Finance charge cover {times)
Number of stores 1600
Square metres 500 000
Stock turn
— jewellery
- @home
— other
Financial Highlights
% change
Retail turnover (Rm) 6,1
Operating profit before finance charges (Rm} 1.0
Profit before tax (Rm} 0,2
Headline earnings (Rm) 0,8
Profit attributable to equity holders of Foschini Limited (Rm) 0,8
Total shareholders' interest (Rm) 0,6
Earnings per ordinary share™ (cents) 24
Headline earnings per ordinary share* (cents) 24
Tangible net asset value per ordinary share*™ {cents) 41
Dividend per share {cents) — interim 18,0
Dividend per share {cents) — final -
Dividend per share {cents) — tota! 6,7
Market capitalisation (Rm) {44,3)

Gross number of shares in issue {millions)
Net number of shares in issue (millions)
Closing US$ conversion rate

Average US$ conversion rate

* based on the weighted average number of shares in issue
** based on the net actual number of shares in issue

¢ » Foschini Group Annual Report 2008

2008

248
29,6

23

36,2
15,9
1393
403 601

2,21
2.3
321

7 668,7
1905,5
17863
1128,4
11284
38452
547,0
547,0
18627
118,0
1700
288,0
92616
2405
204,6
8,14
7,15

2007

26,1
325

3.

18,8
18,0
1332
380 615

218
2,43
3,20

2007

72300
1887,0
17823
1119,2
11192
38236
5342
534,2
17894
100,0
170,0
270,0
16 618,4
240,5
2120
7,30
7,06




Retail Turnover

@ Foschini

@ Markham @ Exact!
@ @home

4"

@ Sports division

@ Jewellery division

\

08

.'07
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Share Performance

2008

Market price per share (cents)

— at year-end

— highast

— lowest

— average

Number of shares in issug (millions)

Nurmber of beneficial shareholdings
Price/aarnings ratio at year-end

Dividend yield

Numbgr of shares traded during the year (miflions)
Volume traded/number af shares in issue {%)
Market capitalisation (R millions)

2008 2007
% change Rm
Foschini division 55 29118
Markham 46 11383
Exact! 38 6826
Sports division 84 10624
Jewellery division 6,7 1022.5
@home 11,1 4124
6,1 7230,0
2007 2006 2005 2004
6910 5826 3535 1995
7101 5995 4100 2140
4040 5825 1775 1070
5427 5880 2 650 1724
240,5 240,5 2405 240,5
5349 5303 5349 3960
12,94 10,91 9,88 8,41
3,5 3,1 35 3,2
2733 156,8 178,0 148,2
1136 65,2 74,0 62,0
16 618,4 140114 B 549,7 47979
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corporate
structure;

FOSCHINI

FOSCHINI LIMITED

DIRECTORATE
Feschini Limited

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

OPERATING BOARD
Foschini Group of Companies

“w__1
operations 3

services

Group Finance and Administration
Group Audit Services
Foschinidata
Group Logistics
Human Resources
Group Services
Group Property

= All divisions are whelly owned, with the exception
of the external financial services division, in which -
The Standard Bank of Scuth Africa Limited (SBSA)
has a minority share. )




turnover and stores
bu geographic regions

Foschini Limited 2008 2007
Number Turnover Number Turnover
of stores Rm of stores Rm

Botswana 33,6

Eastern Cape 561.9

Free State 4556

Gauteng 2403,4
KwaZulu-Natal 945,2
Limpopo 89 420,5
Mpumalanga 92 410,4
Namibia 43 196,2
North West 75 215,9
Northern Cape 48 354,8
Swaziland 4 10,3
Waestern Cape 310 1660,9

1393 l 7 668,7

O 0 0 0 0
O 0 Cc 0o 00
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00 00 000 00
O 00 0 0O 00 00 o0
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® & 0 0 8 & 0 00 0 0 0% " " 0D
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five yearly review 1982 — 2008

Millions of Rands

0
1687 1993 1998 2003 2008 1982 1987 1993 1998 2003

Equity attributable to equity holders of Foschini Limited Number of stores

1200, Milliens of Rands

; 0
1987 1993 1998 2003 2008 1982 1987 1993 1988 2003

Attributable eamnings Earnings per share*

* Comparative ligures have been restated in terms of the increased nurnber of shares
In issue resutting from sub-divisions and capitafisation issues. Where applicable,

earnings are shown before extraordinary/exceptional items.

Milliens of Rands . . .
From 2000, eamings are based on the weighted average number of shares in issue,

1982 987 1993 1998 2003

Retail turnover

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 7




Qroup statistics

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Years ended 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Profitability

Retail turnover (Rm) 72300 64321 52793 44100 38806 32839 29805 26465 25143
Operating profit before finance charges (Rm) 18870 15673 12048 8146 5820 34856 2027 3337 338
Profit aitributable to equity folders of

Foschini Limited Rm} 11192 9869 7670 5169 3595 1999 1160 2333 2112
Headline earnings (Rm) 11192 9859 767,0 523.4 3648 2030 119,11 2333 2112
Bafance sheet

Non-current assets (Rm) 21604 15365 14979 10966 7547 9655 11077 8056 8008
Current assets (Rm) 46233 43118 34221 27941 26306 21206 17813 17972 15176
Tolal assets (Rm) 67837 5B483 49200 38907 33653 30861 28890 26028 23184
Tota) shareholders’ interest {Rm) 38236 32679 24968 22914 20770 1830t 17751 17557 15443
Minority interest (Rm) 181,3 88,9 16,0 10,1 5,1 86 - - -
Non-current liabilities (Rm) 12824 10642 10386 5545 5147 6252 5993 3762 3247
Current liabilities (Rm) 14964 14273 13886 10347 7885 6222 5146 4709 4494
Total equity and liabilities (Rm) 67837 58483 49200 38907 33853 30661 28890 26028 23184
Cash flow statement

Cash flows from operating activities (Rm) 99,3 (97.3) 867 2899 2883 1214 66,1 159,0 2719
Cash flows from investing activities (Rm) 2.7 51,5 (1657 (1873 (1551) (i666 (370, 43,6 453
Cash flows from finanging activities {Rm) 20,0 72,1 860 (1006 (1328 46,7 3522 (83.8) (236.4)
Net {tecrease) increase in cash (Rm) 6.6 26,3 7.0 2.0 04 1,5 48,1 118,8 @8
Cash at the heginning of the year (Rm) # 62,5 36,2 29,2 272 268 1753 127,2 8.4 18,2
Cash at the end of the year (Rm) # 69,1 62,5 36,2 28,2 272 1768 1753 1272 84
# The figures from 189% to 2002 comprise cash and cash equivalents, whereas those from 2003 onwards comprise cash only.

Performance measures/ratios

Turnover growth {%) 12,4 218 187 136 18,0 10,4 12,6 5,3 48
Cperating margin (%) 26,1 243 228 185 15,0 106 6.8 12,6 134
Debt equity ratio (%) 18.8 16,2 12,7 4,0 8.6 171 15,1 30 -
Total liabilities to shareholders' interest (times) 073 0,76 0,96 0,69 0,63 0,68 0.63 0,48 0,50
Current ratio (times) 3.1 30 25 27 33 34 35 38 34
Headline eamings per ordinary share (HEPS) (cents)" 534,2 4630 306 2371 162,2 879 50,1 100,1 91,2
Change in HEPS (%) 15,4 28,8 51,7 46,2 84,5 75,4 (50,0} 98 10,2
Dividends declared per ordinary share {DPS) (cents) 270.0 220,0 164,0 94,0 56,0 3.0 18,0 35,0 171

Tangible net asset value per ordinary share {cents) 17894 15234 11650 10391 9178 B03,4 731,6 7528 6670
Market capitalisation (Rm) LN 166164 140114 85497 47979 25733 16810 11905 31961 29174

Notes

When an accounting palicy has been changed, comparative figures have been restated in accordance with the new policy.

* Up to 1999, comparative figures were restated in terms of the increased number of shares in issue resuliing from sub-Civisions and capitalisation issues.
From 2000, this figure has been calculated using the weighted average number of shares in issue, without restatemant of prior vear figures.

8 » Foschini Group Annuat Report 2008




Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

2006 2005 2004

2003

2002 2001 2000 1999

Years ended 2008 2007
Statistics

Number of ordinary shares in issug (millions) 240,5 2405
Number of ordinary shares on which headline

eamings per share is caloulated (millions) 206,3 AR
Net number of ordinary shares on which net asset

value per share is calculated {millions} 2046 2120
Number of stores 1393 1332
Floor area {gross square metras) 403 601 REHIQE]

2405 2406 2405
31 2133 2207
226 2119 2184

1273 1233 1197
354747 334662 323459

240,5
2249
2236

1188
37 381

2405 2405 230 235
2310 278 2332 235
2263 2405 2332 235

1185 1207 1088 1069
310166 308188 272152 260 371
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definitions

Credit transactions — RCS Group
Comprises all loan advances and card purchases for the year under review

Credit transactions ~ retail
VAT inclusive credit retail turnover and income from sundry credit services

Current ratio
Current assets divided by current liabilities

Debt equity ratio
Interest-bearing debt reduced by preference share investment and cash,
expressed as a percentage of capital and reserves

Doubtful debt provision as a % of debtors’ book
Provision for doubtful debis expressed as a parcentage of gross receivables

Gross square metres
Comprises the total leased store area including stockrooms

Headline earnings
Net income attributable to ordinary shareholders adjusted for the effect, after
tax, of exceptional items

Headline earnings per ordinary share
Headline earnings divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue
for the year

LSM

Refers to the SAARF Universal Living Standards Measure which is a unique
means of segmenting the South African market by dividing the population inte
10 LSM groups, 1 {fowest to 10 (highest).

Refer table betow

Market capitalisation
The market price per share at the year-end multiplied by the number of
ordinary shares in issue at the year-end

Net bad debt and provision movement
VAT-exclusive bad debts Including provision movement, net of recoveries

Net bad debt write-off — retail
VAT-inclusive bad debts, net of recoveries and excluding movement in
provision

Net bad debt write-off — RGS Group
VAT-exclusive bad dabts, net of recoveries and excluding movement in
provision

Net bad debt write-off as a % of credit transactions
Net bad debt write-off expressed a8 a percentage of credit transactions

Net bad debt write-off as a % of debtors’ book
Net bad deft write-off expressed as a percentage of gross receivables

Same store
Stores which have traded for the full current and previcus financial years out
of the same trading area

Tangible net asset value per ordinary share
Total net asset value, after minorities, excluding goadwili and intangible
assets, divided by the net number of ordinary shares in issue at the year-end

Operating margin
Operating profit before finance charges expressed as a percentage of retail
turnover

Average

monthly

hausehold

income

Poputation % Population % Population % Population % Population R

SAARF Living Standards Measure (LSM)* 2007 2003 2005 2006 2007 2007
LSM 1 1287 000 95 7.6 6,1 41 1058
LSM 2 3034 000 13,1 12,2 12,2 8.8 1 261
LSM 3 3366 000 144 13,0 12,6 108 1613
LSM 4 4 290 000 14,0 14,9 14,9 13,8 2022
LSM 5 4516000 12,8 13,5 13,5 14,5 2903
LSM & 5378000 13,2 14,5 14,4 17,3 4723
LSM7 2 865000 6.5 7 78 93 7579
LSM8 2096 000 58 5,2 57 6.7 10015
LSMQ 2353000 5% 6,4 6,7 76 13507
LSM 10 1898 000 5.1 55 6.0 6.1 20278

* Source: SAARF AMPS 2005 - 2007

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 « 11
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Overview

The retail sector in South Africa has experienced substantial growth in the
last six years, with consumer spending being extremely strong. This began
to change for our group in June 2007 as the retail cycle started to move
downwards.

The advance in profit achieved by our group this year was maore modest
than in the previous six years, with headline earnings per share increasing
by 2,4% and diluted headline earnings per share increasing by 4,5%. This
reflects the more difficult trading environment which prevailed, particularly
in the credit non-durables sector.

Nevertheless, having regard to our very strong balance sheet and the
satisfactory level of ongoing cash flow, we have maintained our final
dividend at 170,0 cents per share. This means that the total dividend for
the year has been increased by 6,7% to 288,0 cents per sharg.

Economy and operating environment

A combination of a possible recession in the USA, global equity market
volatility, high interest rates, implementation of the National Credit Act, fuel
price increases and food inflation have collectively created a mood of
negativity among South African consumers as they enter a lean year after
a period of relatively plenty. This is not the first time that there has been a
bleak outlook in the retail industry which happens each time our economy
adjusts from an overheated position back to more reasonable levels. It has
happened before and undoubtedly will happen again. | am confident that
in the medium term, our economy has the strength and resilience to
recover and continue to grow. Internally, we have taken strong measures
to ensure that our stakeholders hawve good reason to retain their
confidence in the group.

The prime interest rate has increased to 15,0%. There is reason 1o hope that
it will start declining from the middle of next year. This should once again
allow consumer sentiment to become positive and spending to resume at a
greater rate than currently.

There is, however, risk that CPIX infiation will remain outside the Reserve
Bank's inflation target range in the forthcoming year, and this coulg delay
the inevitable reduction in interest rates.

16 » Foschini Group Annual Report 2008
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We are concerned that if the Reserve Bank only uses interest rates as its
tool to achieve its infation target, the inevitable increase in interest rates
could have the effect of seriousty harming our economy.

Even though household debt as a percentage of total disposable income
has risen to a new record high of 77%, the ratio of household debt-
servicing costs to disposable income remains manageable at around
9,5%, which compares favourably to historical ratios.

Infrastructural development spending will gather pace this year, but short-
term investment spending in the private sector may be placed on hold until
confidence in the outlook for household demand and for lowered interest
rates is restored.

Our next financial year is likely to be one of considerable polisical fluidity.
The African National Congress’ conference in December 2007 settied
many issues, but ieft others open, with much remaining unclear.

Staff and directors

Qur group's greatest asset continues to be its excellent management. To
ensure that this situation continues in the years ahead, we pay
considerable attention to retention and succession planning in all facets of
our business.

Doug Murray was appointed as Group CEO on 1 January 2008. Doug has
been with our group for 22 years, the past eight as Retail Director, with all
divisions except the Foschini division reporting directly to him. Doug is an
outstanding retailer who has a wide knowledge of all aspects of the group
and thus he has picked up the reins quickly and deftly and t am confident
that he will steer the group to new heighis in the future.

Leslie Bergman resigned as a director of Foschini Limited on 14 April 2008.
Leslie had been a director since 2002 and we thank him for the role he
played during this time.

Community responsibility

We remain committed to achieving a batance between economic
performance and the part we can and must play for our society and the
community in which we operate. We are mindful of the critical role that
business has to play in the upliftment of the community and for this reason
we continue to invest in the development of society. We make charitable
donations to more than 100 national and local non-governmental
organisations, with our primary focus areas being education; skills
development; arts, culture and the environment; special projects and




combating HIV/AIDS, with specific emphasis on women and children.
Full details of our CSI endeavours are covered in the sustainability report
in this document.

Transformation

Our transformation commitiee, with myself as ¢chairman, has the task of
driving the group’s broad-hased black ecenomic empowerment (BBBEE)
strategy into the future. Our various internal transformation sub-
committees tackle, on a daily basis, the various issues underlying BBBEE
in order to ensure that our group plays its rightful role in the acvancement
of historically disadvantaged communities. In the Financial Mail's Top
Empowerment Companies Report of 2008, our group has once again
fared well.

Governance

The directors consider responsible corporate governance to be integral to
the success of the group and our commitment to it is cutlined in our
corporate governance report, which appears elsewhere in this document.

Assessment starts at the top with a comprehensive annual peer review
of the performance of all board directors. The board's various sub-
committees, which cover the fields of audit, remuneration, risk,
nominations and transformation, keep ongoing observation of all
significant factors within their purview. The group has formulated and
abides by & code of ethics which includes a set of ¢lear goals to achieve
in its relationships with customers, suppliers, staff, the general public and
the communities among which we operate. The increasingly complex field
of compliance with the laws and regulations governing our businesses is
another among the many issues on the governance agenda.

Looking ahead

Congumers are facing testing times as the economy slows down and
inflation rises. These circumstances will have an inevitable impact on the
group, but nevertheless afl our divisions remain, in all respects, in good
shape. Overall, in attempting to maintain or improve our performance, the
group will be refiant on achieving good turnover levels while tightly
containing costs.

The strategies which the group has devised and which it is now
implementing to retain and grow its market position and its profitability are
multi-faceted, but the following deserve special mention:

* we have been cautious in the past in the opening of new stores, and

whilst this remains our approach, there are certain of our formats §

which are ready for further roll-out and we anticipate opening in
excess of 100 new stores in the year ahead;

* our supply chain initiative, designed to improve lead times and cut
distribution costs, has reached the point where implementation is
already occurring and benefits car be expected to be derived
progressively as it evolves; and

+ credit sales, as well as interest revenue are fikely to be boosted by
providing customers with a 12-month account as an alternative to the
current B-manth option.

tn addition, the performance of our retail debtors' book appears to be far
better than the norm in the retail industry, demonstrating the value of our
conservative credit extension policies of the past.

The 2008 financial year will undoubtedly be a tough year, but at the same
time we are well placed to maximise the benefits of any upturn in the
economy, therefore making our group even stronger for the future.

Thanks
On behalf of my hoard | wish to extend appreciation and thanks to:

+ all employees for their continued excellent performance during the year;
¢ our customers for their continued and growing support;
» our shareholders for their continued confidence in the group;

» our suppliers, advisers and business associates for their co-operation
and contribution to the cantinued growth of the business; and

* my fellow directors for their ever ready support, guidance and
valuable input.

Eliot Osrin
Chairman

11 June 2008
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Group overview

In last year's annual report we indicated that the year to 31 March 2008
would be one of the most difficult that the group would experience for
many years.

This year has been a tale of two halves. While trading conditions in the first
hall were challenging, the group nevertheless achieved acceptable
performance in this period, with retail turnover increasing by 8,8% and
headline earnings per share increasing by 12,2%. The tempo of business
started to slow considerably towards the end of June and the second half
of the year proved to be difficult, with turnover growth of 3,7% and a
reduction in headline eamings per share of 4,0%. For the year as a whole
turnover was up 6,1% aver the previous year whife headline earnings per
share increased by 2,4%. Diluted headline earnings per share werg up
4,5%.

Prior to the introduction of the National Credit Act (NCA) our group adopted
a conservative approach to the opening of new pre-approved accounts,
thus opening far fewer accounts than our major competitors and other
credit providers. Whilst this negatively affected the level of our retail
turnover, it seems that it was the correct strategy for current economic
conditions, as it has resulted in our group entering these mare challenging
times with a healthy retail debtors’ book, in contrast to what appears to be
happening in the credit industry.

The businesses in which we trade are cyclical in nature and after our
previous six years of above-average campound growth in earnings it was
inevitable that a slowdown would occur. It is still not known how long and
how severe the current downturn is likely to be. However, the group is
positioned as favourably as possible to weather any downturn and emerge
stronger than ever to continue our above-average growth when the
economy turns. All our divisions are in good shaps, with strategies in place
to contend with difficult times, with no areas requiring additional corrective
action or restructuring. The retail debtors' book is moreover performing
well in the current climate, in contrast to what appears to be taking place
in the wider economy. The emphasis next year will be on cost containment
to levels appropriate to expected trading activity, whilst continuing with
strategic initiatives to ensure above-average growth in the future.
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Trading environment

Having approached this year with a good deal of

the view that the interest rate cycle was at or very
that interest rates might be expected to start declinirg towards the end of
the 2008 financial year. Inflation has howeverf been higher than
anticipated, with the result that the Reserve Bank d@entinued to increase
interest rates. The prime overdraft rate is now 15,0% and the outlook for
interest rates is still unclear. There is potential far further increases,
particularly as the inflation numbers have not stabilsed, and as matters
now stand we do not see interest rates starting ® decline before the
middle of 2008.

The consumer environment is likely to deteriorate Btill further before it
starts to improve and we are under no ilusions abopt irading conditions,
which we expect to be challenging in the next finanwgal year.

Areas of particular concern to the group in the nexf year are the rate of
exchange of the South African currency and expectedl inflation in the price
of merchandise coming from China, both of which fpave the potential to
cause greater inflation in our product supply line nTn we have seen for
many years.

(n addition. the electrical power outages currentl being experienced
throughout the country may continue. Whilst qur head office and
distribution centres are not affected, as they are covgred by backup power
generators, our stores in shopping centres are not ghle to trade as there
is insufficient lighting in these centres. Discussiong are presently under
way with our major landlords in order to provide gdequate lighting and
some sort of airflow into shopping centres when the power is down, and
it remains to be seen whether these discussions wi§ be successful.
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Financial performance

Whilst the group’s detaited financial performance for the year is described
in the Financial Director's report, | would like to draw atiention to the
following:

* operating rmargin was 24,8%, close to our record of 26,1%;

= net profit before tax in excess of R1,7 billion;

» the final dividend being maintained at 170,0 cents per share;

* good performance from our retail debiors’ boak; and

» the group's return on equity of 29,6%.

Trading performance

All our divisions performed satisfactority in the first half of the year, but
since mid-June trading conditions have become difficult, Product inflation
averaged approximately 4% for the year. Safes and sales growth in the
various divisions were as follows:

Retail

Number turnover %

of stores Rm Change
@home 458,0 11,1
Exact! 7072 3.6
Foschini division 3070,5 55
Jewellary division 1090,7 6,7
Markham 11909 6,6*
Sports division 11514 8.4
Total 7 668,7 6,1

* Growth excludes the discontinued RJL brand.

Total same store turnover for the year grew by 2,2%, with apparel growing
2,2%, cosmetics 6,6% and jewellery 3,5%. Homeware declined by 0,3%
and cellphones by 0,7%.

Cash sales as a percentage of fotal sales increased from 33,3% to
36,4%.

K

—
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The @home division continued to expand, increasing its number of stores
to 61 during the year and growing its tumover by 11,1% to R458,0 million.
Trading resuits were encouraging at the three @homelivingspace stores
and the number of these stores will be expanded over the next two years
to ten. in an extremely competitive sector this division’s same store results
showed a decline of 0,3%.

Exact!, which has a lower LSM customer base than most of the group’s |

trading divisions, raded marginally worse than expectation, yielding
growth in turnover of 3,6% and same store growth of 1,7%. Customers
with limited disposable income bought tess than had been expected in the
summer season and it was necessary to take more markdowns than
pianned.

Of the division's total tumover, 44% is generated in shopping malls as
opposed to high streets and rural areas and this percentage will continue
to increase with planned store expansion.

The Foschini division achieved turnover growth of 55% and
unsatisfactory same store growth of 1,2%. Particular emphasis is being
placed on the Foschini stores business and the results of this focus should
become evident in the forthcoming summer season. The Donna-claire and
Fashionexpress brands continued to trade satisfactorily and are now well
gstablished in the marketplace. Both of these brands are under-
represented and will be actively expanded in the next year.

The jewellery division, comprising American Swiss Jewellers, Sterns and
Matrix, performed better than expected with turnover growth of 6,7% and
same store growth of 3,3%. The division remains the dominant player in
the mass middfe market jewellery sector. it has been severely impacted by
the increase in the gold price and by movements in the rand/dollar rate of
exchange, the combined effect of which has been an increase of more
than 30% in the input gold price during the year. This required proactive
planning to ensure that the product mix was adjusted to soften the impact
on price points.

The Markham division, which had a disappointing first half, traded more
successfully in the second half and achieved tumover growth of 6,6% for
the full year. Same store growth was 3,4%. The repositioning exercise
undertaken in the past few years towards a younger and more fashionable
customer is now beginning to bear fruit and its new “Markham Relay”
casual range format has been well received in the marketplace.

The sports division, trading as Totalsports, Sportscene and DueSouth,
traded satisfactorily and achieved turnover growth of 8,4% and same
store growth of 3,7%. Ongoing focus remains on gaining maximum
benefit from the World Cup 2010, where the division is the partner of
choice for some of the major brands.
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chief executive officer’s report continued

FG Financial Services, the retail debtors’ book, which amounts to
R2,4 billion, grew by 8,0% during the year. Because of the group's
conservative approach to new account openings before the
implementation of the NCA, the performance of the debtors’ book
continues to be satisfactory. Net bad debt as a percentage of credit
transactions increased marginally frem 3,0% to 3,5% and net bad debt as
a percentage of the closing debtors’ book increased from 7,4% to 8,3%.
During the next financial year, in line with current market practice, we will
provide customers with a 12-month account as an alternative fo the
current 6-month option. This should positively impact our interest revenue
as well as retail tumover,

RCS Group

The RCS Group provides a range of broader financial services 1o
customers of the group and also to customers of unrelated retailers. This
group consists of two separate business units, namely Transactional
Finance and Fixed Term Finance. At present the Transactional Finange
business comprises the RCS general-purpose card and other private label
card programmes, The Fixed Term Finance business comprises RCS
Personal Loans and RCS Home Loans. The division experienced a
challenging year having been affected by the introduction of the NCA,
which resulted in a reduction in the number of new loans advanced and
accordingly a reduction in the loan receivables book. Net bad debt and
provisions increased significantly in line with current market trends. Profit
before tax for the year reduced from R322,7 million to R269,6 million.
Loan advances to customers following the year-end will remain tightly
controlted, though an in¢rease in advances and profitability in this division
is anticipated. RCS is in the process of acquiring the consumer credit
division of Massdiscounters, which is awalting final Competition
Commission approval. The group's shareholding in the division has been
55% from 1 April 2007, with the batance being held by The Standard Bank
of South Africa Limited.

Strategy

The strategic focus across our divisions is to improve our customers’
experience through targeted expansion of our store base and by
constantly developing our merchandise offering to meet our customers’
needs.

A key etement of the group's strategy is to optimise the efficiency of
its supply chain, ensuring that lead times in ordering, acquiring and
distributing stock are reduced to the minimum. In consultation with an
external consultant the group set up its supply chain project during the
year to deal with supplier retationships, replenishment and merchandisa

pipelines. This will rgsult in improved lead times and increased siock
turns, ensuring our ability to be first to market with key products, whilst at
the same time reducing overheads. The benefits of this initiative will take
time to make their impact, but a good start has been made.

Strategies of the individual divisions are referred to in the divisional review
section of this report.

Prospects

In the last number of years we have heen cautious in the opening of new
stares. Whilst this remains our approach, there are ¢ertain of our formats
which are ready for further roll-out and accordingly we anticipate opening
in excess of 100 new stores in the year ahead.

Retail turngver for the first ten weeks of the new financial year remains
difficult. Budgeted costs for the new year have been curtailed to levels
appropriate to the expected turngver. Notwithstanding the downtum in
the economy, all the trading divisions are in good shape which places
the group in good stead to weather the current consumer downtum,
although we are mindful of the uncertain and challenging macroeconomic
environment,

Thanks

Having been appointed as CEQ on 1 January 2008, | was aware that | was
taking over the position in difficult times. | have had tremendous support
from my colleagues, for which | thank them. ) look forward to working with
them to steer the group to new heights and achieving much with them in
future years.

Thanks are extended to the group’s 15 000 staff members for their
contributions to its development and success. | extend my sincere
appreciation to each and every one of them.

Thanks are alsg due to all the members of the board for their wisdom,
guidance and direction.

To our shareholders, | extend thanks for their support of the group. | trust
that their loyalty will continue to be rewarded.

Finally, | would like to express the group’s appreciation to our suppliers,
advisers, corporate stakeholders and customers for their contributions to
the group’s activities and its successes.

Doug Murray
CEQ

11 June 2008
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Overview

This year was a difficutt year for our group. The first half of the o

Key performance indicators
Turnover {Rm) 7 668,7 7230,0
Turnover growth 6,1% 14,6%
Gross margin 41,6% 42 0%
particularly from the third week of June after the introduction Operating margin 24,8% 26,1%

of the NCA. This, together with above-average food inflation, Profit hefore tax (Rm} 1786,3 17823

|

| year, whilst challenging, produced acceptable performance with

I retail turnover growth of 8,8% and headling earnings per share
increasing by 12,2%. The second half became extremely difficult,

| substantial petrol price hikes and interest rates which have now Prafit after tax (Rm) 1 206,1 1192,0

| increased nine times since June 2006, have increased the cost of (Hl_fssg)”f earn}mgs per share 5470 s34
| - . . . cents , ,

| living of the average South African consumer, which has taken its HEPS growth 2.4% 15,4%

| toll on the semi-durable retail sector. Second-half tumover grew by Diluted headline earnings per

3,7% with a reduction in headline eamings for the half of 4,0%. share (HEPS) (cents) 538,0 514,8

. | | ) . Diluted HEPS growth 4,5% 14,5%

or the year as a whole retail turnover increased by 6,1% to Dividend per ordinary share (cents) 288,0 270,0

R7,7 billion. Headiine earnings per share increased by 2,4% to Dividend per ordinary share growth 6,7% 22 7%

547,0 cents, whilst diluted headline earnings per share Return on average equity 29,6% 32,5%

increased by 4,5% to 538,0 cents. The compounded annual Gearing 36.2% 18,8%

Net asset value per sharg (cents) 1862,7 17894

growth in headline earnings per share over tha past seven years

s 40.7°% Net asset valug per share growth 41% 17,5%

15 40,7%. Stock turn (tmes)

The key finarcial indicators for the year are as follows and are — Jewellery 2,21 2,18
- @home 2,31 2,43

i i i hare in thi X
discussed in more detail elsewhare in this report _ other 321 3.20

Accounting policies and standards

The annual financial statements have been preparedlin accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS} agd comply with the
requirements of the South African Companies Ret. The principal
accounting policies are consistent with those applied | the previous year,
except for the increased disclosure requirements of IFRS 7: Financial
Instruments.

The group reclassified certain balance sheet items B order to achieve
improved disclosure.

Further information regarding restatements can be foﬂnd in note 36.
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Income statement
Retail turnover

Prior to the introduction of the NCA our group adopted a
conservative approach to the opening of pre-approved accounts,
having opened far fewer new accounts than other credit
providers in the country. This negatively affected the leve! of our
retail turnover far the year, although it has resulted in our group

Retail turnaver of R7,7 billion ingreased by 6,1% on the previous year.
Same store turnover for the year grew by 2,2%. As is usual in more
difficult times our cash turnover growth of 16,1% outpaced credit tumaover
growth of only 1,1%.

Retail turnover by 2008 2007 % entering these more difficult times with a healthy retail debtors’
merchandise category Rm Rm  growth book in contrast to what appears to be happening in the wider
Clothing 47274 55 ecanomy. The percentage of account holders at the year-end who
Jewellery 9441 7.0 were able to purchase was 82,0%, amost identical to the 82,1%
Cellphonas 706,8 21 in the previous year.

Cosmetics ) 43,7 121 Trading area in the first six months of the year grew by 3,2% and
Homeware and furniture 4160 105 for the vear reached a total of 6,0% growth.

Total 7230,0 6,1

During the year, cash sales as a percentage af total sales once

The poorest performing merchandise category was cellphones with again increased o 36,4% from 33,3%.
turnover growth of 2,1% after its frenetic growth in the past few years.
There has been a lack of new generation phones this year which we feel
has reduced the churn factor.

Our gross margin decreased by 0,4% from 42,0% to 41,6%.
Our budgeted input margins remained constant and although
we had budgeted stock levels conservatively for Christmas,

Surprising on the upside was the level of jewallery turnover as historicaily, Christmas trading was softer than expected resulting in
when the econonmy gets tough, luxury goods tend to suffer more than marginally higher markdowns, Markdowns as a percentage of
other products. turnover increased from 12,5% last year to 13,9% this year,

Homeware and furniture, as well as cosmetics, performed reasonably well
with double digit turnover growth, whilst clothing turncver grew by 5,5%.

Gross margin trend analysis

Overall product inflation for the year was approximately 4%.

% Same
Retail turnover 2008 % store  Number % Space
by division Rm  Growth growth of stores  growth
@home 1.1 {0,3) 61 8.1
Exact! 36 17 182 28

2.5 1.2 400 63
6.7 3.3 328 2,2

Foschini division
Jeweflery division

Markham 6,6" 3.4 201 53
Sports division 84 37 221 10,2
Totat 6,1 2,2 1393 6,0
* Growth excludes the discontinued RJL brand. 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
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Financial director's report continued

Interest received

Interest received increased by 20,4% to R1 056,4 million from
R877,4 million primarily due to the growth in all the debtors' books, with
the exception of the loans book which declined, combined with higher
interest yields on all debtors' books,

Expenses
Expenses before bad debts were well controlled at 12,8%.

Depreciation and amortisation grew by 17,6% reflecting the costs
associated with new stores as well as enhanced IT systems.

Employment costs of R1 120,0 million are our group’s biggest operating
cost and increased by 16,1% over the previous year, The increase in these
costs is due to normal staff salary increases which this year averaged
6,5%, as well as the appointment of new staff to service new store
openings. Included in these costs are restraint payments which are paid
to ensure the retention of key staff. Restraint payments amcunted to
R35,4 million and we now have in excess of 60 of our key executives
covered by four-year restraints. There shoutd be minimal restraint payments
paid in the next four years. This year, no incentive bonuses were paid to
staff as performance targets were not met. The IFRS 2 share option charge
thig year amounted to R30,7 mitlion, whilst an amount of R19,2 million was
recognised as an expense last year.

Store occupancy costs, the group's second largest operating cost,
increased by 12,1% to R583,5 million, and as a percentage of sales
increased to 7,6% from 7,2% last year. The increase in this cost is due
mainly to the opening of new stores. During the year 76 new stores were
opened whilst 15 stores were closed. In addition 12 stores were enlarged
whilst 14 were relocated. This year an amount R7,7 million was charged
to store occupancy costs, exactly the same amount as in the prior year in
order to comply with 1AS 17: Leases.

Net bad debt and movement in provisions in our retail debtors’ book
increased by 15,7% to R217,2 million, reflecting the healthy state of thig
book. In contrast the net bad debt and movement in provisions in the
RCS Group, which was more severely impacted by the NCA grew by
91,6% to R253,7 million. More detail on the group's bad debt and
provisions is dealt with in the Financial Services review elsewhere in this
report.

Interest paid increased to R120,1 million from R104,7 million, of which
Ra7,7 miition relates directly to the funding of the RCS Group. Included in
this amount is a reversal of an interest provision of R35,6 million which is

no longer required. This R35,6 million is a non-recurring income item
which in the current year is balanced by the non-recurring restraint
payments of R35,4 millien. The increase in interest paid is due to the
increase in interest rates, as well as the increased capital requirements of
our group relating to new stores and receivables.

Income from associate

During the year our RCS subsidiary acquired a net 60% share in Effective
Intelligence, a data intelligence company and the income from associate
reflects our share of the profit of that company for the year.

Profit before tax

Profit before tax marginally increased from the prior year to
R1 786,3 million. The group experienced a sharp downtum in turnover in
the Jast quarter of the financial year and although cost cutting measures
were immediately introduced, they had little effect on this year, the full
impact of which will be evident next year. This resulted in the group’s
aperating margin being reduced to 24,8% from 26,1%, still however
above our medium-term target of 24%.

Taxation

The group’s effective tax rate reduced from 33,1% to 32,5%. Further
details are containad in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Earnings

Headline earnings increased by 0,8% from R1 1192 million fo
R1 128,4 million, whilst headline earnings per ordinary share increased
from 534,2 cents per share to 547,0 cents per share, an increase of
2,4%. Headline earnings per share has been calculated on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue of 206,3 million, down from
209,5 million in the prior year as a resuit of continued share buy-backs.

Diluted headiing earnings per share increased from 514,8 cents to
538,0 cents, an increase of 4,5%.

The group’s return on equity (RCE) of 29,6% remains at a satisfactory
level, but is down on last year's ROE of 32,5%. Our medium-term target
remaing at 35%.

Dividends

Having regard to our strong halance sheet and cash flow, we have
maintained our final dividend at 170,0 cents per share and together with
the interim dividend of 118,0 cents per share, the total dividend for the
year of 288,0 cents per share is 6,7% higher than the previous year.
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Financial director's report continued

Balance sheet

The tangible net asset value per share grew by 4,1% 0 1 862,7 cents per
share (2007: 1 789,4 cents). Total assets now amount to R7 074,4 million
and grew by 4,3%.

Assets
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment increased by 8,4% to R847.,4 million from
last year's R782,1 million primarily dug to;

* the opening of new stores, store enlargements and refurbishments in
line with our strategy te increase our total trading area; and

= the introduction of new IT systems.
Trade receivables - retail

The group’s net retail trade receivables increased by 80% to
R2 414,9 million on ¢redit turngver growth of 1,1%. As mentioned
elsewhere in this report, prior to the introduction of the NCA our group
adopted a conservative approach to the opening of new pre-approved
accounts. Whilst this negatively affected the fevel of our retail turnover, it
has resulted in gur group entering the next year with a healthy retail
debtors’ book, Net bad debt as a percentage of credit transactions
increased from 3,0% to 3,5%, which is a good performance in the
current economic climate. The key debtors' statistics are detailed in the
FG Financial Services section of this report.

There has been speculation regarding credit retailers divorcing their
financial services from their retail operations. In our case, our retail
financial services are an integral part of our business and we have ne
intention of divorcing them from our retail business.

Inventory

Total inventory on hand decreased by 0,2% to R1 280,0 million from
R1 2929 million. Inventory of merchandise for resale increased by 2,7%
to R1 227.5 million in ling with cur stringent control on stock levels. The
group moves into the next finangial year with a clean stock position. Stock
turns in our business need to be improved and are being addressed
through our supply chain initiative. Our stock turn in respect of jewellery
merchandise at 2,21 is satisfactory in terms of world benchmarks, whilst
the group's stock turns on other merchandise categories fall well below
world standards. Adequate provision has been made for markdowns,
shrinkage and inventory obsolescence.
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RCS Group

This division provides a range of broader financial §services to both
customers of the group, as well as to customers of regailers outside the
group. This division experienced & chalienging year, hagng been affected
by the introdugiion of the NCA, which resulted in a reducgion in the number
of new loans advanced and accordingly a reduction in th foans receivable
book to B716,2 million from R866,5 million.

lts privaie label card receivables however increasqd by 29.2% to
R1 068,3 million from R826,7 million. The group’s norgretail receivables
now total R1 784,5 million, an increase of 5,4% over Igst year.

Profit before tax reduced from R322,7 million to R26%6 million for the
year, with net bad debt costs and provisions increasing Jgnificantly in line
with current market trends. The key debtors’ statistics §re detailed in the
RCS Group section of this report.

This division currently represents 15,1% of our group’@profit before fax,
reducing from lasi year's 18,1%.

Equity

The group’s atiributable equity increased to R3 845,2 million from
R3 823,6 million, translating into tangible net asset valug of 1 862,7 cents
per share. During the year 12,5 million shares were repirchased at a cost
of R760,4 million. At the financial year-end treasury shares held by
subsidiaries, including the share trust, amounted to 339 million shares,
representing 14,9% of the total issued shares.

Minority interest

in the RCS Group. At the financial year-end the groups shareholding in
this division was 55% with the balance being held by TRe Standard Bank
of South Africa Limited (SBSA).

Debt profile

The minority interest of R290,9 million relates to the mqnw sharehotding

Our group's cperations are financed primarily by mearg of its own cash
flow, as well as banking facilities. This debt, offset by thefgroup’s cash and
its “near cash" preference share investmeant of R200 Willion, represents
net gearing of 36,2%, which is below the group’s revifed medium-term
objective of 40%.

R1,2 billion of the group's debt relates directly to funding of the
RCS Group, where the group's facility is fixed at R750 nffllion, the batance
being funded by SBSA. The SBSA funding is not subjeclito any guaraniee
or security from Foschini Limited or any of its subsidiarie§, and accordingly
the debt is ring-fenced within the RCS Group.
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Accordingly the group’s debt relating to the retail business is only
R298,7 million, which is equivalent to our usual month-end creditors’
payment. This year the March month-end creditors' payments amounting
to R288,7 million were paid on the iast day of the financial year, whilst in
the previous year, because the month-end cccurred on a weekend, the
month-end creditors were paid after the year-end.

Having regard to the current instability in financial markets, the group has
secured three-year term funding of R700 million which is almost
equivalent to our agreed facility to the RCS Group. Thus, should financial
markets deteriorate further, the group should nct be impacted.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables reduced from R1 171,7 mitlion to R741,8 milfion.
It would thus appear that we have substantially paid down our creditors,
which is not the case. As already mentioned, in the 2007 financial year,
March month-end trade creditors amounting to R286,9 million were paid
on 2 April 2007, after the year-end, whilst those in respect of the current
year amountirg to R289,7 miliion were paid prior to the year-end. Our
aroup’s palicy of paying all suppliers 30 days from statement date remains
consistent with prior years.

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure for the year amounted to R274,4 million, most of
which ralatas 1o the opening of new stores and refurbishments, as well as
investment in IT systems. R27,1 million was incurred this year in respect
of the RCS Group's move to thelr new premises.

Due fo our continuing expansion in new stores, budgeted capital
expenditure for 2009 is R315 million.

Cash flow

Cash flows from operating activities before working capital changes
amounted to R1 074,2 million, marginally down on the previous year's
R1 187,9 million. There were larger working capital requirements during
the year primarily as a result of an increased investment in private label
card receivables of R241,6 million, as well as a reduction in trade and
other payables of R429,9 millior: which is due primarily to timing of the
year-end trade creditors’ payments. Cash generated by operations
amounted te R505,9 million.

The net cash outflow from investing activities amounted to R52,2 million
with investment of R274,4 million having been made in [T equipment and
shopfitting.

Included in cash inflows from financing activities are share purchases by
the share trust amounting to R760,4 million.

Due to these outflows, interest-bearing debt increased by R741,8 million
which resulted, as mentioned previously, in our group’s net gearing
increasing to 36,2% from 18,8% last year.

Financial targets

Our group’s financial targets have been included in the Financial
Highlights section of this annual report.

Ronnie Stein
Financial Director

11 June 2008
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2008 % change 2007*

gbigail Bisogno

Turnover Foschini 23831 36 23014
(R million) Fashionexpress 3215 14,9 2798
Dorna-claire 330,7 9,1 303,0
Luella 35,2 27.6 27.6
Total 30705 55 29118
Number Foschini 21 19 207
of stores Fashionexpress 100 3.1 97
Donna-claire 70 9.4 B4
Luella 19 56 18
Total 400 3.6 386
Floorarea  Foschini 138 553 6,2 130487
(gross m?3  Fashionexpress 29 379 29 28 563
Donna-claire 18736 13.4 16 520
Luella 2759 47 2 636
Total 189 427 6,3 178206
Number of  Foschini 4199 5.2 3991
employeas  Fashionexpress 602 4.0 579
Donna-claire 471 6,6 442
Luella 117 54 111

Total 5389 52 5123

" Note: The comparative figures have been adjusted to take into account a store
conversion from Foschini to Fashicnexpress.
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Positioning

The Foschini division is the primary womenswear fashion division
in the group. It comprisas the foltowing four chaing:

Foschini

The stores in this chain offer contemporary ciothing, footwear and
cosmetics.

The Foschini brand has undargone a repositioning process over
the past year to raise levels of fashionability and quafity.
This allows the ranges of products offered o be more desirable
to the target market and to be consistent with the modern and
fashionable image which the Foschini name and reputation are
intended to project.

The positioning of the sub-brands Oasis, News, Instinct and
WWW, which are house brands applied to ranges of clothing and
accessories located within their own areas in the stores, has
been clarified and redefined in the division's overall branding
strategy. Product ranges in these brands will be relaunched in the
third quarter of the next year.

The target market of the Foschini chain remains 18 to 35 year
olds in the LSM 6 — 10 catagories. The stores are located in prime
shopping centres and CBDs.

Donna-claire

The stores in this chain offer products at a fashionable level
for larger-sized women of all ages. The target market is the
LSM 6 — 10 categories.

The stores are located in prime shopping centres.
Fashionexpress

This is a price-centric chain catering for
custemers in the LSM 5 — 9 categories.
Its stores are located in smaller towns and in
secondary positions in shopping centres.
The stores offer clothing and footwear.
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FOSCHINI fashionexoress OZ e

Luella

This is a relatively new chain devoted only to footwear and
offering moderately priced products in & modern international
store format,

The number of stores in the chain has reached 19, and at this
number some consolidation in the roll-out process will take
place. Long-term strategy is being reviewed in the light of trading
experience since inception of the chain and studies are being
undertaken to select the most suitable product mix to meet
current and predicied trends in the market.

The stores are located in key shopping centres.
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Foschini continued

Review of the year

The high level of development of retail space that has been underaken
in recent times in South Africa continued during the past year, and the
following new major regional shopping centres in which the division is
represented were opened:

East Rand
Bloemfontein

Greenstone
Loch Logan
Maponya Mall Soweto

Irene Mall Centurion

In total, 19 new stores were added across the division’s four chains.
In addition, nine stores were enlarged or relocated. A total of 11 221 square
metres of retail space was added during the year, representing growth
of 6,3%.

Trading conditions were reasonable in the first half of the year and weak
in the second half. Tumover growth of 9,9% was achieved in the first six
months, but October and November, traditionally the division's key opening
summer period, were very soft months, being adversely affected by poor
economic conditions, exacerbated in certain instances by a fashion
offering which failed to meet expectations. December and January, whilst
below budget, showed reasonable growth, with January being buoyed by
the year-end sale. February and March saw a decling in sales, and it
became clear that consumers were holding back because of the
unfavourable economic conditions and the fact that eary stock in the
Foschini ranges lacked items for the winter.

//
. 'qu_s -
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Cosmetics

The cosmetics business, in contrast, has continuejto perform well,
growing by 11,7%. Turnover in cosmetics is now cloge to R500 million
annually.

The Foschini cosmetics range brings together a Jumber of major
international brands including Clinique, Elizabeth Ardel, L'Oreal, Revion
and Yardley, In mest of the new-format stores in shgpping centres the
cosmetics departments have their own entrance, creding a standalone
ambience. It has been shown that this layout incrdases footfall and
benefits the other departments within Foschini stores.

he Foschinl store
ich i performing
uder, and is used

An enlarged-format cosmetics range was faunched i
in Canal Walk, including an in-store MAC department,
well. MAC is the premium make-up range from Estee
by make-up artists internationalfy.

Cellular

Mobile handsets were launched in Foschini stores in 2000 and sales have
grown to almost R250 million annually. The division's
been to be an exclusive MTN retailer carrying the m

The store base has been limited thus far to the Foschilli
Prepaid handsets currently account for 95% of turnov.

In the fatter part of the year tumover was negativel\ affected by stock
shortages. A major downturn also occurred in sales offMotorola products,
which have lost market share internationally.
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Future plans are to rofl out cellular products to the Fashionexpress
chain and to stock other brands of handset and complementary
produets in a drive to increase sales.

Supply chain initiative

The group’s supply chain initiative, described in detail in the report
of the Group Logistics division, will reduce iead-times and enahle
the Foschini division, in common with the other trading
divisions, to react faster to trends emerging in the

market. This will allow orders to be placed closer to

the time when merchandise is required in the

stores. The division is posttioning ftself to

take full advantage of this strategic

benefit.
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Foschini continued

Foschini

Total sales in the Foschini chain grew by 3,6%. The first-half
growth of 8,5% came off a low base, stock shortages having
being experienced in the previous year. The second half suffered
from the impact of deteriorating trading conditions stemming
from rising interest rates and the implementation of the National
Credit Act (NCA). Same store sales for the year showed a small
decline of 0,2%.

Six new stores were opened during the year, including one at the
V&A Waterfront in Cape Town. A further five stores were
upgraded, taking the total number of new-concept stores at the
year-end to 107.

The new Waterfront store incorporates a number of innovative
design concepts which have been well received and will influence
future Foschini store designs. In addition, the Waterfront store
prompted the launch of Lipsy, an international fashion brand
carried by Topshop of London. Afthough these products
command a premium price there has heen a good take-up, and
they have been introduced in a number of the division’s ather
top-selling stores.

The new-concept stores continue to perform at levels well above
average for the Foschini chain, both in terms of turnover growth
and trading density, and now account for 70% of the chain’s total
tumover.

Performance by New Oid
store concept concept format
Number of stores 107 104
Sales growth (%) 50 0,2
Sales contribution {3) 70 30

Trading density/m? (incl. VAT) R21 600 R16 000

Total number of stores

Total rented space grew by 6,2% to 138 553 square meires.

Capital expenditure of almost R40 million was incurred on
Foschini store openings, enfargements, relocations and
refurbishments.The upgraded stores have shown good growth
and they strengthen the Foschini brand.
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Fashionexpress

This value chain, created initially out of ailing Foschinifgtores, had another
good year and has become well established irfl the markstplace.
Built around the concept of “express yourself for lesy”, this chain ofiers
fashionable garments in a pleasant shopping envirofgnent at prices that
rival those of traditional cash retailers.

Total sales grew by 14,9% with same store sales up B.6%.

The new store format has been widely accepted andwill continue to be
rolled out, including the convarsion of the existing ofer stores. This will
allow the Fashionexpress brand to have a consistent Bnage across alk the
locations.

hat this chain will
n easily expand to

planned for the next year. The division is confiden
continue to increase its profit contribution and that it
150 or even 200 stores.

During the past year five new stores were openetlA further four are
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Donna-claire

The total turnover of this chain grew by 9,1%, assisted by the opening of
seven new stores. Same store growth of 3,9% was disappointing but a
recent move to place emphasis on products for younger customers is
showing signs of success.

With ten new stores already committed for the next year and
a similar number envisaged for 2010, this niche chain
should have 100 stores within three years.

With their high trading densities and low
markdowns, Donna-claire stores are the
most profitable stores in the division.
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Foschini continued

Luella

Now in its third year, the Luella chain has not yet reachad its full potential,
having at this stage only 19 stores. One acditional store was opened in the
2008 year, at the Loch Logan centre in Bloemfontein. Al are in key
shopping centres.

This standalone footwear concept offers a range of women's footwear
supplemented by handbags and accessories aimed at customers in the
middle to upper income groups. The current target market is the fashion-
conscious woman with & passion for shoes.

The division is confident that with expected improvements in the fashion
ranges the Luglla chain will become a positive contributor to profit within
three years. It has the potential to be a 50-store chain.

Stock levels and markdowns

Aithough stack levels at the end of the year were at an acceptable level,
being down 11% on the previous year, markdowns for the year were
above budget at a disappointing 17.4% of sales. The increase was largely
caused Dy Christmas trading being softer than expected. Current and
projected stock levels are considered to be appropriate. The medium-term
goal remains to reduce clothing and footwear markdowns to between
10% and 12% of sales, and tc increase stock turn.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Markdown value (Rm} 304,0 266,7 3493 3710 QM
% to sales 1856 133 151 15,1 SAKE]
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Strategy and prospects

There is general awareness that the South African Bonsumer is under
pressure and that levels of disposadle income have deglined. Despite this,
the Foschini division considers that it is well positioged in terms of the
number and quality of existing and planned stores argl its flaxible buying
processes to withstand a trading downturn. Its objdetive is to emerge

division's premier CBD stores in cities such as Johanngsburg and Pretoria.
These measures will add substantial turnover and imgirove the visibility of
the division to the consumer, This programme will be $llowed in the 2010
year by the opening or upgrading of another approxifgately 20 stores.

In the next year alone more than 15 000 square metres of additional retail
space will be added. Among the developments in wigich the division will
have stores are the following regiona! shopping centigs:
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Regional Centre Foschini

Potchefstroom relocate and refurbish

Richards Bay enlarge and refurbish
Zevenwacht (Western Caps) new

The Grove {Lynnwood Pretoria) new

Westwood (Westville Durban) new

Mountain Mill (Worcester) new

Galleria (Amanzimtoti) new

Wonderboom (Pretoria} new

Melrose Arch {Johannesburg) new

Regional Centre Donna-claire Fashionexpress
Potchefstroom new new
Richards Bay new new
Zevenwacht (Western Cape) new

The Grove (Lynnwood Pretoria) new

Westwood (Westville Durban) new

Galleria {Amanzimtoti) new

Wonderboom (Pretoria) new

Melrose Arch (Johannesburg) new

The division’s strength in the markets it serves and its growth over the
years is reflected in the table below, setting out details of the stores in its

four chains.

Stare statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Foschini 197 196 201 207
Fashionexpress 89 86 a0 97
Donna-claire 43 53 59 B84

Luella - - 6 18

Total No. of stores 334 335 356 386

Closures 1 15 6 3

Floor area (m?) 152 767 154 025 163 703 178 206 REREEY

Projection
Store statistics 2009 2010
Foschini
Fashionexpress
Donna-claire
Luella

Total No. of stores

Closures - -

Ftoor area (m?) 205000 218 000
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2008 % change 2007

Turnover Markham 1190,9 6,6 11176

(R milion}  RJL - (100,0) 20,8
Total 11909 46 11384

Number

of stores Markham 201 52 19

Floor area

{gross m% Markham 61 298 53 58 230

Number of

employees  Markham 1364 (12,6} 1 560

Positioning

Markham is the largest men’s fashion retail chain in southem Africa.
Markham stores are located in most major shopping centres and towns
in this territory. In its endeavour to make its custorners “feel great, look
good, and share our passion for styte”, Markham provides up-to-date,
internationally-inspired menswear of good quality and value, suitable for
all occasions and daily experiences. This is done from conveniently
accessible stores, most of which offer a full range of menswear, and
others, like the recently-introduced smaller-format Markham Relay stores,
offering fashion casualwear only.

The smaller Markham Relay format is an answer to expansion into
secondary, smaller shopping malls that do not warrant a fully-fledged
Markham offering. They will be placed in new malls that are proliferating
on the outskirts of large towns, in second or third stores in city CBDs, and
second stores in large malls wherg it is not possible to expand an existing
Markham store.

During the next year Markham intends to open a few stores on a pilot
basis stocking only formalwear and smartwear. They are likely to be
named Markham Cignal stores.

Whilst the division targets the LSM 6 — 10 range, the LSM 3 — 5 categories
are also buyers of its stylish apparel.
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Review of the year

Despite the sluggishness which prevailed in §
[atter half of the year, total sales in the Markh
by 6,6% for the year, with same store sale
Although prices effectively remained consta

economy in the
stores improved
growth of 3,4%.
, changes in the
product mix resulted in 6% product inflationgCellphones again
performed well, sales growing by 6,4% to rdpresent 16,9% of

turnover.

Continued close control of markdowns and of xpenses resulted
in a further increase in profitability,

Markdowns made up 9,8% of sales. From trgds known at this
stage it seems that an acceptable level of
sustainable into the future, although the r@§e may well rise
marginally in the near future. The table below s out the apparel
markdown history.

2004 2005 20 2007 2008
Markdown value Rm) 83,1 950 106 992 971
% to sales 20 124 N 105 98

The fruits of the division's brand repgsitioning, which
commenced in the second half of 2005, pave handsomely
exceeded expectations. The fashion and qualgy expectations of
customers visiting the division's stores haveg been raised and

complete store renovation. Ten new slores
further five were relocated or enlarged. Of i
are in the new Markham Relay format.

new stores, four
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Strategy

The major repositioning of the Markham brand mentioned above hag the
objective of ensuring that Markham remains a relevant, aspirational brand,
recognised for delivering fashion and style in a sophisticated shopping
environment. This is a continuing exercise since it involves an extensive
refurbishment of stares and this process must be spread over a number
of years.

Space availahility is one of the factors that set a ceiling on the growth of
the division in the past. A full-line Markham stere requires a substantial
floor area and this has been unavailable in some malls in which the
division wouid have liked to have stores. The Markham Relay concept is in
part an attempt to deal with this problam since its smaller store format is
easier to accommodate. The current slower economic conditions should
provide oppartunities to open full-line Markham stores where there are
prospects of good sales, as well as to take opportunities o right-size and
open smalier stores where this is justified. More than 20 stores will be
opened in the next year,

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 = 39
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Alongside the roll-out of new stores in both the Markham and Markham
Relay formais there will be strong emphasis on cost controls in a drive to
enhance profitability. Training programmes for all staff members will be
continued in order to ensure that customers receive insightful and efficient
service and that the Markham reputation is enhanced.

Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Markham 173 177 180 191 20
RJL 37 38 28 - -

Total No. of stores 210 215 208 191 201

Closures 1 3 13 29 -

Floor area {m?) 560956 58538 58764 58230 61298

Projection
Store statistics 2009 2010
Markham 224 242
RJL - -
Total No. of stores 224 242
Closures - _
Floor area (m?) 67 047 70826

in addition to the activities described above, the division will continue to
investigate options to reduce lead times for merchandise procurement
with the objective of enhancing the division’s ability to react quickly to
changing trends. There will also be emphasis on better fulfilment of
cusiomers' size requirements, utilising the group’s newly-implemented
size-management sofiware which is designed to ensure that the size
ranges of stock arriving at a store will correspond to historical records of
the sizes of stock sold at that store.

The men's fashion arena has extremely limited local manufacturing
capability. However, the division will continue to strive to develop closer
refationships with domestic suppliers in order to redress this deficiency
over time, thus lowering reliance on imported preduct.

Prospects

e N R e el A A A R A R s s e e

Aot

The further roll-out of new Markham and Markham Relay stores,
combined with better fulfilment of customers’ size requirements,
will underpin the performance of this division in the riext and later

years.

The target is to have more than 240 stores, including at least
30 of the new Markham Relay format.

The pilot project mentioned above of standalone “formalwear-
only” stores may alse lead to some extension of trading activity

in a high-margin area.
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puzenne glénncnbets

e
Store location % of turnover % of m?
Shopping malls 44,1 41,3
High streets 30,3 27 4
Rural areas 256 31,3

A breakdown of sales by product category in the Exgict! stores in the
2008 year is set aut in the following table,

Womenswear 24.8%
Menswear 21,0%
Footwear (for men, women and children) 20,3%
Childrenswear 10,1%
Accessories 2,9%
Smalis 3,1%
Celtular 17,8%

Review of the year

2008 % change 2007 The Exact! division started to experience tough tradingjconditions in the
second quarter and these conditicns went on to prevail t§roughout the rest
Tumaver (R million) 707,2 _ 36 6826 of the year. Consumers in the division's target categogy were negatively
Number of stores 182 1,1 180 affected by the implementation of the National Credit gct in June 2007,
* which reduced their ability to obtain credit. In addition, sgveral interest rate
Floor area {gross m?) 52 831 28 51 386 hikes hac a dampening effect on consumer cenfidendg. The result was
Number of employees 1063 (1,6) 1080 that turnover for the year grew by 3,6%, with same gtore sales up by
1,7%. Customers with recuced disposable income Bought less than
expectad in the summer season and it was necessary to take more

Positioning markdowns than had been planned.

Exact! offers a focused range of faghionable women's, men's and
children's apparel to the growing group of middle income South African
shoppers in the LSM 5 — 8 groups. It targets shoppers seeking products
in the smart-casual category. Footwear and accessories complete the
range, with cellphones praviding a useful additional product line.

The products stocked offer clear value to customers in terms of both
guality and price, and are easy to fit into combinations with other apparel
on a “dress up or down” basis.

Customers respond to the division's limited but consistent styles of
apparel, for which care is taken to provide appropriate displays which
highlight the features of the garments offered while avoiding profusion,

The Exact! stores are located in city shopping malls, high streets and rural
argas, and provide their customers with a consistent experience wherever
they choose 1o shop.
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539 662 846 §o10
129 137 146 f1a3 ¥

Markdown value (Rm;}
% of sales

The performance of menswear and footwear was feasonable, with
footwear coming off an extremely high base in tHe previous year.
Womenswear performed below expectation as some faghion lines proved
to be less popular than had been hoped. This area vas subjected to
research in an attempt to reach & better understandifig of customers’
wants and needs.

The response to childrenswear was extremely pleasi§g, with sales of
boyswear growing by 27,2% and girlswear by 15,8%. Tfis is attributed to
offering differentiated ranges and the fact that, despitd tough economic
times, consumers will invest in their childran's clothing 4
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In line with the overall trend in clothing, thera was reduced
tdemand for cellular products and this was evidenced by a decline
in sales of 0,3%. Cellular products nevertheless made up 17,8%
of divisional turnover.

The volume of sales in shopping malls and high streets relative
to rural areas continued to increase, confirming that there is a
strong trend towards urbanisation.

Sales in the division's two “megastores” namely a larger, multi-
level format in Church Street, Pretoria, and in West Street,
Durhan, were adversely affected by the start of the government
workers' strike in June 2007, Despite this, turnaver in these
stores grew by mare than 22% and 24% respectively.

Store windows have proved to be the division's biggest marketing
medium, customers heing attracted by varied and visually
interesting displays of merchandise. Feedback from custorners
confirms that the attention which is devoted to these displays is
recognised in the market as one of its strengths. This i$ a source
of great pride and encouragement to the division.

Exact! continued to support local clothing manufacturing through
a strong collaborative effort between its buying teams and the
group’s in-house design and manufacturing arm, TFGA.

Speed-to-market became a key strategic initiativa in the division,
as eJsewhere in the group, and a number of projects have been
initiated to improve stock turns and optimise lead times in the
Exact! stores.

The division’s personnel development activities in the past year
were focused on training programmes for store managers and
middle management. Performance measurement, succession
planning and talent retention are now firmly entrenched in the
culture of Exact!

Exact!'s main corporate social responsibility initiative remains
Monkeybiz, a non-profit organigation that employs and empowers
more than 450 women who suffer social disadvantages or are
HIV-positive, and who hand-make a range of attractive bead
products. Exact! continues to subsidise the Monkeybiz soup
kitchen, as well as giving support through denations. In addition,
Exact! supported the Attie van Wyk Schoal.
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Strategy

The foundation of Exactl’s strategy and the six pillars Bf its business are
people, fashion, value, stores, service and profit. Thege concepis remain
firmly embedded in the division's collective thinking ang planning. For the
year ahead, action pans and success criteria have bedh developed under
each of these headings in order to drive the business

ensure that all departments work syrergistically.

After conducting research on the factors which cause
having made an intense exarnination of the needs an
market, Exact! has designed a strategy to attract
custemer who seeks value, has multipie roles and hasi

Ranges of products will remain limited and focused, an emphasis on
fashion at moderate prices. Stylish, easy-to-combing and comforiable
garments will be the basis for making Exact! the prefegred destination for
the target markei.

Emphasis will once again be placed on boostify turnover while
maintaining a balanced approach o stock control. Fther steps will be
taken in bringing to fruition the supply chain projects vhich were initiated
last year. In support of local initiatives the division wiljaim to procure at
least 70% of its apparel purchases tocally.

A total of ten new stores will be opened and four storgs will be relocated
and enlarged. This sizeable expansion programme, focusing on siies
where mass shopping takes place, indicates the confiddnce which prevails
in the future of the business.

Store statistics 2004 2005 2006

po07 2008

Number of stores 185 170 170 180 'd’B‘i ‘
Closures 1 4 - 1 :
Floorarea ()~ 54408 46862 47855 386 %

Projection
Store statistics

P00 2010

Number of stores
Closures
Floor area (m3
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The succession plans that were implemented last year are already
showing benefits and will continue to play a key role in developing
strength, stability and capacity in the division in the future. There is
ongoing emphasis on people development, particularly in store
managermeni, through centralised training programmes. The objective
remains to provide good careers to pecple from previously disadvantaged
communities.

The division's current corporate responsibility initiatives will again be
supported in the nexi year, and some innovative educational projects will
also be launched.

Prospects

The retail sector is expected to be under pressure througheut the year
ahead and the division has adjusted its budgets o be in line with
predictable consumer spending patterns. The division is also positioning
itself 10 take advantage of the econcmic upturn as soon as it occurs
through unflagging attention to customers’ needs and by extending the
reach of its stores into areas of high density.
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The Sportscene chain stocks a blend of goonis and fashion
2008 % change 2007 products directed mainly at youthful and ffashion-conscious
s customers. Initiatives are undertaken oulsidegthe stores to keep
Turnover ?ponl'iscene 74 386,3 the chain in touch with its target market. Thefimage it cuttivates
(R million)  Totalsports 77 5993 is that of a fast-paced, urban, street-smart, ghergised shopping
DueSouth 18,6 76,8 venue
Total A 84 10624 DueSouth caters for modern, hi-iech, outdogr enthusiasts who
Number Sporiscene g5 H00 | 47 86 enjoy shopping in an environment which stodks a wide range of
of stores Totalsports B L 57 106 products that correspond to their lifestyle. ffhe target market
DueSouth * ! 18,8 16 comprises adults in the middle to upper incdne groups. As this
Total 63 508 is only the fourth year of trading the chain cofstantly updates its
! product range in order to cater fully for the @arket’s tastes and
Floor area  Sportscene 6,9 17 296 to strengthen its market position.
{gross m?) BOJZISSS&ES = : 12-3 22 gg? The sports division continues to be reconised by leading
“‘ 2 ! international suppliers of sportswear and spdgts equipment as a
Total EooEs 88 48858 key retail distribution channel in South Africa§While the success
i of these international products is crucial to itgcontinued growth,
Number of e 40y _
b A o the division also supporis a number of idgal manufacturers.
employees U Gl 4.2 1613 . :
z S In-house brands are furthermore used $ provide margin
flexibility and to enhance growth.
Positioning

The sports division, comprising the Totalsports, Sportscene and DueSouth
chains, occupies a leading position in its space in the retail sector. It is well
represented in shopping centres, CBDs, high streets, and rural towns
throughout southern Africa and has buili up a high reputation with the
sporting fraternities and other interest groups which make up its target
markets. It maintains a policy of clear differentiation between the chains
in products, presentation and branding, relying for this differentiation on
active product innovation and selecticn and continuous updating of layout
and display in the stores.

Totalsports retains its position as South Africa’s premier chain for
sportswear and sports equipment. it stocks leading international brands of
products to meet the everyday needs of sporismen and sportswomen,
together with complementary fashion products. The chain has well-trained
and knowledgeable staff who provide customers with premium-level
service In stores where there is a vibrant atmosphere. The main sports and
activities for which the chain caters are football, running, fitness and
rugby, and customers have a wide choice of contemporary spartswear
(including footwear) and equipment.
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Review of the year

I Trading conditions in the past year proved to be difficult and obstacle-
ridden. The implementation of the National Credit Act (NCA} in June, in
combination with higher inflation and rising interest rates, severely dented
consumer confidence. Power outages disrupted shapping patterns and
reduced the divisicn’s ability to provide its normal level of service, Rising
fuel costs and a surge in inflation adversely affected expenses,
necessitating an increased focus on expense control and efficiencias. In
addition, new and aggressive players have entered the retail market for
sportswear and sports equipment.

Despite this unfavowrable climate the division achieved total turnover
growth of 8,4% and same store growth of 3,7%, ensuring that the division
maintained its position as a market leader. A total of 17 new stores were
opened, including two on a franchised basis at Cape Town International
airport, thus positioning the division for growth in the future,

The division's markdown levels have remained well controlled and at
acceptable levels.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Markdown value (Rm) 80,1 92,7 1320 133,38 mEhE:
% to sales 120 11,5 128 11,1 EEps

Throughout the year the divisien continued to stock and display the Jatest
products available in the market, both in sportswear and equipment,
Emphasis was again placed on training programmes for the staff in order
to ensure that customers entering the stores wili receive technically
competent and superior all-round service. In co-operation with suppliers
of major ranges of products the division also participated in the launching
of new products on to the southern African market. This is a strategic
process to attain first-to-market status and reputation.

The division’s involvemeant in the group's supply chain initiative, which is
not yat at a final stage, resulied in reduced lead times and enabled its
stores to be first-to-market with some new products. Close collaboration
with supptiers of products and with the Group Loaistics division also ted to
some reduction in the time which merchandise spends in the group’s
distribution centres, and a significant proportion of footwear was shipped
directly from the factories of manufacture to a distribution centre of the
group. This fype of innovation results in the elimination of duplicate
processing and hence reduces costs.
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Totalsports

Totalsports achieved turnover growth of 7,7% for the year, with same store
growth of 3,5%. Its expansion policy continued and six new stores were
opened and ten stores were refurbished.

Rugby has been added to football, fitness and running as a key sport in
the strategy of this chain. This step recognises the growing popularity
which rugby enjoys as a mass participation sport in southern Africa,
boosted by the Springboks’ successes in the most recent World Cup
series.

Streamlining was undertaken to remove overlapping and substitutable
product lines and add others in order to remain relevant to key sports
categories. The objective has been to ensure a clearly-defined offering by
sport and gender.

Another innovation was the broadening of the range of Fusion products Dy
the introduction of new core products in apparel, accesscries and
equipment.

The Totalsports chain also increased its participation in co-operative
events with manufacturers and distributors of internatienally-branded
products in order to reinforce relationships both with these suppliers and
with the public, and to raise awareness of the availability of these products
in the stores. These relationships and the resulting consumer awareness
will be important in the build-up to World Cup 2010 and to the business
climate confronting Totalsports in later years.
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Because of the growing public enthusiasm for World Cup 2010, the chain
has expanded yet further its involvement ir grassroots football events,
inferacting with more than 100 football clubs at various levels. These
initiatives with the target market are supplemented by sports clinics for the
staff of the chain, so building up the knowledge base and increasing
commitment and energy at the store level.

Totalsports is the South African retail football partner of cheice for the
suppliers of several major ranges of sportswear and sports equipment,
and it will use this competitive edge to maximise sales and market
penetration.

Sportscene

Competition iniensified in South Africa in the past year, particularly as a
result of the further advance of international market participants.

The youth fashion market has received increasing recognition
internationally as presenting opportunities for suppliers of major brands of
sports products. This has led to the arrival of waves of new products. The
suppliers have globally intensified their marketing activities and they
compete aggressively with each other for retail presence, whether in the
increasingly common own-hrand stores or in the stores of traditionat
retailers. They take global initiatives in strategic direction, the ranges of
products offered, and promotional activities.

The result in South Africa for retailers such as the Sportscene chain has
been increased competition but also the prospect of a growing market.
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The Sporiscene chain has played a part in this drive of the big international
players by participating in the introduction of new products through launch
campaigns and other premotional activities, so ensuring that it would be
first-to-market and would gain publicity in its own right.

The relentless pace of change in the youth market requires ongoing review
of the chain’s marketing strategy. This brings about continuing change in
the “iook and feel” of markating communication in order to keep it in step
with fashion and hence deal effectively with competition.

A more intensive focus on footwear, aimed at enhancing the division's
leading position in this product category, has paid dividends. The division's
Redbat range continues to expand with the introduction of new items for
women and men. The range of accessories under this trademark has been
streamlined.

Sportscene opened six new stores during the year and refurbished nine
stores, whilst closing two non-performing stores. The franchised store at
the Cape Town International Airport was converled to a Totalsports format.

In a year of volatile trading conditions the chain’s turnover grew by 7,4%,
with same store growth of 3,0%.

BEReS 135
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sports division continued

m
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DueSouth 7

DueSouth, the newest of the division’s chains, continued to gain public awarengss /
and to strengthen its reputation in the outdoor lifestyle market. Growing popularity
. of the chain’s exclusive international rangas, The North Face and Columbia, has v
! helped to enhance its market postticn. The chain also provides products under the
in-house DueSouth trademark, which play an accessible alternative and
complementary role.

The product range continues to evolve, and in the past year additicnal well-
recognised internationally-known apparel and footwear, both for women and men,
werg introduced, together with an enhanced range of accessories and equipment.

Following a review of the chain's stores a programme was started to enhance store
presentation through increased lighting and the re-configuration of shopfrants. A
visual merchandising initiative was also undertaken to demarcate clearly the
lifestyle and performange areas within the stores and to identify the trail-running,
mountain-biking, outdoor and exploration categories of products. ¥ is clear that
these changes have been welcomed by customers and that they serva to enhance
the character and individuality of the DueSouth stores.

DueSouth continues to expand and four new stores were opened in the past year,
including a franchised airport store.

Sales growth was encouraging at 18,6%, with same store growth of 7,7%.
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Strategy
Alt of the chains in the division are given equal opportunities to achieve Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007  2008*
their best possible perfarmance, Totalsports 92 94 97 106 i)
In the Totalsports chain there will be emphasis in the coming year on Sportscens 70 74 79 86 | a
providing an optimal selection of products in the sports for which it caters, OueSouth _ 9 i4 i6 . i
presented to customers in attractive and simple-to-find displays. Total No. of stores 162 177 190 2081 =
Intensified focus will be placed on apparel for women and on certain other Closures 3 9 2 o 9
product lings for which there is at present particularly strong demand. *
Floor area (m?%) 35691 40643 44221 48858 | §8°4F
Totalsports” status in the ioothall sector as a preferred retail partner for Projecti
n
major suppliers will provide a strong platform to establish both exclusive . rojectio
- - o , Store statistics 2009 2010
and competitive positions for the acquisition and marketing of products.
The window of opportunity presented by the World Cup 2010 and the Totalsports oy Kt
marketing drive of the major sporting suppliers in this regard will allow the Sportscene e s
= 0
chain to progress yet further in building its reputation. DuaSouth & £y
There will be continued interaction with the custemer base through Total No. of stores il a4
targeted local events, promotional initiatives around the introduction of Closures =
new products, and the division's own national event sponsorships. These Floor area () MOETT 6%

are all fools to gain top-of-mind awareness in the marketplace.

In the Sportscene chain, following from the above-mentioned strategy
review, there will be ongoing action to keep the chain aligned with its fast-
moving target youth market. Emphasis will continue on building strength
in the footwear category and in strengthening the chains position in
popular internationally-branded products. There will also be a continued
drive to position Redbat as a wanted brand.

DueSouth will retain its existing objectives and its product ranges will be
supplemented by new products and new categories of products.
Sponsorship of the DueSouth Xterra Multisport event will continue.

The division is participating actively in the group's supply chain initiative
with the objective of bringing products into the stores faster and thus
improving efficiency and stock turn. Buying decisions can then be made
later than in the past, helping the division in its drive to be the first-to-
market with newly launchec products.

Good expansion opportunities have been identified in several geographical
fegions and the division intends to open nine Totalsports, eleven Spartscene
and six DueSouth stores.

* Excludes 2 franchise stores at CPT International Airport.

Prospects

Trading conditions are expected to remain difficult in the new financial
year as a result of rising interest rates, rising inflation and the continued
effects of the NCA. In spite of these conditions the division expects to
praduce moderate growth, and investment in the business for the future
is continuing.
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Positioning

The Foschini group iewellery division is the leading player in the mass
middie market for jewellery and branded accessories. It has attained this
nosition Dy offering attractive retail environments, extensive product
ranges, desirable brands and great service. Measured by number of
stores, American Swiss Jewellers is the largest jewellery chain in
southern Africa, followed by Sterns. American Swiss and Sterns have each
traded successfully for more than 100 years and as a resuit have built up
large and Ioyal followings in the markeiplace. In-house credit accounits for
B0% of total sales.

The division strives continually to differentiate the products it stocks in
order 1o offer real choice to custormers. The division obtains merchandise
from around the world, including products designed and manufactured
locally for the southern African market, so ensuring that therg is ongoing
innovation and trend-setting.

2008 % change 2007

Jurnover American Swiss 6,9 622,7
(R million) Matrix 13.8 41
Sterns 6.2 3657

Total 6.7 10225

Number American Swiss 3.3 181
of stores Matrix 357 14
Sterns 0.8 121

Total 3.8 316

Floor area  American Swiss 33 12 850
(gross m%  Matrix 230 508
Sterns (0,6) 8 671

Total 22 22029

Number of  American Swiss 2,7 742
employees  Matrix 93 54
Stermns 2,2 453

Total 28 1249
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jewellery division

gteienne Kleinman

e fashion-forward
in the growing
middle market appropriate products and brands to express thelr status.

The American Swiss brand is positioned to appeal to 1
and image-conscicus customer, and offers consum

The American Swiss brand is highly visible in shoppinggentres and in the
media, making its fashion statements with confidence Bind flair.

Sterns is a contemporary and classic jeweller, well kngwn 1o the market
for its quality and welcoming service, offering beautiil and meaningful
jewallery. The Sterns brand is in the process of beingfepositioned to be
more in line with trends in contemporary merchandise

Matrix, the division's sunglasses and cellphones chgin, caters for the
brand-savwy and image-conscious consumer who agpires te designer

labels.
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Review of the year

The division’s sales growth of 6,7% for the year was lower than the previous year's growih of
16,3%, but nevertheless represents an acceptable result in a year of substantially higher metal
. prices, higher interest rates, higher inflation and the effects of the implementation of the National
Credit Act (NCA). Despite having to contend with these negative factors, the division maintained the
markdown to sales percentage for the year below 9%, which it considers to be the optimumn level.

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Markdown valug (Rm) 831 838 89,0 96,5
% to sales 115 101 9,1 8.6

Operating profits grew at a rate in excess of the rate of sales growth, thareby
improving profitability ratios.

The division hac a good start to the year, with impressive double-digit
growth during the first months. Bacause tha NCA came into force at

a time of interest rate increases, a decling in the rate of growth
set in. To contend with this, merchandise purchases were
accordingly adjusted. The remainder of the year saw further
increases in interest and inflatton rates and spiralling growth in
commodity prices, particularly metals. The gold price jumped
by more than 30% during the year under review and
judicious planning on the part of the division's merchants
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jewellery division continued

Strategy
was again needed in order to ensure that the stores would have a suitable The new financial year calls for reliance on the strength of each of the
product mix far their customers. American Swiss, Sterns and Matrix brands. @Il elements of
Stock levels were affected by the factors described above and this communication, design and service will be aligned accordingly and
| resulted in a reduction in stock tum o 1,9 from 2.2 last year. consistently communicated to our personnel and corgumers. American
Strategies have been devised to push this back to more than 2,0 in the Swiss will maintain its role as a fashion jeweller while gdding new brands
next year. and differentiated products. Sterns will continue its mose to contemporary

status while also adding its own new product lines. A ngw store format for
Sterns will be implemeanted at the beginning of the finghcial year and will
be rolled out to all new stores after feedback and rev@w. Existing stores
will receive corresponding treatment over & pariod. Thig will complete the
repositioning of Stems as a confemporary brandgwith consistency
between products, advertising and store desigr§ Matrix will be
investigating alternative store formats fo increase if§ product roll-out

/i e potential.
RN

The division opened 19 new stores in the year under review
(American Swiss 8, Sterns 5, Matrix 6}, and 7 underperforming stores
were closed (American Swiss 2, Sterns 4, Matrix 1).

Average trading densities continue to rise and are running at more
than R48 000 per square metre compared 1o last year's R46 000 per
square metre.

Customer service is a key differentiator ang, in line wilh the brand focus
mentioned above, the division is continuing to imgrove the training
programmes given in stores and at the group’s heacgoffice in ordar to
ensure that all personnel are aligned with the brand’s clstormer focus and
core values.

Supply chain managemant is a key factor and thejdivision intends to

pursue & supplier pipeline that has greater fidkibility and shorter
— - f'< - lead times than have prevailed in the pastgThis should rasult
in improved decisicn-making and operaf§onal efficiency.

The division's store location strat@gy includes the
continuous monitoring of performgnce trends, and

sales and profit.




B e e e e e e e e o S o e e e e e o

OCO0O0O00O000O00O0OO0COOOOOOOOLOOLCOOLCOOOOOODOCOOOO0OOOCOO0COC
OCoOQCO0OO000CO0O000O00O0O0OOLOOO0OCOCQOOOCOOLCOOO0OOCOOOODOCO0OOOC
Q0000000 O0OOCOOCOOOOOOO0OOO0DOOOLOOOLOCOOOOCOODOCOOOC

Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

American Swiss 175 175 179 181
Sterns 114 115 115 121 :
Matrix 9 12 14 14 §

Total No. of stores 298 302 308 316 |}
Closures 15 6 3 4
Floor area (m?) 21123 21183 21580 22029 |griap)

Projection
Store statistics 2009 2010
American Swiss 197 205
Sterns 134 143

Matrix 24 29
Total No. of stares 355 377

Closures 3 3
Floor area {m?) 23859 § 24899

Prospects

Despite the current economic slowdown, the
division expects that growth in the middle market
in southern Africa will continue for the foreseeable
future. The Foschini group jewellery division is well
positioned to take advantage of this growth,
considering the brand awareness, loyaity and trust \
that already exist among consumers.

These factors, combined with training to align
personnel and brand values, will further ensure
that a customer-centric culiure is entrenched
within each of the brands. With this in prospect, the
division is confident that it can continue to
strengthen and grow.
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Review of the year

Ten new stores were opened in the year under review @ keeping with the i
division's long-term roll-out programme. Of the nevy stores, nine are I
@home stores in Johannesburg, Pretoria, Cape n and Durban.
The ienth is an @homelivingspace siore of 2 000 Jequare metres in
Loch Logan, Bloemfontein, and is only the third g@homelivingspace
store to be opened in South Africa, A fourth opened in Port Elizabeth
during May 2008.

In January 2008 the division opened its first overseas dores, one in Dubai
and the other in Bahrain. This represents a joint venture g a franchise basis
between the group and a Dubai-based company, the A Tayer Group LLC.
The performance of these pioneering stores in their f¥st few months of
operations has been ahead of expectations.

milestone in its development. If it lives up to the prome embodied in its
first few months of operations some other opportuni§es on the horizon
may be pursued.

This s the division's first foray outside South Africtnd represents a

2008 % change 2007

The homeware market has, in common with othed consumer goods

Tumover (R million) 11,1 42,4 : _ ‘ .
markets in Scuth Africa, felt the pinch of the slow-dgwn in consumers’
Number of stores 19,6 51 spending that has resulted from rising interest rates find rising inflation
Floor area (gross m) 8.1 21 906 and the generally tightened economic conditions thg prevailed in the
latter part of the year under review. Despite this, tofl turnover for the
Number of employees (10.8) 848 division rose by 11,1% althaugh same store turnover dmained flat. In the

Positioning

This division has two store formats. The first and older comprises
@home stores, which have since the launch of the division in 2001
successfully sold a wide range ot homeware. The second is the more
recently developed @homelivingspace category, which sells contemporary
fumiture and larger décor items for the hoime, as well as the full @home
offering.

I\

Despite having only been launched in 2008, @homelivingspace has
been well received in the marketplace and is already making a useful
contribution to profitabifity.

The division targets the middle to upper segment of the market in the form
of the LSM 8 — 10 group. ey

There were 61 stores at the year-end, located in leading retail malls in the J '
major urban centres of the country.
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@home  @homelivingspace

THE HOMEWARE S5TORE

THE HOMEWARE STORE

present phase of its existence the chain is at the point where new stores 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
in the chain are being openad in relatively close proximity to older stores, Mark 65 1 ™ .
drawing away some trade from established customers, This is likely to be arkdown value (R} ' 60 211 3, !
only a temporary levelling process pending the build-up of independent % 10 sales 80 56 75 83 Rl
customer and turnover hases. The division's trading density for the year amounted 1o an acceptable
As is shown in the table below, markdown was somewhat higher than in R22 290 per square meire.

the preceding years, but it remains urder 10% of sales and is considered
to be acceptable for a moderately difficult trading year.
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@home continued

Strategy

Plans for the coming year include the roll-out of another elaven stores in
South Africa, of which four will be @homelivingspace stores and seven
@home stores. The Sandton store will be revamped and enlarged, and
revamps will also take place at the V&A Waterfront and Canal Walk stores
in the Western Cape. These are among the division's prime locations.
The revamps will inctude the addition of a décor element.

The slowdown in the economy presents a challenge for the divigion to
excel in bringing desirable ranges of high-quality and well-priced
merchandise to its customers. In-store, the division's operations teams
will remain focused on rendering superior customer service.

In the United Arab Emirates the @home franchised stores will be
supplemented by the opening of a further three outlets, bringing the
number in this zone to five. This will give a meaningful boost to the
division's drive into new territory.
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Prospects

The division remains focused on retaining its margins and profitability and Store statistics 2004 2005 2006 2007  2008*
tight control of expenses will be essential,

@home 24 34 39 49 58
Unabated efforts are being made to find suitable trading sites to meet @homelivingspace - - 2 2 3

growth requirements for both @home and @homelivingspace stores. Total No. of stores ” 34 41 5t 61

Degpite the current economic downturn, the further roll-out of both

@home and @homelivingspace stores will underpin this division's Closures _ — ~ ~ -
performance in the future. Floor area (m? 10001 13405 18624 21 906 WXL
X Projection

Store statistics 2009 20107
@home
@homefivingspace 10
Total No. of stores 72 a0
Closures — -
Floor area {m?) 35000 43500
* Excludes franchise stores.
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TFG apparel supply company

8elwgn ofagle

Positioning

TFG Apparel Supply Company (TFGA) is a strategic supplier of apparel and fabric which are needed for some of the products xsired by retailers.
accessorigs to the group’s trading divisions, its primary functicn being to Thus negative effects have been feli throughout the ipply chain, with a
manage the supply of locally made apparel. ikt has no factories of its own particularly strong blow to the CMT base.

but works closely with several local cut, make and trim (CMT) coniractors
with whom the group has long-standing relationships. It operates a full
design studio for womenswear and childrenswear, and a facility for pre-

ns have therefore
es of supply from
ibilities have been
rticularly the CMT
to make strenuous
n business.

The TFGA division and other traders in similar posi
found it necessary 1o attempt to find alternative sol
regions other than China. While these new supply po:
production and procuciion. explored, the local manufacturing capability, and

The division also co-ordinates the group’s activities in the fields of sector, has been greatly weakened, and TFGA has ha
merchandise Sourcing! shmpmg and qua“ty assurance. EﬁOI’TS to aSSIsl its cluster Df CMT contractors to Stay

as the prolific and

Further details of the sourcing and shipping operations are mentioned Meanwhile China itselt can no longer be looked upol f
is the result of a

below in this report. reliable exportar which it has been until recently. Tl

number of internal factors including the appreciationpf China's currency
The division's quality assurance unit provides a technical service to the against the US Dollar and some other curencies (Mcluding the Rand),
group's apparel trading divisions, to the homeware division and to TFGA fising worker remuneration and social upliftmentJincreased internal
itself. Quality standards and processes are continually reviewed in order to demand, environmental issues, reductions in export rgbates and logistical
ensure that product quality is world-class and that local and interational issues in the run-up to the Olympic Games. The charfe in China's status
best practices are adopted. as an exporter reinforces the group's need to havel wider network of

TFGA's in-house textile testing laboratory provides a testing service of sources of apparel, fabric and other products.

international standard to TFGA and other divisions of the group and to the Through these more difficult times TFGA has centinu
group’s outside supply base. CMT base, as well as encouraging the creation an

transparent and collaborative parinerships with ce
Review of the year Greater consolidation within the CMT and textile b
group in good stead for the future.

to support its local
implementation of
in other suppliers.
e would stand the

The quota system introduced by the Depariment of Trade and Industry,
setting limits on the quantity of fabric and finished apparel which can be The shipping department continued to run efficiently!
imported from China, has been in place for more than a year. One of its the procurement process by which the group’s tra
consequences, acutely felt in the past year, has been an inability on the stocks of merchandise. The external clearing and
part of local appare} manufacturers to obiain the types and quantities of used by the division have once again given cutstands

nd to add value io
g divisions receive
rwarding agencies
g service.
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Strategy

The group’s supply chain initiative, mentioned elsewhere in
this annual report and outlined in the report of the previous
year, has taken on added momentum, The aim of this initiative
is to bring about improvements throughout the supply chain by
a series of measures which amount to vertical streamlining.
Among the benefits of the initiative will be improvements in
stock turns, reliability, processes, compliance and other areas
of the group's activities.

TFGA's main suppliers have supported a broad-based black
economic empowerment (BBBEE) supplier development project
that has been worked out by the group’s sub-cocmmittee on
BBBEE procurement and enterprise development.

A drive is under way to up-skill and provide career
enhancement for the division's staff complement. The division
continued with its leadership academy, which over the years
has given staff members an epportunity to grow and progress
within the groijp.

Prospects

TFGA will continue to advance the supply chain initiative in the
forthcoming period. The positive outcomes of this should
enhance the group's capabilities for the future with emphasis
on shorter lead times, guaranteed quality, enhanced reliability
and the reduction of waste within the supply chain. All this
should contribute to more reliable delivery and improved stock
turns for the trading divisions.
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Foschini group financial services

feter Cﬂimg

Positioning

The group’s financial services division consists of two independent
businesses:

* FG Financial Services manages the group's in-store credit card
programme that consists of 14 different card formats. ncluded in this
division's responsibilities are the group's Club, insurance products,
cellufar phone operations and customer relationship management.

= RCS Group provides a range of broader financial services to
customers of the group and to custemers of unrelated retailers.
At presert the financial products provided comprise RCS Personal
Loans, RCS Cards, RCS Private Label Cards and RCS Home Loans.
Standard Bank holds a 45% interest in this business. The RCS
Group’s divisional report is found etsewhere in this document.

The positions of these businesses in the group structure are represented
graphically below,

FG Financial Services

Review of the year

The past year has seen tremendous changes to the credit landscape.
In June 2007 the National Credit Act (NCA) became effective, and it has
had a significant impact on the way credit is advanced to customers.

The group chose to convert its entire base to operate under the framework
and regulations of the NCA. Correspondence to this effect was sent out
prior to 1 June 2007. This enabled ihe division to have a single standard
for dealing with all customers and also afforded custemers the protection
that the NCA offers.

100% Halding FOSCHINI GROUP

INTERNAL

RINANUTR S

In the same process customers were evaluated in t@ms of their credit
facilities and in some instances these facilities were creased, although
customers had no access to this increased facility uilil their risk profile
enabled the division to release the increased amounts

During a period of several months preceding 1 June §007 many players
in the industry made substantial amounis of credit avaflable to customers.
This had the effect of boosting trade for these entities gver this period, but
so0me consequences are currently finding their wayginto the bad debt
numbers. The approach adopted by the division was pllident and certainly
its bad debt experience appears to have been better t§an that of the peer
group.

The advent of the NCA had a negative impact on cus@emers who wanted
credit but did not qualify for it. The NCA affordabilit§ test resulted in a
further 6,7% of credit applications being rejected in thE division's system.

The year also saw four interest rate increases @hd the repo rate
consequently moved from 9,0% to 11,0%. This, couged with inflation in
the cost of food and fuel, has placed a heavy burden gh many customers.
High levels of indebtedness continue to be seen.

An examination of the payment behaviour of customesg seems to indicate
that whilst their collective behaviour scores atjthe bureaux are
deteriorating, the same customers have stable behaviur scores with the

v\‘e division's debt

group. This fact supports the conclusion that
management practices are yielding good results.

55% Holding

EXTERNAL

Club
|

RIS/ ik 06 BYETRN URTT Moot

Insurance
L - |
One20ne General Private |
[ ’ Purpose Label
Store Cards Card Card

* The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited (SBSA) has a minority share in this division,
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services

Concerted efforts have been applied o prevent a build-up of arrears in
the debtors’ book. During the course of the year, in anticipation of
increased defaults, the division added capacity to its collections
department by increasing the number of collectors and also applying
dialer optimisation features. A great deal of emphasis was also placed on
early-stage default, with good results. Strategies within our debtors’
decisioning system, TRIAD have been optimised to ensure that the division
is effective in this area.

At the year-end arrears were up by only 0,3% on the previous year.
Current trends suggest that the division's recent efforts are paying off and
the book continues to remain in a healthy contractua! state.

Net bad debt grew by 15,7% compared to overall net receivable growth
of 8,0%.

2008 % change 2007

Rm Rm
Interest income 28,8 2993
Other income 69,0 85,2
377 3845
Net bad debt 15,7 (187.8"
Credit costs 11,6 (148,0)
Profit before tax 2021 48,7

** Restated to exclude R19,8 millicn abnormal sale of written off accounts.

Interest income

The Foschini Interest Rate, which is applied to customer accounts, was
kept below the maximum usury rate, and hence well below the maximum

. permitted under the NCA, despite the fact that customers are operating

in accordance with the NCA. During the course of the next year an
examination of risk-Dased pricing will take place and it is likely that there
will be a move to differential interest rates, giving a slightly better rate
te those customers whose payment performance has been correct and
on time.
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Foschini group financial services continued

Other income

{nsurance

Profit in this area grew by 46,4%, aided by some non-recurring items.
By the year-end two additional insurance products had been developed
and have been offered 1o the customer base since 1 April 2008. These
products have been well received and will generate positive results.

Club

The Club grants a range of benefits for subscribers who are holders of the
group’s credit cards or those of the RCS Group.

These benefits include:

* automatic death insurance;

* account balances protection;

+ medical and legal helpline;

« qualification in the monthly R300 000 draw;

* discounts at several retailers;

* promotional ftem discounts;

* bursaries to the value of R2 million per annum; and
e a monthly magazine with topics of interest,

Cusrently there are more than 910 000 paying subscribers of the Club and
85 000 of the SuperClub.
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The division’s relationship wittg Safika Righbury
Communications has led to a step-&p in the quality and
content of the Club's magazinand a very good
response has been recorded froy customers when
survayed about the magazine.

Following from a point made in las@year's report about
other niche Club offerings, a new
with an associated magazine will
and initial consumer research indiggtes that a strangly
positive response to this initiative wifl be forthcoming.

Profit from this area grew by 49,2

' Cellular

Under the economic pressure thag prevailed, cellular

sales lost momentum and turnovey rose by a modest

1,8%. The group’s exclusive arraggement with MTN

continued. The product range igg being continualty

reviewed and all procurement is néw overseen by the

divigion.
ONEZ20NE

One20ne was established in the 2007 year with its fi
One20ne Top-up Airtime Deal. This product grew in
clearly found & niche in the market. It is a discountel airtime offer sold
through telemarketing and provides the convenience g§an airtime confract
linked to a group credit card. The rates to customers ge better than those
for standard prepaid airtime and the customer aljo benefits from a
significant discount to conventional retail pricing.

t product being the
past year and has

Revenues grew by 188,8% for the year. There are egpectations that still
greater market penetration can be achieved by meang of better customer
selection, with a strong contribution 1o the division’s frofits.

Net bad debt

In the cellection process the division's focus has corinued to be on the
earlier stages of default. This approach, coupied with ghe division's hybrid
contractual/recency collections policy, has seen colfctions continue to
stay within acceptable ranges. Behavioural scores wele evaluated during
the vear to ensure that they rank-order accounts cagrectly according to
value and risk, The division's scorecards were found t@be highly predictive
when measured against industry standard scorecard

Write-off policy on bad debt remained consistent witg the previous year.
Non-performing accounts, defined as accounts whese payment profile
scores and recency fall below fixed criteria, are writtgn off monthly.
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' New applicant fraud Credit costs
The forensic unit of the division had a very busy year, with high volumes Credit costs increased by 11,6% in the year. The factors influencing this
of fraudulent applications being encountered. ID theft and impersonation increase were an investment in systems to contend with the NCA, as well
have been exploited by crime syndicates. Database analysis tools used as marketing expenses related to invitational mailings.
by the division have allowed it to keep the incidence of fraudulent
applications below an internally recognised threshold of 3%. All new Strategy

accounts continue to be passed through fraud profiling scorecards and

) i i A good level of success has been achigved in providing value-added
database tests, with exceptions being referred to forensic underwriters.

products to customers. Having done this, the division, like other retailers,

Provisions now faces the challenge of achieving growth in its customer base.

The division continues to use the Markov maodel 10 identify inherent risk The response 1o this challenge lies to a great extent in optimal use of the
within Its database. Markov relies on 12-month default roll rates and group's national presence and the number of different offerings across the
predicts which accounts are likely to proceed to write-off. This information group. !t will also be necessary to increase product cross-shopping across
is used to create a provision for doubtful debts. In the past year the the various chains within the group, and with this in mind a customer
Markov model required a R25,9 million charge to the income statement relationship management programme has been initiated. This will be
as against R29,0 million last year. The doubtful debt provision now stands headed by a senior executive transferred from a trading division,
at R220,7 million, which represents 8,4% of the closing book compared By exploiting the analysis capabilities which have been buift up in the
10 8,0% of the closing book fn the pravious year, analytics unit of the division, the team headed by this executive will be

able to seek out opportunities te increase the customer base and increase
the group’s share of customers’ wallets while satisfving customers that
they are receiving added value by shopping at the group’s chains. Some
products that can be sold on a direct basis are also being investigated.

Net bad debt to credit ransactions increased to 3,5% from the previous
year's 3,0%"". Net bad debt write-off to debtors increased to 8,3% from
the previous year's 7,4%"".

in the past year a sizeable proportion of customers indicated a preference
Key debtor statistics 2008 2007 for repaying their accounts over extended periods. They will now be
’ accommodated by the group’s introduction of a 12-month plan as a
default option (although a 6-month facility can still be chosen by both
existing and new credit customers). During the course of the next year
customers will have the aption of moving to the full 12-month facility.
This exercise will bring relief to some customers in that they can lower
the amounts of their instalments, while others can raise the total of their
purchases while still paying the same monthly instalments. This should
have a stimulatory effect on sales throughout the group.

Number of active accounts ('000)
Credit sales as a % of total retail sales
Net debtors’ book {Rm)

Arrear deblors % to debtors’ book
Net bad debt write-off* as a % of
credit transactions

Net bad debt write-off* as a % of
debtors’ book

Doubtful debt provision as a % of
debtors’ boak

% able to purchase

Prospects

Despite the present economic downturn and some negative sentiment
in the market, the division's objectives will be the continued efficient
managerment of debtors and the achievement of growth in the customer
base. If these objectives can be attained they will provide a meaningful
contribution to the group's overall performance.

" Including VAT, excluding movement in provision.
** Restated to exclude R13,8 million abnormal sale of written off accounts.
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The RCS Group

The RCS Group is a majority-owned but operationally independent division
which provides a bioad range of financial services to customers of the
Foschini group and also to customers of unrelated retailers.

The RCS Group consists of three separate business units named
Transactional Finance, Fixed Term Finance and Other Investments.

The Transactional Finance unit is a card business made up of two
sub-units, one providing a general-purpose credit card known as the
RCS Card, and the oiher sub-unit being concerned with private label card
programmes.

The Fixed Term Finance unit also comprises two sub-units, known as
RGS Personal Loans and RCS Home Loans.

The Other Investments unit is at this stage limited to holding 60% of the
shares in Effective Intelligence (Pty) Limited, a data intelligence cornpany.

Whilst there is a degree of commonality in systems and some sharing of
operational resources, the business units are functionally separate and
have their own figkds of operation, management teams, budgets and profit
models. The degision to differentiate the businesses was taken at the
establishment of this division in 1999 in order to ensure that the Foschini
group’s focus on its traditional trading activities was not lest, and that all
profits and costs associated with this division were clearly ring-fenced.

&6 + Foschini Group Annual Report 2008
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Review of the year

The weakening economic conditions which prevailed 1§ the second half of
the past year took their toll on the RCS Group and §pe outcome was a
decline of 19,7% in profit before tax.

Factors feading to this decline were:

® an over-generous supply of consumer credit by
in & period preceding the implementation of th
(NCA) on 1 June 2007 — what has become kn
Gold Rush;

+  asignificant pull-back in credit purchases after 1 une 2007 coupled
with generally unfavourable market conditions;

ny credit suppliers
ational Credit Act
n as the pre-NCA

¢ the removal by the NCA of artificial regulatory Hrriers, resulting in
credit market convergence and margin-shavingfpy credit suppliers
under heavily competitive conditions;

¢ the effect of rising inflation on consumers’ budgetdgfor living expenses;

» Interest rate increases of 4,5% over the previcugtwo years, eroding
customers’ spending power and squeezing produgt margins;

* a significant worsening in patterns of payment B credit customers

across the whole market; and

s increased coliection costs t0 combat payment fefaults stemming
from some of the factors mentioned above.

Despite the setbacks it inflicted, the past year @pened up various
opportunities for the RCS Group to diversify its opgrations and make
significant investments in infrastructure. Major investrients were made in:

« personnel for the management team, both execufre and operational;

+ premises leased to allow the division ta consolid@e its aperations at
a single location;

¢ data warehouse and business intelligence systeng; and
* strategic investmenis in the form of the acqgsition of Effective

Intelligence (Pty) Limited.

During the year the RCS Group maved further t
becoming a fully-fledged South African consumer
expanding its product range, improving its solid bugness platform and
enhancing its infrastrocture.
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Transactional Finance

changes made to its business model in 2006 which led to greater support
by merchants. The general-purpose RCS Card is now accepted in the
businesses of more than 7 500 merchants nationally across various
industries, Thus the unit's cardholders have better utility than before.

I
; The RCS Cards unit has undergone spectacular growth as a result of

The Private Labe! Cards unit, which continues to be a strategic growth
busingss, again grew the number of customers and turnover in the
Queenspark portiolio above expectations. The credit operations of
Massdiscounters (MDD}, which were acquired in the course of the
year, wili be a significant addition to the private labe! card operations.
The acquisition is awaiting final approval from the competition autherities,

2008 % change 2007

Transactional Finance Rm Rm
Interest income 3548,8 46,6 238,0
Interest expense 79,4) 80,0 (44,1)
Qther income 1!40.5 773 791

Total income 4:09.9 50,0 273,0
Net bad debt (1_:69,4) 1620 (64,7}
Credit costs (140,1) 456 (96,2)

Profit before tax and minorities 1:00,4 (10,5)

Transactionat Finance

- Key debtor statistics 2007
Mumber of active accounts ('000) 366
Net debtors' book (Rm) 8267
Arrear debtors % to deblors 20,3
Net bad debt write-off as a % of

credit transactions 35
Net bad debt write-off as a % of

debtors’ book 4.4
Boubtful debt provision as a % of

debtors’ book 76
Applicants granted credit (%) 47,9
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Review of the year

Merchant turnover through our cards in the past year was R1,36 billion
{2007 R1,4 hillion). in the current market this is a significant
achievement.

The introduction of a single-format card with lower merchant commission
rates in August 2005 has had an extremely positive impact on merchant
acceptance and consequently on turnover through the card. The wider
acceptance has also lifted the number of new accounts, the active base
rising to 435 000 {2007: 366 000). The RCS Card continues to make
inrgads into the broader card market.

Revenue growth was strongly positive as a result of better product pricing,
robust book growth over a three-year period and increased credit turnover.

Net bad debt cost increased significantly as a result of the lagged effect
of strong book growth since 2005. Arrear debtors have increased to
29,1% {2007: 20,3%) of the portfolio, This reflects the effect of adverse
market conditions and the continuing upward trends in interest rates and
levels of indebtedness, with the excessive credit granted by some
lenders before the implementation of the NCA also playing a rcle.
This increased risk has been covered in the increased provision made on
the portfolio. It is, however, expected that debtor statistics will normalise
in the next year.

Credit costs have been contained at less than revenue growth. Increased
costs arose mainly from collection costs and from investment in key skills
and infrastructure. Further investments in skills and infrastructure are still
being made to enahle the unit to provide superior service ta its merchants
and customers.

Tight control was exercised on direct costs under the unit's control and as
a result the cost-to-income ratio decreased to 34,1% (2007: 35,2%).

Prospects

Credit turnover is expected to rise despite current tough trading
conditions. This should lead to continued healthy book and revenue
growth. Although bad debt growth can be expected to remain high during
the coming year, rising revenue coupled with strong cost control should
result in satisfactory performance in the future.

The unit is well positioned o utilise new channels and to add to existing
private label prograrnmes. The business model fundamentals are therefore
in place to provide sustainahle profit growth over the longer term.
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Fixed Term Finance

This unit provides personal loans to customers of thegroschini group and
to others, Customers are attracted by the convenienge and simplicity of
the RCS personal loan offer, with a large part of the prtess being handled
telephonically. The high level of repeat loans attests § the appeal of the
toan madal,

The selection criteria for loan applicants remain strit, whilst response
modelling has been improved. The unit's challenge infhe next year, when
tough trading conditions are again expected, wilk b;‘o balance volume
growth with product profitability and credit risk.

Fixed Term Finance

Interest income
Interest expense

Other income 925
-

Total income i 3708 ]

Net bad debt - (84.3) |

Credit costs [ {117,3) !

R |

Profit before tax and minorities

Fixed Term Finance
— Key debtor statistics

Number of active accounts {000)
Net debtors' book (Rm}

Arrear debtors % to debtors

Net bad debt write-off as a % of
debtors’ book

Doubtiul debt provision as a % of
debtors’ book

Review of the year

RCS Persanal Loans' profit before tax has been hamgered by higher bad
debt provisions, increased bad debt write-offs and pRgssures on product
margin stemming from increased cost of borrowings agd higher collection
costs.
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Net interest revenue declined as a consequence of the smaller debtors’ New Ventures
book and increased borrowing costs. Interest hedging mitigated some of
the higher borrowing costs. Other income increased as a result of some
pricing adiustments to fees after the implementation of the NCA.

The RCS Group made an acquisition of 60% of the shareholding in
Effective Intefligence, a data intelligence company. Although this
acquisition was strategic in nature, its profits, whilst not material for the
Arrear debtors increased to 14,3% (2007: 8,6%) of the portfolio. group, exceeded expectations.

The fagtors which affected this unit's bad dabt position are similar to those
experienced in the Transactional Finance unit referred to above.
The increased risk of default has resulted in increased amounts for bad
debt provisions and write-offs.

Credit costs increased by 27,5% mainly as a result of higher collection
costs and the unit’s investment in key skills and infrastructure,
Tight control was exercised on direct costs under the unit's control,
As a result, the cost-to-income ratio remains acceptable at 31,6%
(2007: 24,8%) when taking into account the lack of book growth and the
significant investments made during the past year.

All key debtor statistics were affected by the lower debtors’ book, the
reduction in its size resulting mainly from lower credit advances after the
implernentation of the NCA. Taking into account the lower levels of
advances ang debtors' book growth the rise in key debtor ratios remaing
in ling with current market trends.

Prospects

The Fixed Term Finance unit remains a profitable business wiih significant
growth opportunities, Before the implementation of the NCA the fixed-term
loan offer was capped at R10 000 in amount and 36 months in duration.
By utitising some of the posi-NCA opportunities and after conducting
extensive market research, the unit launched a new personal loan product
guring the tast quarter of the 2008 year. Some of its features are:

* alonger term (capped at 60 months);

* 3 higher amount (loans in excess of R10 000); and
» flexible risk-based pricing to compete in wider market segments.
This product should allow the unit to increase credit advances and grow
the debtars' book in the next year. High levels of recoveries are atso
expected because of write-offs in the past, an improvement in the

arrears position in the coming year and a better risk mix among
customers for the new product.

This will have a positive impact on the new year.
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group finance and administration

The Group Finance and Administration division is a centralised service
division that provides support to the ather divisions in the group.
The division's functions cover the following areas of responsibility:

Financial accounting and corporate reporting

This department is responsible for:

e the coltating and production of the group's interim and annual
financial staternents;

* corporate communications and shargholder reporting;

» ensuring compliance with all required acgounting standards and
statutory requirements; and

= liaison with the external auditors.

Management accounting

Management accounting comprises:

= control of the group's financial accounting systerns and internal
contros;

+ co-ordination and consolidation of all the group’s financial planning,
inciuding annual budgets and quarterly re-projections;

* divisional financial reporting to enable accurate management
decision-making; and

* all operational financial reporting at store, area, regional and divisional
level.

General finance and administration

General finance and adminisiration comprises:

e processing and payment of alt merchandise costs, expenses and
rental transactions;

« ensuring that all stores deposit the correct amounts daily; and

« administration of store and head office inventory and claims.

The maintenance and development of the SAP financial system is

included in the division's responsibilities. The division intends to continug

to investigate the use of other modules within SAP in order to obtain the
full benefits of the integration capabilities of the system.
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Treasury

This departmeni is responsible for managing the grougs foreign exchange
and funding policies. The department ensures that §e group’s funding
needs are provided for with adequate credit lines and §opropriate financial
instruments at the lowest cost, and that daily ¢ management is
optimised. Investments and interest rate risk are mangged in consultation
with the Financial Director within the parameters laidglown by the board.
The department, in conjunction with the Taxation depgtment, assists with
various commercial inittatives that affect the group.

Taxation

This department is responsible for all aspects of
compliance. By its nature, it is staffed by highly

group's taxation
illed experts who

constantly remain abreast of current and pending leglation.
Secretarial and administration

This department is responsible for:

* maintenance oi the group’s statutory records;

= administration of the Foschini Group Retirement Qund:

o administration of the group's trademarks;

+ administration relating to the preparation and si&ing of the group's
store leases;

» the group's compliance function; and

o provision of legal assistance and advice to otherdivisions of
the group.

Risk management

The risk management department is responsible r the
following functions:

process, as defined by the risk committee as
required by the Code of Corporate Practiceg and
Conduct;

* managing and controlling the risk manag;ent

e obtaining and maintaining appropriate insurdgce for
the group;

O 0 C
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¢ the administration of all group insurance claims and the compitation
of comprehensive loss statistics;

= control over the group business continuity planning process; and

facilitation of inter-divisional store security meetings, as well as the
hosting of similar informal meetings with other retaiters to allow
cross-poltination of loss prevention information and sirategies.

A detailed risk anatysis is contained in the corporate governance report.
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Non-merchandise procurement

The group procurement process ensures that best practice is followed in
all areas of the purchasing process throughout the group. Quarterly
procurement reporis are made to the procurement committee, comprising
three members of the operating board and two senior managers.
In addition, the procurement manager ensures that the BBBEE
procurement strategy as defined by the transformation commitiee is
implemented. Further details of initiatives in this regard are contained in
the sustainability report.
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service divisions continued

group audit services

The Group Audit Services (GAS) division's primary responsibility is to
support the group’s commitment to strong corporate governance and
sound internal control. While management is responsible for the
development, implementation and monitoring of efiective control
systems, GAS assists management in fulfiling this commitmen.
This is done by evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of conirols
to support management in its pursuit of sustainable achievement of
business objectives. lis scope includes the appraisal of performance
measures, the reliability of management information, operational
controls and the safeguarding of assats.

An internal audit charter, approved by the audit committee of the
board, determines the scope and mission of GAS' activities.
The charter conforms to the International Standards for the
Professional Practice of internal Auditing as defined by the Institute of
Internal Auditors (I1A).

Although GAS is responsible to the Financial Director for
administrative matters, GAS reports to the audit committee.

The 17 staff members of GAS are responsible for the audits of
all group operations.

N
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Head office and information system

The head office and information system {IS) audit teams cg-operate closely to
provide internal audit services for the group's head offige operations. This
includes financial areas, such as accounis payable ar@l the large credit
operations, as well as non-financial areas, including shopfitting, risk
management and distribution centres.

In addition, the IS audit team conducts technical reviews cdgering Foschinidata
areas such as database administration and networks.

The audit teams make extensive use of technology sfich as automated
scanning and data interrogation tools to improve assufance reporting to
management. in addition, auditors often become involved hen new computer
sysiems are developed in order to ensure that cost-efgctive controls are
considered at both the system design stage {prior to ifgplementation) and
during system implementation. In this way the risk of busgess interruption is
reduced.

Store audits

Current store audit coverage is between 15% and 20% & group stores per
year (approximately 25% of all stores’ tumnover), but m@dmum Jeverage is
obtained by ensuring that at least 85% of all the area magggers experience a
minimum of one audit every year. The audited stofe's administrative
performance can then be benchmarked against that of otheg stores in the same
trading division.

The store audit team has developed a scoring sy§em that enables
managernent to evaluate the administrative health of stoges both within and
across trading divisions. Given the geographic spread of sifires, as far afield as
Mamibia and Botswana, the planning of visits is crucial @ ensuring that the
planned coverage is met. The experience and professiogalism of the store
auditors has contributed significantly to the success of thestore audit team.

Control workshops for field and store management are hegl regularly.
Goals

GAS is committed $o providing quality internal audit serviges at a competitive
cost. This is done by measuring and monitoring audit prductivity and other
performance factors, and keeping abreast of internationalgrends. The (T audit
team recently completed the configuration of a standalogp facility to support
the testing of sophisticated audit tools in a controlled envigonment.

internal auditors with a mobile work environment &
Implementation of the EWP software for the head offige audit teams has
bean completed and phased implementation for store agdits will commence
during 2009.




OO0 OCcCOO0OO0OO0C

; COO0O0C00C0C OCO0OCcCOO0OO00CO0O0O0O0OCOO0
000 | C000C0O00O000C0O0O0O0O0O0C0OO0O0O0O0O00O0C0OO0OCOO0O
Q00 ' COoOO0OCOO0OQ0OCO0OOQOO00O0CO0OCOOO0OO0OO0O

¥
'

foschinidata

Foschinidata, the division responsible for the group’s in-house information
and communication technology (ICT) services, experienced a high level of
activity during the past year. Planned future activity will be egually intense,
bearing testimony to the group’s continuing reliance on this technology
{ICT) and to the benefits it offers to the retail industry.

The division has developed an ICT delivery madel which allows the group
to undertake large and technically challenging projects on time and within
budget. This medel was put to full use in the past year in an ongoing drive
to improve operational efficiencies and reduce costs.

Key initiatives successfully achieved during the past year included the
following:

* replacement of the group’s sales audit system with the Windows
Bizialk system;

* introduction on a pilot basis of an electronic time and attendance
system for the group's stores;

* developmant of an electronic funds transfer (EFT) system which is
integrated at store level with the group's point-of-sale {(POS) system;

* implementation of a system known as “Size Scaling by Inteliect” to the
retait apparel divisions (so that the correct sizes and quantities of
garments can be determined for delivery to stores in accordance with
thelr history of sales}; and

= the roll-out of an electronic style card system to the retail divisions.
Total capital expanditure of the ICT division for the year amounted to
R59 million. Operating expenses were R184 million, representing 2,3% of

sales. Budgeted operating expenses for the next year are broadly in line
with those of the past year and capital expenditure will grow by 20%.

Key initiatives for the 2009 year include:

« commencement of roll-out of the time and attendance system to all
the group's stores;

* commencement of the EFT system in all the group's stores;

e upgrading of the @home division's merchandise and planning
systems;

» upgrading of the group’s data storage and data back-up technologies;

oB'cen.t fwttg

¢ commencement of a threg-year process t0 replace the existing
warehouse management system in the group’s distribution centres
with a system known as Manhattan;

e jmplementation of an advanced security and Intrusion prevention
system on the group's networks;

= commencement of a business user data mining and business
intelligence (Bl initiative (which provides a central repository of
business data for analysis and interrogation at different levels Dy the
use of open-source tools);

« continuation of a server consolidation and virtualisation programme
designed to improve operational efficiencies, reduce infrastructure
costs and reduce the carbon footprint of the ICT infrastructure, and
hence align it with the group's "Environment Green” initiative; and

e developing and enhancing various credit systems to cater for new
financial products.

With governance objectives in view, a number of exercises werg
conducted to test the disaster recovery plans on which the group relies for
business continuity.

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 = 73
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service divisions continued

' group logistics

Structure and functions Review of the year

The Group Logistics division is responsibie for managing stock received in the past year the DCs handled 44,0 million units {.dl individual items of

from suppliers and for distributing it to stores efficiently and on time. stock), reflecting a drop of 0,5% in unit velumes fromighe previous year. ‘
The group has eight distribution centres (DCs) based near the head office The cost per unit to process stock through the DCY was 4,6% higher }
in Cape Town. From them takes place the group’s entire stock distribution than last year, which was well below the CPIX rgte notwithstanding

function, including receiving, storage, picking, packing and despatching. significant increases in diesel fuel prices. Without the uel price increases

the cost per unit would have remained at last year's figure. This reflects a
substantial improvement in productivity.

The DCs together with the divisions or operations they serve are as

Tollows:

« Tygerberg DC: Foschini, Donna-claire, Fashionexpress footwear, Productivity figures in the form of cost per unit and unifs per man-hour are
@home and returned goods; closely measured and benchmarked against correspofding figures of the

* @homelivingspace DC: a new site for furniturg; world's leading retailers.

¢ Ndabeni DC: Exact!, Markham and Style Accumulation (comprising The cost of logistics as a percentage of group tuspover was 1,55%,
certain partly-completed orders); representing a slight improvement on the 1,57% achieved in the

previous year. This figure includes depreciation, ind@strial engineering,

management costs, labour, packaging and outbound gansport.

¢ Sports DC: Totalsports, Sportscene and DueSouth;

» Foschini DC: Foschini, Donna-claire and Fashionexpress apparel;

The materials handling improvement programme

the installation of the final RapidPac materialsyhandling system.

This equipment was acquired to provide better efficighcy in the handiing

*  Shopfitting DC: Shopfitting stock for the group. of flew-through products. The DCs that support replgnishment continue
to operate by the use of radio frequency devices, ghich have greater
flexibility.

* Jewellery DC: American Swiss, Sterns, Matrix and Foschini Jeweliery;
+ Cloth Store: Fabric for local production of apparel; and

With the aim of improving stock turn, the division wgll in tha next year
make a start on replacing Nautilus, the current warggouse management
software, with Manhattan, which is the leading sofware in this field.
The change-over will be implemented throughout thd DCs over the next
three to four years. There will be a simultaneouq critical review of
business processes in order to maximise supply ghain effectiveness.
This replacement will ba important in supporting the group's supply chain
initiative which is referred to below.

During the year the division put out to tender the guthound transport
business, with the result that new contracts were siqned with HRP, RAM
and Grindrod Logistics (Boltt).

The major risk associated with the DCs is fire. Fige-fighting training, ‘
maintenance of fire-fighting equipment, atmaspneric fetection and inter- |
rack sprinkler systems mitigate the risk of fire or at lgast of extensive fire i
damage, and close attention was again given 1o thesg issues.
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Generators have been provided at all the DCs in order to avoid
or minimise the ill effects of electricity interruptions.

Security is an important element of the distribution opearation, particularty
at and near the time of transportation. The group’s DCs are equipped
with CCTV cameras and are guarded 24 hours a day. As part of the
security procedures, accaess control systems are in place. The group's
security procedures are extended to its transport partners, who have
comprehensive security through a combination of secured premises and
satellite-tracked vehicles. Security measures again received close
attention in the past year in view of the high incidence of crime in
South Africa.

Business continuity pians are in place and they were again regularly tested
and reviewed by the group's risk committee.

Supply chain initiative

Mention has been made In the previous annual rgport and in various
reports in this document of the group's supply chain initiative, an extensive
and ongoing review of the group's supply chain practices. ts objective is
to devalop a sustainable and world-class model of supply chain
management that enhances the group’s capabilities in the fast fashion
retail business.

There are four projects within this initiative, namely:

= Supplier relationship management.

« Lead time.

¢ Replenishment.

¢ Foschini and Exact! pipeline management,

The plan for all the projects has been scoped 1o include the following
targets, which are deemed to be critical to the success of the initiative:
e defined standard operating procedures;

* shorter lead times;

* guarantead quality;

+ enhanced refiability;

« reduced wasle within the supply chain; and

= decreased inventory holding, hence more rapid stock tum.

There has been pleasing progress with the initiztive and it is expected that
significant early benefits will be realised in the next year.
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Group values

The Foschini Group Values are as follows:

* we maintain our integrity by being honest, open agd ethical in all our

dealings;
h UMman resources * we are committed to providing “exceeding service§to customers and
giving them value for money;

e we treat people with dignity and respect and engure a supportive,
The role of the Group Human Resources (HR) division is o set and encouraging envirenment;
implement strategies for human interaction within the group, working in = we believe in equal opportunity and development gor all, and reward
collaboration with the group’s trading and service divisions. The HR people fairly according to responsibility, effort and performance; and
division also provides & common platform to group companies for the * we are committed to self-critical professionalisng with visible and
provision of best practice HR. consistent standards and a constant search§for performance
The services listed below are provided by the division and are directed at improvement.
the group's employees and at HR practitioners working within the group's Talent management
trading and service divisions:

) The management of talent, which encompasses recruitgient, performance

* management of the group’s payroll for its more than 15 000

managament, development, succassion planning and
priorfty function in the division. This is a critical fun
prevailing shortage of skilis in South Africa and the i
which takes place to atiract and retain talented emplo
view of the requirements of the Employment Equity Act
s reward; are conductad twice a year and on the basis of their ¢
+ talent development; development plans are then formulated and carried
 grganisational structure management; departures of employees from the group are monit
group to react fo any risks that might endanger adet
falent retention.

employees;

+ management of policies regarding benefits and the practices

; ) o ense competition
associated with all these policies;

es, particularly in
EA). Talent audits
ults retention and
ut. Trends in the
d to enable the
ate employee or

& performance management;

®  [gsourcing;

« employment equity and transformation;
* fraining and development; Details follow of some of the division’s ongoing activiti
in the past year.

and action taken

* industrial relations and dispute resolution; and
* corporate social responsibility (CSD. Recruitment: An on-ling recruitment tool, accessible
wehsite, has been developed and is being used to i
candidates for vacancies in the group. Psycho
assessment tools are used to enhance its effectivens
appointments were made by its use during the past
given to internal candidates as part of the group
advancing the careers of its employees.

ough the group’s
ntify and process
etric tests and
. More than 800
ar. Preference is
commitment to

n oroviding these services the division makes use of specialised
informatien technology aimed at providing data where and when it can be
used most effectively.

The group recognises that its success is dependent on the full
commitment of its employees within an occupational framework that is
moral, fair, has social consclence and can readily be managed. The HR

division carries out the value management process as one of its functions. Performance management; Employees are reviewed aBainst measurable
As a result all HR policies and processes rest on a foundation supplied by goals set in March of each year and progress reviews ale conducted twice
a code of values which has become known as the Foschini Group Values. a year, The reviews are supported by training and devegpment plans in a
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service divisions continued

constant drive to raise levels of employee competence. Tha process of
review, traditionally less than systematic and open to subjective
influences, has been moved on te a far more satisfactory plane by the use
of the competency wheel illustrated batow. It displays the success factors
required from the group’s employees and allocates weightings to them.
This model was devised through intensive internal and external research
and all the factors which are faken into account during recruitment,
development and promotion of staff are to be found on it. It provides a
single simple tooi for use throughout the group, enabling objective
measurement and comparison to be made in all gircumstances.

Talent develapment: During the past year there has been intense fecus on
improving the training of employees. This has resulted in & reorganisation
of training structures within the trading divisions in favour of a centralised

Process

Infrapersonal
management

skills

training structure. The objective of this training is to build both generic
business competence and leadership competence.

For these purposes the division launched:

* g retail academy for store managers;

+ a buyer and merchandise planner frainee development programme
aimed at newly-employed talent; and

+ 2 buyer and merchandise planner academy for haning the skills of
existing merchants.

All of these are in-house developments specifically designed to cater for
identified skills requirements within the group.

The retail academy for store managers touches every stare manager and
potential store manager both nationally and in Narnibia.

The curriculum is aimed primarily at advancing the following goals and
objectives:

+ davelopment of businass skilis and improved retail knowledge;

* managing employse relations and performance; and

+ gquipping stare managers as coaches to develop their staff,

The buyer and planner trainee development programme
is available to new and young talent in the group.
The programme {s run over a period of 18 o 36 months
and combines fechnical and generic interventions to
build the capacity of the trainegs. The programme

- SUCCESS
~ FACTORS

Leadership
and
management

weay speat

Functional / Technical /
Knowledge / Skifls

includes a coaching companent by which each trainge is
trained on a personal basis by a technical coach as well
as a senior mentor.

Reward: Best practice in the area of reward is

critical in this environment where there is intense

competition for skilled people. A number of projects have

been completed in this connection to ensure that our

approaches are up to date and relevant and that they provide

the group with the best opportunity to employ and retain people.

With these objectives in mind the division has implemented a new job

gvaluation system designed to achieve more effective measurement and
comparison of jobs internally and externally.
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service divisions continued

numan resources continued

Leadership

) Passage 6:
/ Enierprise/Group Leader [ \

N Fassrgs & Busiess

Black Management

P 'unctional Leader

Passage 3: Leads Managers

Passage 2: Manages Others

Passage 1: Manages Self 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

courses and interventions and curriculums for rgerchants and field

and store managers are in place.

A “pipeline” leadership model similar to the one illustrated above is
intended to provide a framework to grow leaders to meet an organisation’s
future {eadership requirements. The develepment of such a model has .
been a matter of high priority in the past year. The model created by the
division highlights key milestongs that make up the developmental
process for future leaders. Each milestone requires that the subject gain
proficiency in a variety of competencias that are associated with a critical

was entrenched inte the organisation during the dast year and will be
used extansively in the talent management regews that are held
twice a year.

Measuring performance: The performance m{agement process

career stage. Caregr progression is based on mastery of these concepts,
given sufficient time te achieve competence. The process is supplemented
by assessments, specialised training, coaching, and varicus projects and
assignments. The capability of each developing leader is carefully
monitored and raviewed. Individuals advance on this journey according to
their level of performance and capability.

Employment equity (EE)

The group is committed to being a demographically representative
organisation which gives competent individuals equal opportunity at all
levels and on all occasions. It operates through the following policies:

«  Sourcing. Trainee recruitment has focused on black candidates during
the past year and a total of 70% of all trainees that were appointed
were from this group.

s Development: Employees’ needs have been identified during
performance development discussions and talent assessment maps
have been used to identify employees who will benefit from focused
coaching interventions and one-to-one mentoring. Specific training
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The policies outlined above have led to an increase of}

h7% since 2003 in

0% were women.

the number of appointments of black individuals to poiéions in middle and

senior management in the greup. Cf these appointees

Skills levy

The maximum available rebate from the Whelesa

and Retail SETA

During the past year the group paid skills Ieviei of R9,8 million.

was recovered. Further details on this topic are set ou
report.

HIV/AIDS

n the sustairability

The voluntary counselling and testing (VCT) proliramme that was
introduced during the previous year is now well entregched. It is availabile

to all employees in South Africa and negotiations are

der way to extend

it to Namibia. The group arranges for free treatmeht to be provided,
including antiretroviral therapy, to any employee who | HIV-positive.

Since September 2006 a tofal of 538 employess fave accessed the
VCT programme and 30 employees have enrclled Jor treatment. It is

recognised that employee participation is low and it i
its reach nationally during the next year.

planned to expand
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group services

The Group Services division's mission is to add value to the operations of
other divisions by providing expert and streamfined facilities management
services so that the other divisions are enabled o achieve operational
efficiency and workplace well-being on a cost-effective basis. The division
comprises 70 staff members, a number which has been static for some
years.

Outsourced suppiiers are used extensively, with a focus on those with
retail expertise. Benefits are extracted for the group by implementing strict
service level agreements across the board and utilising a limited number
of suppliers well known to the group. Service level agreements incorporate
provisions recognising the uniqueness of the group and addressing its
special needs and methodologies.

Once (eases for space have been concluded, the Group Services division
ensures that the premises are supplied with the necessary fittings and
equipment, whether the premises comprise warehouses or offices.

Another function of the division is to ensure that ongoing maintenance of
all buildings, plant and equipment takes place. In total, 19 properties are
managed on this basis.

These functions include management of the instaltation and maintenance
of all security, {ire detection and access control systems, as well as
implementing and managing the occupational health and safety
programme. From a governance perspective all security and fire
évacuation systems are tested on a regular basis. All offices, with the
gxception of the non-critical Isando preperty, have back-up power
generators. Isando has extended uninterrupted power supply (UPS)
battery life.

The Group Services division also attends to the procurement of
standardised office automation equipment (printers, copiers, awdiovisual),
vehicles and capital equipment other than computers.

The fleet department operates within the mandated capital budget,
monitors expenditure levels and negotiates volume discounts through
approved suppliers.

Monitoring of mailrooms, reception areas, switchboards and store alarms
are among the services provided.

Outsourced contractors managed by the division include those providing
catering, physical guarding, gardening, architectural, mechanical,
electronic and electrical and travel services.
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service divisions continued

group property

The Group Property division is responsibte for administering the group's
leases of space for all iis stores, which numbered 1 393 at the year-end,
and for administering three properties which the group has histosically
owned and from which it still trades. The division’s tasks include assessing
space requirements and matching them with suitable properties,
negotiating leases and extensions of leases with landlords and
maintaining relationships with landlords over the periods of leases that
sometimes extend for as long as ten years.

Property rental payments make up the second largest item of expenditure
for the group, and it is accordingly vitat o optimise the benefits to be
gained from rentals.

The group's policy is to rent rather than to own since, for a trader, the role
of a tenant as againgt that of an owner provides greater flexibility and
makes it possible for impartial decisions to be taken about all matters
affecting properties.

The group’s three owned properties are located in the central business
districts of Cape Town, Johannesburg and Durban respectively, and have
been in ils possession for several decades.

Store openings and space acquisition

During the year under review 76 new Stores were openeg across the
group’s 14 trading units. The net total trading area grew by almast
23 000 square metres, an increase of 6,0% on the previous year.
At the end of the year the group's 1 393 stores occupied a total of
403 601 square metres of space.

The Foschini womenswear division {comprising Foschini, Donna-claire,
Fashionexpress and Luelta) added the largest amount of exira space with
19 new stores.

The jewellery and sports divisions opened 19 and 15 new stores
respectively. The jewellery units comprise American Swiss, Sterns and
Matrix, while Totalsports, Sportscene and DueSouth make up the sports
division.

Markham increased its footprint by an additional ten stores nationally.
Included in these were four Markham Relay stores which carry only
casualwear and, being about 150 square metres in ared, are smaller than
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a full-line Markham store. The Markham Relay bran# is seen as having
substantial expansion potential.

The homeware division opened a further ten stores, oge of which cne was
an @homelivingspace store in the Loch Logan m@l in Bloemfontain,
carrying a comprehensive product range that included furiture.

Exact! cpened three new stores during the yeall adding an extra
i 445 square metres to this division's trading space.

Across the group twelve stores were enlarged in keyllocations to relieve
the pressure of excessive trading densities, whilst the §ading area in three
over-sized stores was reduced.

Afurther 14 stores were relocated to superior trading gositions and “right-
sized” in the process. A total of 15 underperforming eres were closed.

New centres

New centres that opened during the course of the yelr and in which the
group is represented were:

Maponya Mall (Soweto);

Greenstone (East Rand;

Ireng Mall (Pretoria);

Hillcrest {KwaZulu-Natal); and

Loch Logan {Bloemiontein).
The group intends to open stores in the next year inghumerous centres,
among them the following new centres:

Zevenwacht {(Western Cape);

Westwood (Westville);

Wonderboom {Pretoria North};

Richards Bay (KwaZulu-Natal);

The Reds (Pretoria);

Jeffreys Bay {Eastern Cape);
Klerksdorp {North West Province); and
Kathu (Northern Cape).

Some 30 new stores are scheduled to open within the first few weeks of

the new financial year.
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Growth in trading space

Despite the Eskom power shortages and the current subdued retail
conditions the construction of new retail buildings in South Africa is
continuing apace. The group intends to take advaniage of new
opportunities which are emerging and will increase its trading' space by
approximately 10% in the next yaar, as against a rate of approximately 7%
in preceding years.

The current phase of construction will thus provide the group with a
welcome opportunity to raise its activity in space acquisition and marks a
departure from acquisition levels that prevailed in the corresponding
phase of previous business cycles. The programme for the immediate
future will be undertaken on a highly selective basis, with a view to
enahling the group to benefit fully from the upturn when the business
cycle changes.

Factors influencing current property policy decisions ‘

The division continuousty assesses irading performance in relation to the
location of its stores and naturally pays particular attention to sites where
it has a very large presence. Among these are Menlyn (Pretoria East),
Gateway (Umhlanga), Canal Walk (Cape Town), Sandton (both Sandton City
and Sandion Square), Eastgate {Johannesburg East), Montana {Pretoria
North-East), Mitchells Plain (Cape Town), Westville Pavilion (KwaZulu-
Natal), East Rand Mall, Cresta {Johannesburg) and Tygervalley (Cape
Town). This assessment process will be particularly intense in the current
weak economic climate.

A trend in shopping centre design which is on an upward curve
internationally at present is that of so-called “open” malls, which are
generally low-rise buildings configured around parking areas. For
developers this style of design is substantially cheaper than madnolithic
multi-storey “closed” complexes, with a benafit of ower rental to tenants.
Two types of these “open” malls have emerged. One attracts value-based
traders and is not of primary interest to the group, although some of its
divisions are represented in these centres. The other is what may be called
“lifestyle” centres accommaodating stores that sell homeware and furniture
and other specialist retailers, and also providing social gathering points
such as restaurants and coffee bars. The group is well reprasented in
complexes of this design.

Another trend which is emerging overseas but has yet to make a
significant appearance in South Africa is “green” architecture for shopping
centres, involving eco-friendly features to save electricity, water and ather
resources. This trend could have significant benefits for tenants and the
group will press for these measures at sites where they are appropriate.

Effects of electrical power outages

Retailers have a particular aversion to power outages since history shows
that sales lost during hours when trading cannot take place are never fully
recovered. (This is perhaps a reflection of the fact that some shopping is
done on a “want” basis rather than a “need” basis.)

There have been inevitable losses in the group as a result of the power
breakdowns suffered throughout South Africa in recent months, and much
thought is being given to possible solutions. The cost of instalting fully
satisfactory backup generating power in a large shopping centre may
exceed R100 million, and the extra capital to be invested, with dubious
returns, is a faclor of great concern to fandlords. Partial solutions which
provide adequate if lowish lighting, some air movement falling short of air-
conditioning and retention of power fo retailers' computerised tills, are a
compromise which large retail chains may have to accept. Even these
solutions are not always aitainable. At present, therefore, the outages
remain a problem in search of a solution. The national public authorities to
whom traders and trade associations have turned for remedies which are
essentially within their sphere of responsibility have so far not come
forward with a convincing action plan.

Security against crime

The past year has seen a shift in the patterns of crime experienced by
retailers, at least to the extent that gang-type incursions at shopping
centres are on the rise. These incidents invariably involve firearms and
usually cause loss of high-value stock on a substantial scate. There have
also been undue numbers of hold-ups of store personnel at gunpoint.
Traditional security precautions at shopping centres have been unavailing
against the bulk of these incidents and improved sirategies are called for.
This topic is receiving close consideration.
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The board of directors of Foschini Limited (referred to in this report as
Foschini) remains fully committed to business integrin‘;, fairness,
transparency and accountability in all its activities. In supbort of this
commitment, the board subscribes to the highest standards @)f corporate
governance in alt aspects of the business and to the ongoing develapment
and implementation of bast practices.

Foschini fully endorses the principles incorporated in tﬁe Code of
Corporate Practices and Conduct outlined in the second |King report
{King I, and in the listings requirements of the JSE Limited. r

Foschini has, in all material respects, complied with King ! and continually
sirives to enhance compliance. The application of King Il continues to
serve as a valuable guide to the entrenchmant of strong |governance
principles throughout the group. |

l
A hoard charter to give effect to these principles has been finalised and
awaits ratification and adoption. |

|
i
\

Main Board of directors

independent non-executive directors
E Osrin {Chairman)
0 M Nurek
Prof F Abrahams
S E Abrahams
L F Bergman #
WV Cuba
N H Goodwin
M Lewis

Non-executive director
D M Polak

Execulive directors
A D Murray (CED)*~
R Stein (Financial Directon)

# resigned with effect from 14 April 2008 !

* retired with effect from 31 December 2007 \

** appointed ta the board on 2 April 2007; appeinted CEQ on 1 January 2008
“** appointed 1 January 2008 !
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The main board of directors of Foschini Limited
Role and composition

Foschini has a unitary board structure which, at its 31 March 2008 year-
end, comprised two executive and nine non-executive directors. Eight of the
non-exacutive directors are independent according to the King Il definition.

Subsequent to 31 March 2008, L F Bergman resigned as & director,
reducing the board composition to ten directors, seven of whom are
independent non-executive directors. O M Polak, who became a non-
executive director on 1 January 2008, is not independent, based on the
King Il definition, as he has been employad in an executive capacity by the
group within the past three years.

The two executive directors are the Chief Executive Officer, A D Murray,
and the Financial Oirector, R Stein.

Detalled information on the directors and their credentials appear on
pages 12 and 13.

At 31 March 2008, the board and its committees were constituted as
follows:

Remuneration Committee
E Osrin {Chairman); Prof F Abrahams; D M Nurek
¢ J Ginsburg (Consultant)

Risk Committee
D M Nurek (Chairman); E Osrin; D M Polak; R Stein; A D Murray

Augdit Committee
S E Abrahams (Chairman); E Osrin; D M Nurek; N H Goodwin

Nominations Committee
E Osrin {Chairman); D M Nurek; S E Abrahams
D M Polak®, A D Murray*™*

Transformation Committee
E Osrin (Chairman); Prof F Abrahams; D M Polak*; R Stein;
A D Murray***; G S Naidoo (director, operating board)

o O 0O
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The non-executive directors come from diverse backgrounds in commerce
ang industry. Their collective experience enabies them to provide sound,
independent and objective judgement in decision-making that Is in the
best interests of the group. They are ultimately responsible for the
performance of the group, its long-term sustainable growth and the
enhancement of shareholder value. They review and ratify the. group’s
strategy in addition to monitering and measuring its performance and
executive management against key performance indicators. Theyl provide
opinion and advice regarding the group's financial, audit, governance and
risk management controls. In order to ensure sustainable leadership they
review group fransformation and succession planning at senior levels, and
provide input to the remuneration process.

The Chairman and Deputy Chairman are both independent non-executive
directors. The roles of the Chairman, E Osrin, and the Chief Erxecutive
Officer, A D Murray, are separate, with & clear division of responsibilities.
Both provide leadership and guidance to the company's board, encourage
deliberation on all matters requiring the board's aiention and obtain
optimum input from the other directors. All directors exercise unfettered
discretion in the fulfilment of their duties, resulting in constructive debate
at meetings that continues to yield well-considered decisions.

Newly-appointed non-executive directors hold office only until the next
annual general meeting, at which time they retire and become eligible for
re-election as directors. Each year, one-third of the existing board
members are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-
election as directors by the shareholders. Non-executive directors have no
fixed term of employment, and the performance of all directors is subject

to annual peer review, &

An induction programme for new directors is in place with the objéctive of
maximising their undersianding of the group and enabling them
immediately to provide input and make well-informed decisions.

Board meetings

The board typically meets quarterly in Cape Town, and further meetings
are held when nacessary. [

The board and its committees are timeously supplied with comprehensive
information to enable them to undertake meaningful discussion and
effectively discharge their duties. All directors have unrestricted access
to the company secretary and all company records, as well as to
independent professional advice at the company's expense In appropriate
circumstances. ‘

i
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Board evaluations

An annual evaluation of the board is undertaken by the Chairman by
means of a questionnaire sent to all board members. The results are
collated by the Chairman and feecback is provided to the full board.

This annual evaluation is comprehensive, encompassing all aspects of the
board's responsibilities. It covers both individual member contributions
and the effectiveness of the board as a whole. The results of the executive
and non-executive directors are separately tabulated, in order to gauge
any areas of differences in perception. No significant variances in this
regard were noted in the past year.

Areas of strength inctuded:

* confirmation of the group's compliance with stock exchange
requirements;

» the level of feedback and assurance from the audit committee; and

» the board's review and consideration of the annual budget.

Areas for improvement included:
» the succession plan for board membess;

* regular review of the board’s limits of authority; and

= ensuring that each board member is meeting board standards and
expectations.

Specific attention wilk be given in the next year to those areas where
improvement is indicated.

The nominations committee is responsible for assessing the composition
and effectiveness of all of the board committess. Where shortfalls are
identified, appropriate action is taken to rectify them.

Directors’ shareholdings

The direct and indirect holdings, share options and transactions of the
directors of Foschini at 31 March 2008 are set out in note 14.5,

Non-executive directors do not participate in the share incentive schemes,
with the exception of Mr D M Polak who obtained options whilst still an
executive of the company.

Personal share dealings

The board complies with the requirements of the JSE Limited in relation
to restrictions on the frading of Foschini's shares by directors and
employees during the defined closed periods. Restrictions may also be
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corporate governance report continued

placed on share dealings at other times if thg group Is involved in
corporate activity or sensitive negotiations. The company secretary notifies
all directors and employees prior to the commencement of the closed
trading pericds of the prohibitions contained in the Insider Trading Act
relating to share dealings whilst in possession of price-sensitive
information.

Details of directors' share dealings are disclosed to the listings division of
the JSE Limited and communicated through its electronic news service,
SENS. These dealings are also disclosed at board meetings. There is a
process in place in terms of the requirements of the JSE Limited for
directors o obtain prior ctearance before dealing in the company’s shares.
All transactions are conducted at the ruling market price on the
JSE Limited.

Succession

As is required by its charter, the nominations committee proposed the
following changes to directorships during the year and subseguent 1o the
year-end. These changes, approved by the main hoard, are aligned to the
group's succession planning, which is designed te ensure sustained
leadership.

Main board:

D M Polak retired from the position of Chief Executive Officer with effect

from 31 December 2007. His experience and expertisi will be retained as
he has remained on the board in the capacity of non-gxecutive director.

A D Murray was appointed an executive director or§2 April 2007 and
Chief Executive Officer on 1 January 2008. He previougy held the position
of retail director of all trading divisions other than the §oschini division.

S N Bowley, who was appointed as an executive direcr on 2 April 2007,
resigned from the group with effect from 1 August 2097.

L F Bergman resigned as an independent non-exedutive director with
effect from 14 April 2008.

Operating board:

0n 31 December 2007, D M Polak retired from the orrating board.
On 1 May 2008, D B Gedye was appointed to the opegating board.
Directors’ interests

The directors had no interest in contracts as contempﬂted in section 234
of the Companies Act.

Board attendance

The attendance of the directors at board meetings al‘p board committee
meetings for the year was as follows:

Audit flemuneration Risk Nominations Transformation

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Number of meetings 4 3 4 4 2 2
Directors Attendance
E Osrin 4 3 4 4 2 2
D M Nurek 4 3 4 4 2
F Abrahamg 4 4 2
S E Abrahams 4 3 2
L F Bergman Kl
WV Cuba 4
N H Goodwin 4 3
M Lewis 1
D M Potak 4 2 3 2 1 2
R Stein 4 Kh 4 2
A D Murray 4 3 1* 4 1
S N Bowley I 1~

“by Invitation **appointed 2 April 2007 ***appainted 1 January 2008 *retired with effect from 31 December 2007 *vesigned with effect from 1 August 2007 *“resigned
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Main board committees

The main board of directors has delegated specific responsibilities to
board committees, each with its own terms of reference that define its
powers and duties. The hoard committees meet independently and repaort
back to the board through their chairpersons. The compositionl of these
committees is reflected earlier in this report. |
i

Audit committee

The committee is governed by a formal charter that complies'with the
requirements of King il. This charter guides the committee in terms of its
objectives, authority and responsibilities.

The role of the audit committes is, inter alia:

* o review the effectivenass of the group's systems of internal controt,
including internal financial control and business risk management,
and to ensure that effective intemal control systems are maintained;

¢ {0 ensure that written representations on internal control are
submitted to the board annually by all divisional managing direciors
and general managers {these being representations that provide
assurance on the adeguacy and effectiveness of the group's systems
of internal coniral};

= to monitor and supervise the effective functioning and performance of
the internal auditors;

* o ensure that the scope of the internal audit function has no
limitations imposed by management and that there is no impairment
of its independence;

* to evaluate the independence, effectiveness and performance of the
external auditors and obtain assurance from the auditors that
adequate accounting records are being maintained;

« the appointment of the external auditers on an annual basis;

+ toensure that the respective roles and functions of external audit and
internal audit are sufficiently clarified and co-ordinated; and

* o review financial statements for proper and complete disclosure of
timely, reliatde and consistent information, and to confirm that the
accounting policies used are appropriate.

The committee consists of four independent non-executive directors and
meets at least twice annually. This year, a third meeting was held
specifically to review all the control-related risks and the risk manégement
process itself. Executive directors, members of executive mana'gement.
internal audit, and the external audit pariners and staff attend meegtings at

the invitation of the committee. Independently of management, members
of this commitiee meet separately with the external auditors.

Remuneration committee

This committee is gaverned by a formal charter to ensure that there is a
frangparent procedure for developing palicies on executive remuneration
and determining remuneration packages of individual directors and senior
executives, within agreed terms of reference and within the framewaork of
good corporate governance.

The key mandate of the committee is to compile emolument proposals in
accordance with the group’s remuneration strategy, which are then
considered by the hoard. This is designed and tailored 1o:

= continue to attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest
calibre;

s enable the group to remain an employer of choice; and

¢ ensure a blend of skills that consistently achieves predetermined
business objectives and targets.

The committee’s powers regarding non-executive remuneration are
limited to making recommendations to the board.

This committee has access to independent surveys and consultants for
best practice advice and information concerning current and job-specific
remuneration levels.

Its responsibilities include the making of recommendations {0 the board on
remuneration structures, performance bonuses, conditions of appointment
of the Chief Executive Officer and his remuneration, executive and non-
executive directors' remuneration and fees, service contracts, restraints,
the remuneration of senior executive managemeni, employee share
incentive schemes and general satary guidelines across the group.

The committee, which met four times during the yaar, comprises three
independent non-executive directors and an external consultant. The Chief
Executive Officer and the operating board’s Group Human Resources
Director attended by invitation, but recused themselves duiring detiberation
of their own remuneration.

The chairman of this committee attends the annual general meeting.
Risk committee

The board is responsible for risk management, while divisional and
operational management are accountable to the board for this process.
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corporate governance rePort

The group has adopted an ongoing, systematic and documented risk
management process that ensures that all material risks are identified,
evaluated, effectively managed and, where this is practical, quantified.
This process is undertaken within each division as well as by the operating
board. This has served to ingrain a sustainable risk awareness and culture
at all levels. The assessments are aligned to the business objectives within
gach division as well as those of the group as a whole.

All significant projects undertaken by the group are subject to formal risk
assessments. Ongoing business sustainability is addressed as part of this
process.

The risk committee is responsible for ensuring that:

¢ appropriate risk and control policies are in place and are
communicated throughout the group;

» the process of risk management and the system of intemal control
are regularly reviewed for effectiveness;

= there is an ongoing process of identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by the group, and that this is in place
throughout the year;

+ aformal risk assessment is undertaken annually;

» there is an adequate and effective system of internal control in place
io manage the more significant risks faced by the group to an
acceptable level;

» there is a documented and tested process in place that will allow the
group to continue its critical business processes in the event of a
disaster, inter afia, the destruction of a distribution centre, head office
or computer facility, that affects its activities;

* arisk register is maintained and kept up to date; and
* appropriate insurance cover is placed for the group, and that all
uninsured risks are reviewed and managed.

The risk committee comprises two independent non-executive directors,
one non-executive director, two executive directors and, by invitation, the
heads of tha internal audit and risk management departments. Meetings
are held four times a year.
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continued

Nominations committee

This committee is governed by a format charter to engre that there is a

process in place to identify and assess new executive ind non-executive

directors fairly and thoroughly. The committee’s resporgibilities include:

* reviewing the board structure, size and compositic;

* succession planning;

* reviewing the balance between non-executig and executive
direciors;

e ensuring that the directors have the required bIId of experience,
skills and knowledge to guarantee the continugd success of the
group;

s compliance with the principles of good governange and the code of
best practice.

This committee met twice during the year. It comprisesghree independent
non-executive directors and one executive director.

Transformation committee

The scope of authority of this commitiee is clearly dnfined in a formal
charter.

The committee has established a broad-based BEE stregy aligned to the
Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment Act 2003 and the
associated codes of good practice, including a BBBEE-level contributor
target with timelines. Clear guidelines have been defiged for each of the
seven elements of BBBEE, being equity ownership, mgnagement contro!,
employment equity, skills development, preferengial procurement,
enterprise development and socip-economic developrient.

The committee has an ongoing responsibility to morftor and review all
aspects of the group’s BBBEE strategies and to ensug the achievernent
of its targets. In order to attain these targets, sub-comgnittees for each of
the seven elements have been established, with meetifjgs taking place at
least quarterly.

The transformation committee, comprising two non-gkecutive directors,
two executive directors and the operating boards Group Human
Resources Director, meets twice annually.
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| The operating board of directors of the group Operating board of directors of the group
The operating board is responsible for the group's strategy formulation, as A D Murray (Chief Executive Officer)
well as the day-to-day managemant of all aspects of the operations of the R Stein (Financial Director)

| trading and service divisions. H B Godfrey {Managing Director — @home)

P S Meiring (Managing Director — Foschini Group Financial Services)
B J Curry (Managing Director — Foschinidata)

G S Naidoo {Managing Director — Group Human Resaurces)

A R Bisogno (Managing Director — Foschini division)

= merchandise sourcing, buying, planning, warehousing and distribution; M Mendelsohn (Managing Director — Sports division,

D B Gedye (Managing Director — Markham)*

Currently the operating board is responsible for all operational matters in
refation to the group's fashion retailing and financial services businesses
and support functions, including but not fimited to:

+ store location, leasing, operations, design and architecture;

= human resource recruitment, training, development and remuneration; * Appeinted 1 May 2008
» information systems acquisition, development and maintenance; Detailed information of the operating board and their credentials
» credit management and customer relationship marketing and systems; appear on pages 14 and 15.

« financial management and administration;

+ sirategic plan formulation, development, execution and refinement;

» development, review and achievement of budgets in relation to sales,
operating expenses and capital expenditure;

* dentification, assessment, mitigation and management of risk;

* development and refinement of business philosophy and the value
system;

* davelopment, monitoring and audit of internal controls;

* development, review and implementation of the employment equity
plan;

* development and monitoring of operational policies and procedures;

» development, implementation and monitoring of transformation
strategy,

* approving transactions regarding investment, disinvestment,
refinancing and restructuring in accordance with parameters set by
the main board; and

¢ adopting and implementing corporate governance practices and
meeting standards set out in King Il.

This board typically meets monthly and further meetings take place at
short notice when necessary.
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continued

Risk management

Risk review

The primary identified risks to the group are listed below, with both their
impact and the management strategies to contend with them being
stated.

Customer base retention

Retaining our existing custorners and attracting new customers.

How we manage this risk

ensuring that we provide exceptional customer service;

the provision of keenly priced and attractive product ranges across all
divisions and to all targeted market segments;

continual staff training at all fevels;
the use of “mystery shoppers” to gauge levels of customer service;

a state-of-the-art multi-media customer services call centre to assist
in the rapid resofution of customer enquiries;

utilisation of an efficient point-of-sale system that enhances store
efficiency and customer service and

equipping our stores to be attractive, enticing and cengenial.

Information technology (IT)

Ever-increasing reliance upon computer systems necessitates a stable,
secure and uninterrupted computer infrastructure.

constant senior management review and updating of the [T strategic
plan;

maintaining a comprehensive, regularly-tested disaster recovery plan
that should provide seamless computing capacity in the event of a
disaster, involving the establishment of secure computer suites in
separate Iocations with adequate capacity to provide backup access
to critical systems;

strict change control procedures for all system enhancements;
promoting the use of risk assessments for all significant projects;
ensuring that access contrals are implemented and enforced;

ongoing consolidation and standardisation of applications and
infrastructure technology;

an ongoing upgrade and technology “refresh” programme to ensure
that our applications and infrastructure are current and supported;
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» instiliing employee awareness of the need for lfsponsible use of

computer facilities {all employees being required
compuier code of conduct);

abide by a formal

« ongoing emphasis at all tevels on enhancing I§ security from ail

potential threats, both internal and external and

* adopting strong IT governance policies and best
delivery mogels.

Supply chain

practice [T service

The inability to provide our customers with the desire:}tlerchandise atthe

right price and time as a result of deficiencies in the
of the supply chain.

+ considering all possible occurring events and fac]
a disruption in a suppty chain;

agement process

brs that can cause

* examining possible scenarios from past experigpce and analysing

changing market forces;

» creating solutions culminating in improved stockRurn and customer

satisfaction; and

+ implementing changes in the supply chain Pethodically within

appropriate and achievable time frames.

A stearing committee of 12 senior executives, ¢l
A D Murray, has been formalised to structure an agile
chain management process, with specific focus on o
supplier confarmance, replenishment and pipelines.

Fashion trends

The misreading of fashion trends by the merchandisIeams.

* development and retention of talented merchan
abreast of global fashion trends;

ired by the CEQ,
nd effective supply
mising lead times,

e teams who keep

* extensive input from interrational fashion faig, consultants, the

internet, as well as local fashion research;

e based in the southern hemisphere, benefiting fri
the forthcoming season’s successful trend
hemisphere; and

kg

the knowledge of
in the northern

¢ tilising advanced systems to ensure that purchasing volumes are

correct.
Crime

Crime, particularly armed and violent crime, which
creating losses and, in particular, trauma to our staff.

#}ntinues unabated,
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« continually reviewing security at stores;
* providing staff training on how to deal with armed robberies;

s maintaining a strong focus on syndicated identity fraud via a
dedicated forensics department;

¢ maintaining regular communication with other retailers and anti-
crime fora to ensure that we minimise the impact of crime in all of its
forms; and

* utilising an anonymous toll-free whistle-blowing facility for the
reporting of criminal acts (defails of which are contained later in this
report).,

Fluctuation in interest and exchange rates

Fluctuations in intergst and exchange rates affecting margin stability and
profitability. (The prime overdraft rate increased four times during the year
under review by a total of 200 basis points, and the Rand depreciated
from March 2007 to March 2C08 by an average of 7,8% against the
US Dollar,)

* maintaining a strictly controllec and skiiled treasury function, guided
by formalised, documentad policies and procedures;

* constantly reviewing our borrowings mix betwesn fixed and floating
rate instruments, and long- and short-term financing, as the direction
of interest rates change;

» carefully monitoring the group's debt equity ratic;

* constantly monitoring the potential benefit of any other interest rate
products, such as interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements;
and

* taking forward cover on 100% of our merchandise imports.
Shortage of skills and expertise

Without insightful, specialised, and talented staff at all Jevels, our
continued success and growth through innovation would be endangered.

= mainfaining an effective nominations committee for succession
planning and appointment of senior executives and board
appointments;

» ensuring that processes are in place to attract, retain and develop
high-quality staff within an environment that can satisfy ambition; and

* having access to a pool of skills in all key areas via our divisionalised
structure, which lends itself to seamless resource transference.

Power gutages

The risk of power outages can significantly disrupt our store trading ability.

¢ having stand-by generators at all head office and distribution
facilities, with sufficient capacity to continue all critical functions;

* having the ability to trade off-line at stores provided that there is
sufficient lighting; and

* negotiating shared-cost backup power facilities in shopping malls.
Business continuity

The loss of a major head office facility or distribution centre could impact
upon critical business functions.

* maintaining separate head office buildings and distribution facilities,
and providing backup facitities for critical functions;

» spliting the computing capacity over four serves rooms in separate
locations;

* maintaining current businass continuity plans for all trading and
service divisions;

* maintaining comprshensive physical protection measures; and

* maintaining appropriate insurance cover.
The impact of HIV/AIDS upon our staff and customer base

Whilst the effect of HIV/AIDS on our staff and customer base still appears
to have been limited, we are well aware of the continuous need to assess
future risks and consequances.

« reviewing and faking cognisance of results of the external survey
conducted by the Health Moniter Group during 2005;

* encouraging all employees to ascertain their HIV status;
= offering all employees in South Africa two free confidential HIV tests
per annum at a network of external pharmagies;

* providing a free, comprehensive disease management service,
including antiretrovirals where indicated, to all permanent staff
members; and

» cffering optienal account balance protection 1o customers, who have
made extensive use of the facility. This has in large part contained the
impact cn bad debts. In addition, current experience indicates that
accounts are continued by extended families.
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corporate governance report continued

Internal control Further information on the internal audit function ig contained in the j
L . . \

The board of directors is responsible for the group’s systems of intarnal divisional reports section of this annual report. |

conirol. Effective internal control systems have been implemented and are Code of ethics

continuously evaluated:

The group has adopted a code aimed at creating a ¢

* o provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of

the financial statements: standards of ethics and uncompromising honesty a

The code is founded on the principtes of integrity, g

» 1o detect and minimise fraud, potential liability, loss and material openness and accountability. The code of ethics form
misstatemant; and the induction programme and all new employees agre

* to review compliance with applicable egislation and regulations. code. It is available to all staff members on our intrang.

faith, impartiality,
an integral part of
0 subscribe 10 the

* to safequard, verify and maintain accountability of its assets;

The internal conirol systems are governed by a comprehensive internal Whistle-bfowing
control standards manual that is available to all staff via our intranet.
Compliance with these standards rests within each division and is
monitored by internal and exiemal audit checks,

A whistle-blowing facility has been in place since Fel
reporting of suspected fraud and unethical behaviour,

ary 1998 for the
se is made of an
submitted to the
s that all incidents
00 is paid when
aviour. There is a
egutar distribution

outsourced, anonymous, toll-free hotline. All reports
The board is not aware of any materiat breakdown durirg the past year in centralised risk management department, which ensu

the functioning of these controls. are logged and resolved. A minimum reward of RS

Internal audit follow-up confirms evidence of fraud or unethical b
strong focus on staff awareness of this facitity throug

The internal audit department carries out an independent appraisal and

assurance function. Although it is responsible to the group’s Financial of informational cards and posters.

Director for administrative matters, it reporis to the audit committee of the An additional reward of R10 000 is paid twice annuflly to a randomly-
board. This structure does not impair the function's independence or selected staff member who has already been aw}ded the B5 000
objectivity. An internal audit charter, approved by the audit committee and reward.

conforming to the International Standards for the Professional Practice of

Internal Auditing, determines the mission and scape aof the function, During the year 74 reports were received, resulting inffl 2 dismissals.
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Legal compliance

The compliance function’s purpose is to provide assurance to the
board that the group is compliant with applicable legislation.
Within the group, the compliance function is split into two areas.
One focuses on general compliance and on the co-ordination of
group compliance, and the other ¢n credit compliance.

The changes to the group's practices and operations required by
the National Credit Act were managed effectively.

In anticipation of the enactment of the Consumer Protection Bill,
a forum within the group is monitoring the progress of the
Bill with the objective of ensuring that the group will be in
compliance with provisions relevant to it once ‘egislation based
on the Bill has been finalised and promuigated.

The provisicns of the Corporate Laws Amendment Act were
also implemented and developments regarding the Companies
Bill are being monitored.

The Protection of Personal Information {concept) Bill and its
progress towards enactment are also being closely menitored
;’ to ensure that the group wil' comply with this legislation once
made law.

The Group Compliance Officer does regular report-backs to the |
audit committee.

The respensibilities of the compliance function include:
e jdentifying and advising the group on existing and new
legislation that is applicable to the group’s business;

» facilitating compliance with relevant legislation and
assigning responsibility for areas of compliance;

* facilitating compliance with internal policies, rules,
guidelines and procedures; and

¢ monitoring of compliance.
The internal audit division and the Group Compliance Officer
work closely tegether. Where signifficant compliance issues

are identified they are referred for independent review to
outsourced experts.
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corporate governance report continued

Remuneration

The group’s policy is 1o align the remuneration structure of the executive
directors and staff with the interests of shareholders, and conseguently a
portion of their packages is performance-related. Share options and
incentives are based on the performance of the individual, as well as the
performance of the group as a whole, aligned to specific business
objectives and bottom-line absolute profits. The principle adhered to is
that bonuses are self-funded out of profits in excess of targets.

In addition, the group provides competitive market-refated and
benchmarked base salaries.

The executive directors have standard employment contracts with the
group, their duration not exceeding two years.

Remuneration for executive staff members comprises:
Base salarigs

¢ These are determined after a thorough benchmarking exercise within
the retail and related sectors. They are subject to annual review and
are linked 10 performance. Al divisions have established performance
management systems in order that individual contribution can be
measured and rewarded accordingly. External remuneration
consultants assist with market surveys and benchmarks and internal
parity is monitored by the Human Resources division.

Short-term incentives

* These take the form of an annual bonus. Targets are set for each
division at levels exceeding predetermined budgets in order that
payments made are effectively self-funding. The level of the bonus is
dependent on the performance of the individual, the trading division
and the group as a whole. Service division banuses are related to the
group’s performance. The ievels of bonuses are capped.

Long-term incentives

» The previously prevailing share cption scheme was replaced during
the year with a sharg appreciation rights scheme, This aligns reward
with the long-term interests of shareholders. Allocations are
considered annually and are based cn the recipient's level of
responsibility, package and individual performance. Participants are
allocated rights based on the appreciation in value of Foschini’s
shares over a three-year period. Exercise of the rights is subject to the
achievement of financial performance criteria by the group.
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Other benefits

* The remuneration committee reviews additionalgbenefits annually
against market benchmarks and makes proposals g the board. These
benefits include pension and medical aid fund§contributions, car
allewances and other health services.

Service contracts

* |nexcess of 60 of our key executives have formal ervice contracts to
ensure stabflity and continuity in management tear§s. These contracts
include restraint of trade stipulations.

Remuneration of non-executive directors and the Chalgman arg reviewed
annually by the remunegration committee for proposal go the board. Non-
executive directors are paid a basic fee with additiongl fees payable for
their level of responsibility and committee memberghip. They do not
participate in any of the group incentive plans or sharegchemes. They are
paid for their expenditure in attending meetings in Cage Town,

External consultants assist in providing market infoy
remuneration for non-exegutive directors.

ation relating to

Payments made to directors for services during the fear are set out in
note 33.

;0000000
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Stakeholder relations

Foschini acknowfedges the importance of proactive engagement with all
of its stakeholders and in this connection strives to foster sound
relationships between the company and the investment community.

values, HW/AIDS pelicy, medical aid information, internal racruitment
opportunities, environmental policy and initiatives, reporting of fraud and
theft, sexual harassment policy and staff announcements.

Invitations are extended to members of the Invesiment Analyst Scciety to
attend results presentations to provide them with timeous and relevant
information regarding financial performance and prospects. Executive
directors and senior management are accessible to investors, and regular
meetings are held with local and internaticnal shareholders, both current ‘
and prospective. Price-sensitive information is distributed via the JSE is the group’s requirement to know the suppliers” BBBEE- level contributor
Limited's SENS and made available simultaneously via the Foschini group status in order to ensure that the group’s BBBEE-supplier database is kept
website. up to date.

Ongoing communication with suppliers is vital to the group's sustained
access to the merchandise and services they provide. Within this
framework it is necessary to convey to suppliers the group’s standards
regarding ethical conduct and legal compliance, Of increasing importance

The group's primary means of communication with its stakeholders is
noted in the following table.

A wide variety of information is made available to staff members through
the group’s intranet, including the group’s code of ethics, mission and

Stakeholder Main means of communication

Institutional shareholders
and investment analysts

Presentations arranged through the Investment Analyst Society. Regular local and internaticnal investor relations
meetings with executive directers and senior managament.

Shareholders Annual reports, SENS announcements, profit anncuncements, annual general mestings, general mestings,
advertisements, group website and e-mail.

Customers Stare and head office staff, custemer care call cenire, website, e-mail, SMS, monthly statements, advertising,
sponsorships, store promotions and competitions.

Suppliers Store and head office staff, requtar site visits, audits and meetings, video-conferencing, requests for general and
compliance infermation, and supplier fora.

Community Community social investment initiatives undertaken by the group and by staff members, meetings with social
investment representatives, sponsorships, advertisements, website and media releases.

Employees Regular dialogue and communication sessions, breakaways, team-huilding exercises, notice boards, newsiatters,
union meetings, training, intranet, e-mail, store visits by senior managers, staff meetings and a quarterly internal
magazine.

Government and Ad-hac formal meetings and written and oral submissions regarding relevant draft legislation.

regulatory authorities

Donations to political parties
No donaticns are made to political parties.
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sustainability report

The release of the King Il report on corporate governance in 2002 led
South African companies to place emphasis in their reporting on the “triple
bottom-ling”  approach, encompassing economic, social and
envirenmental sustainabllity. This approach provides shareholders and
other stakeholders with a broad perspective of all spheres of sustainability
within the reporting company.

This mode of reporting continues to mature, and Foschini Limited {referred
to below as Foschini or “the group”) recognises that ongoing attention will
need to be given to the formalised monitering and measuring of non-
financial indicators.

Our view of sustainability remains that it is the need to ensure long-term,
balanced profitabllity in the group through innovation and inventiveness,
without compromising short-term competitiveness.

Consideration must at the same time be given to the needs of all our
stakeholders, and our responsibilities to the environment and future
generations must be taken into account as we recognise that these will be
the source of our sustained growth.

Foschini’s primary stakeholders, being its shareholders, employess,
suppliers, customers, gavernment, local communities and society at large,
are all mutually dependent pariners in the sustainability process.

Our approach to sustainability is summarised further in this report.
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Corporate social investment (CSI)

As an established fashion retailer, we have a leng track record of living up
to the responsibility of ensuring that our customers ik and feel at their
best. in doing so we are aware that we bear the furtiger responsibility of
ensuring that sustainable economic development ar@l social upliftment
take place in the communities amang which we operge.

One of the ways in which the group approaches this Igter goal is through
the medium of targated donations, representing scciainvestment.

Social investment spending with which the group is asgociated makes Lse
of funds derived from the Feschini Foundation, from goup resources and
from direct donations provided by staff mambers.

The Foschini Foundation was registered as an inddpendent charitable
prganisation in August 2006. Its trustees are twogindependent non-
executive directors of Foschini, E Osrin and D Nurek, K initial capital base
was created by a donation from the group. The Foundgtion has grown as
a result of receiving further donations and invesimegt income, and the
value of investments under its control at the year-end Ptalied 833 million.
Its objective is to use its investment income to peevide donations fo
selected charitable causes.

Donations made by the Foundation during the past year totalled
R3,6 millior. Additional donations made by the group # charitable causes
totalled R700 GOC. Merchandise donations for the bengfit of public service
organisations totalled R24 million at retail value. Addgtional donatiens to
the value of R1,0 million were made by various divisgns of the group in
cash, sundry equipment, merchandise and services. 8f their own volition
and from their own resources staff members and busigess pariners of the
group contributed an extra R47 000.

It is well known that women and children are the mogt marginalised and
vuinerable members of society. Women make up je majority of our
employees as well as our customers. It is for thesg reasons that the
beneficiaries of our CSI contributions will in the mgin be women and
children. Consideration is also given to the disabled.

Qur revised CS! strategy

To enable mare meaningful contributions to be made, ghe group reworked
its CSI policy, strategy and selection criteria during tig past year. Part of
this process involved identifying key areas of conceng and concentrating
donations largely within these areas. In order to refain an element of
flexibility, funding was also set aside for special projesis.

This new approach has allowad the group to becomg more effective in

achieving meaningful CSI objectives.
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On this basis the group has identified the following focus areas, with
specific emphasis on wemen and children:

olueaian, o 1
HAIDS | g ]
Are, adufe @V e GpeBmE: |

‘ |

The allecations of the combined cash donations from the group's CSI
funds and the Foschini Foundation for the year under review are indicated
below.

Education: 31%
Skills development: 26%
HIV/AIDS: 13%

© O O

Arts/culture/environment: 7%

Special projects: 18%

Operaticnal costs: 5%

\

Having a national presence in South Africa, the group will continue to
focus on identifying suitably registered non-governmental organisations
(NGOs} and non-profit organisations (NPOg) that themselves operate on a
naticnal basis ard are worthy recipients of these donations. Child Welfare
South Africa is an example of such a nationally-based organisation that we
support,

Education

We believe that one of the keys to unlocking the potential of our country
lies in the provision of and access to quality education for all citizens.
Consequently the largest portion of the €SI budget is devoted to
education. We invest in projects that focus on improving the quality of
literacy, numeracy, mathematics and science educaticn at the stage of
early childhood, as well as at primary and secondary levels.

Amongst the organisations that benefited from this position are the Rural
Fducation Project (through the University of Cape Town's schools
development unit), the Western Cape Primary Science Programme, LEAP
Science and Maths School, ORT Tech South Africa, and READ Educational
Trust.

We also continued fo denate class-leading jungle gyms and this year the
beneficiaries were impoverished rural schools in the Western Cape. All are
primary schools participating in the Rural Education Project, chosen on the
basis of most improved results in numeracy and literacy. To date we have
donated 24 jungle gyms and plan to provide more this year.

Funding to the EQUIP programme, which is run by the National Business
Initiative, has been continued, support being given during the year to a
cluster of five primary and two high schools in the Western Cape and one
schoal in Gauteng.

Many of the institutions of higher learning provide educational
programmes in nearby disadvantaged communities. Amongst those that
we support are:

= Rhodes University — mathematics education in rural schools in the
Eastern Cape;

= University of Cape Town — literacy teaching and learning framework
to assist and strengthen literacy in the Mbekweni schools in the
Western Cape;

e University of KwaZulu-Natal — a volunteer mentoring programme in
psychology;

»  University of Pretoria — Boipelo community building project; and

+  University of Stellenbosch — & farm schools project.

Programmes that give support to disadvantaged students also receive
funding.

Some of the other organisations waorking within the educational sphere
which we supported are SMILE, Caref du Toit Trust and Education Alive.

<

]
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sustainability report continued

Skills development

For the economic development of the country it is essential that members
of previcusly disadvantaged groups receive not only school education of
good quality, but also training to equip them with entrepreneurial skills to
enter the world of work or to start their own businesses. With this in view,
the group supports projects that provide skills for employment, job
creation and entrepreneurship at post-school level.

Some of the crganisations in this category that received financial support
are The Big tssue, Etafeni Day Care Centre Trust, Grassroots Educare
Trust, Junior Achievement SA, Learn to Earn, Media and Training Centre
for Health, Qasis Assaciation, South African Council for the Blind, Tsiba
Education, WHEAT Trust, and Zenzele Training and Development.

HIV/AIDS

The group recognises that HIV/AIDS affects our staff, their families, our
customers and the nation as a whole. There is an undeniable obligation to
contribute to under-resourced programmes to contain this pandemic.
Support was accordingly directed 1o some organisations that assist
orphan-headed households and to others that provide training and
assistance for home-based care initiatives. These organisations
included Cotlands, Lifeling/Childline Western Cape, Ma Africa Tikkun
Johannesburg, St John's Training Foundation, St Luke’s Hospice and the
University of Pretoria.

Through their activities and combined skills, these organisations educate
the community about HWV/AIDS and train volunteers to counsel people
infected and affected by HIV/AIDS.
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Arts, culture and the environment

The group firmly helieves in the need te support ordanisations that run
projects to educate childran about the arts, culture agd the environmant
in order for these to be sustained. Examples of gganisations which
received funding during the current year under revieg include the Zama
Dance School, Friends of the National Gallery, The Nhtional Sea Rescue
Institute, Wildernass Foundation South Africa and Wostd Wide Fund.

Special projects

The group again proudly supported the White Ribbon @ampaign's 16 days
of activism during which the public is encouraged to ‘Rt Against Abuse”.
The campaign focused in the past year on increasing e awareness of the
negative effects of violence against women and fchildren. A prime
motivator for the group’s support of this campaign is e fact that 78% of
our employees are female, many of whom are mothgrs. The group also
made it possible for employees to take part in the cagipaigr.

Rape Crisis' innovative programme, Safe Space, worgour backing in the
form of a donation of R350 000 which will go towards ensuring that
women and children are able to live in an environmer§ free from fear and
viglence. A further amount of R150 000 per year fgr three years was

SPCA.

The group's CSI initiative is very much a team Jeffort. We actively
gncourage a culture of philanthropy and cemmurity igvclvement amongst
our employees and business partners. In pursuit of is, the group’s CS
department works with the employees of the variousfrading and service
divisions on their individual projects to maximise effogtiveness.

These projects are incentivised. To recognise employegs who volunteer for
community work in their spare time, the group progdes grants to staff
members through their “staff community builder” forogramme, which
commenced in 2004.
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Individual trading and service division projects are provided with Rand-for-
Rand support.

Beneficiaries selected by the staff of our various divisions include St
Luke's Hospice, the Carel du Toit Centre, Goody2Shoes, Sotomon’s Haven,
Fountain House, Marsh Memorial Children's Home, Berry's Kitchen,
Fikelela Home for HIV-positive Children in Khayelitsha, Green Park,
LifeLine, Colleen’s Place of Hope, and Greenable.

The RCS Group undertook 11 projects during the vear in the areas of
education, health and welfare, and community development. This
division's flagship project comprised partnering with TSIBA, a free tertiary
educational institution, in developing a financial literacy curriculum aimed
at empowering students with skills to manage their finances in a
responsible way.

In addition, Red Cross Children’s Hospital received R20 000 in children’s
books.

Other organisations that received support included the Sunflower Fund,
Tygerberg Hospital, Carehaven and Habitat for Humanity,

Employment equity

The group remains compliant with all aspects of the Employment Equity
Act No. 55 of 1998. This requires timeous submission of an annual
employment equity report and plan to the Depariment of Labour,
consultation with employees, communication of the report and plan to
employees, and regular policy and fagility audiis to ensure that no barriers
to employment equity exist. Regular inspections by the Depariment of
Labour's inspectorate, both at stora level country-wide and at the group's
head office, have confirmed compliance.

In order to increase the representation of previously disadvantaged groups
at the middle and senior management levels, the group has embarked on
an exhaustive consultative process to review our employment equity
strategy. The key was to align the employment equity approach with the
group’s new human resources strategy in order to benefit directly from
enhanced and impsoved human resources practices, specifically in the
areas of recruitment, remuneration, tafent management, and training and
tlevelopment.

Qur new strategy focuses on:
Recruitment

Improved sourcing and recruitment techniques which include the
implementation of e-recruitment and targeted press advertising, will assist
in sourcing and drawing more applicants, primarily black Africans. This will
enable the group to better mirror the natignal demographics.

Remuneration

A more focused approach to salary and benefit benchmarking, involving
the use of national retail and general salary and benefit surveys and the
implementation of an electronic job evaluation system, will increase the
internal equity score and lead to an improved fit with the market. This will
have a positive effact on the retention of key employees.

Talent management

A rigarous approach has been adopted to the management of the talent
pipefine. This process identifies shortages and over-supply of specific key
skills at various levels. The introduction of coaching and mentoring will
benefit the accelerated development and retention of existing employees
who have been identified as having upward potential.

Training and development

Standardised programmes o impart skills to store managers have been
introduced to assist in bringing about consistency across the group and
facilitating identification of those with potential for promotion.
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In addition the merchant academy, which is a fast-track programme for
traines merchandise planners and buyers, was launched during the year.
Of its intake, approximately 80% were members of previously
disadvantaged groups. Existing employees can also benefit by attending
specific modules 1o up-skill themselves. Further details of the academy
are provided in the talent development section below.

Centralised trainee management

Store manager and merchant trainegs are now managed centrally and a
standardised curriculum as described above is followed. This further
benefits the consistency of skills across the group and permits regular
evaluation.

Cross-divisional collaboration

An important element of the talent managament and development process
now under way in the group is the emphasis en providing opportunities
throughout the group rather than relying on incividual divisions to provide
employees with their career ladder. This process is managed by the nawly-
established talent management depariment. Regufar group manpower
review meetings are held, where the talent of each trading and service
division are scrutinised to identify employees who are ready for prometion
or who woud beneit from gaining exposure in a different division or role.

In addition, we ensure that the advertising of vacancies is accessible to ali
staff members.

Consuttation and communication

The employment equity consultative forum structure has been enhanced.
Apart from two existing national {ora, divisional fora have been

Workforce Profile Changes

ﬂifrican,

* Goloured

100 » Foschini Group Annuat Report 2008

aspects of employment equity and a full programm
division-specific communication is being launched.

f group-wide and

established. This change provides all employees witi greater say in all

Physically disabled perscns

have had full disability audits completed by a spedalist consultant to
ensure that these facilities are suitable for and accgsible to physically
disabled employees.

The group's two largest office centres, in Cape Townind Johannesburg,

This remains an area of challenge for our employmerg strategies,

Workforce profile

I our employment equity submission of Octob
disadvantaged employees comprised 83,3% of our wrkforce, compared
to 80,7% in October 2006 and 78,4% in October 205. The target for
October 2010 is 90%, which we anticipate will be §chieved, based on
current progress.

2007 previously

The group has finalised its new employment equity plah for the three-year
period ending October 2010.

The composition of Namibian employees is 93,89 representative of
previously disadvantaged groups in that country.

Evidence of our overall progress in remedying imbafinces in the ethnic
composition of the group's workforce over the past eight years is depicted
below.

]

@ Aprii 2000 Oc aber 2004
@ October 2001 @ 0c aber 2005
@ October 2002 { Oc ber 2006

October 2003 €% Qc aber 2007




NS
C C
y O

COO0O0O0OCCO0CO0O
COoO0O080CO0O0O0

o0 O
o C O

@]
DL 000
O

L
z
P
&
s
o

Qo000 COQO000O0CCO0OO0OC0O0O0OOCOCOO0O0
D CO00CO0O0C0O00COCOOCOO0CO0O0OCO0OLOOOO0O
DVOCoOQOCOCOO0OO0OCO0O0O0OO0O0O0O0OCOOQCO0COO0

This chart excludes employees of RCS Investment
Holdings {Pty) Limited and its subsidiaries, as the
target date of that division’s plan differs by three
years from that of the rest of the group, and is thus
not comparable. Those employees total 4,5% of
headcount and thus do not significantly affect the
statistics. s
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The chart above depicts our current employee status compared to cur 2010 target.

The revised employment equity strategy noted above will assist in the attainment of
this target.

A table indicating the change in representation of previously disadvantaged groups
amongst permanent employees is provided below.

Qctober October Octaber  Qctober

2007 2006 2005 2004

% % % %

Senior management 583} 6,3 4,6 59
Specialists and middle management ang 29,8 30,0 277
Skilled technical and junior management 669] 63,0 59,3 56,5
Semi- and unskilled employees (O 1N] 88,6 86,6 84.9

A table ingdicating the change in representation of women amongst permanent
employees is provided below.

October October (October  QOciober

2007 2006 2005 2004

Yo % % %

Senior management &WR| 384 399 31
Specialists and midd!e management (63K 63,7 63,4 63,0
Skilled technical and junior management 7015) 79.3 80,1 80,3
Semi- and unskilled employees 700} 79,4 79,1 79,1
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sustainability report continued

Namibian employees

The Affirmative Action (Employment} Act of 1998 required that as from
2001 an annual report and plan be submitted to the Employment Equity
Commissicner. We have complied with this requirement gach year,

In Namibia, unlike South Africa, no distinction is made between the black,
coloured and Indian groups in monitoring the number of members of
previously disadvantaged groups. There is, however, a conceried focus on
gender.

If non-Namibians are employed, it is required that understudies be
appointed and their details together with their acknowledgement of their
status be included in the report.

The current composition of Namibian employees comprises 93,9% from
previously disadvantaged groups with only one non-Namibian being
employed.

Recruitment

This is a key focus area in ensuring that representivity is achieved.
Psychometric tests used in the recruiiment process have been selected
that are valid and fair in the South Alrican environment. These tests
specifiqally assess potential as opposed to current competency and skills.

The change in the percentage of employees recruited from previously
disadvantaged groups is as follows:

October 2003:75%
October 2004:80%
October 2006:81%
October 2006:83%
October 2007:87%
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ated in our most
elow:

A breakdown of recruitment by ethnic group as in
recent employment equity progress report is depicte

-2

O African: 47%
(O Coloured: 33%
Indian: 7%
@ White: 13%

Skills development

In tandem with the Employment Equity Act, the gr@up has again fully
complied with all of the requiremenis of the Skillg Development Act.
Skills development fora within our trading and service flivisions are held to
review anc monitor progress against the workplace s

During the year R42,3 million was spent on skills devglopment within the
group.

Skills development grants

As a result of full compliance, we have qualified for gl applicable grants
due from the Wholesale and Retail SETA {in the gbse of our trading
divisions) and the Services SETA (in the case of our figancial and services
divisions). In all cases, the SETA grants received are egrmarked for further
investment into training. All spending of grants is regorted at operating
board level to ensure that these funds are exclusivlly applied towards
further training.

Accreditation

Foschini remains a fully-accredited training provider. Fhis has enabled us
to provide our staff with the opportunity to achieve qglifications that are
registered on the National Qualifications Framework $a internal training,
thus saving on the cost incurred through the use Bf external training
providers. This training is provided and assessefl internally using
methodology that is approved by the Wholesale and Regrail SETA Education
and Training Quality Assurance bodies and is in line SAQA principles.
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Representation

We are represented on the Wholesate and Retail Standards Generating
Body and represent the group at all relevant SETA fora.

Talent development

Training programmes within the group are designed to up-skill our staff in
all areas where 4 nead has been identified, Relevant programmes are held
throughout the vear, ensuring a constant and consistent level of
understanding of group processes amongst our staff at all levels.

Our training programmes address the building of both generic business
competence and leadership competence.

An important emphasis for us during the course of the year has been the
strong focus on developing the falent of our store managers and
merchants (the latter being our buyers and merchandise planners) to
ensure that we meet the need for a pipeline of trained and compstent
employees in these key retail roles,

With these objectives in mind we launched:

= aretail academy for store managers;

* & merchant trainee development programme aimed at newly-
employeg tatent; and

* amerchant academy for honing the skills of existing merchants,

All of these are in-house projects designed to cater for our identified skills
requirements,

Our retail academy for store managers touches every store manager and
potential store manager both nationally and in Narmibia.

The curriculum is aimed primarily ai supporting the following goals:

¢ development of business skills and improved retail knowledge;

* managing employee ralations and perfarmance; and

*  gquipping store managers as coaches to develop their staff.

We are committed to creating a lgarning environment with a number of
delivery options including distance-learning programmes and formal

workshaps facilitated nationally and in Namibia. We believe that learning
should also be self-directed, and all store managers should take charge of

their own learning and can progress at their own pace.

Altied to this retail academy is the developing manager programme. Its
scope is primarily the technical business skills required 10 manage a store.

These store manager programmes are aligned to the wholesale and retail
SETA qualifications.

Our merchant trainee development programme i$ a Structured
programme available to new and young talent in the group. It is run over
a period of 18 t0 36 months and combines technical and generic
programmes to build the capacity of the trainee buyers and planners. They
are given the opportunity to spend time in varigus areas of the group's
businesses, gaining valuable hands-on experience and knowledge.
The programme is supported by a coaching initiative by which each
trainee receives fraining from a technical coach as well as a senior
mentor. The trainees enjoy a high level of exposure to and interaction with
senior management throughout this programme.

Our merchant academy for existing merchants has a curriculum that
combines technical and generic programmes designed 1o support the
building of their capacity. The curriculum is based on an integrated
approach, yet allowing flexibility for customisation across the divisions.
The programme hamesses the existing talent within the group by using
skilled staff members as in-house facilitators, so encouraging mutki-
skilling and the use of best practices by all merchants.

Our leadership development training is a further initiative, based on a
pipeline model, to meet the group's future leadership requirements.
This approach highlights key milestones that make up the development
process for aspising leaders. To reach a milestone, the attendees must
gain proficiency in a variety of competencies that meet the demands of a
particutar career phase. Career progression is based on mastery of these
cancepts, given sufficient ime to achieve competence. The process is
supplemented by assessments, specialised training, coaching, and
various projects and assignments. The capability of each developing
leader is carefully monitore¢ and reviewed. Talented individuals are
advanced on this journey according to their level of performance and
potential.
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Employees and employee benefits

3
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Broad-based black economic empowerment The staff complement at the group's head offices argl stores at the year-
(BBBEE) end comprised the following:

The group fully supports BBBEE and has adopted a strategy that is

designed to bring about compliance with the BBBEE codes of good Employee statistics: o008 2007 B 2006 2005

practice.

Permanent full-time employees | @209 | 87818 8155 7469

The transformation committee formulates, monitors and reviews all X
Permanent part-time employees | 113 323 257

aspects of the group’s BBBEE policies as defined in the group's

transformation charter. Flexitime employees ZEmw | 2776 2337 2658
Contract employees 5651 724 327 329
Sub-committees for each of the seven elements of the generic scorecard Casual employees 995 | 280180 2989 2867
have been established and scorecard targets set. The sub-commitiees
meet quarterly and report divectly to the transfermation committee.
In the Financtal Mail/EmpowerDEX Top Empowerment listed companies The gender composition of the workforce, alrealy heavily weighted
survey, the group ranked fourth, second and third in 2008, 2007 and 2006 towards female employees, remained relatively staticwith women making
respectively within the retail sector, and is currently a BBBEE level-6 up 78,2% of the total compared to 77,6% in the preous year and 78,0%
contributor. in the year before.
The transformation committee has set an overall target of being a BBBEE The group has a refatively young age profite, the average age being
level-4 contributor by 2010, together with goals for each of the seven 30 years and 83,6% of the total being under thefags of 40 years. A
elements of BBBEE. breakdown of the group's employees by age over a fvo-year period is set
The group will be rated by a BBBEE verification agency during the next out in the follawing chart, from which it is evident thag minor changes have
year. occurred.
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Retirement funding

All permanent staff of whally-owned subsidiaries are required to join the
Foschini Group Retirement Fund, which is a defined contribution fund
registered in terms of the Pensions Fund Act No, 24 of 1956, The fund is
administered by Foschini in accordance with an agreement approved by
the Financial Services Board.

The fund is managed by a board of trustzes that meets quarterly.
The trustees receive no remuneration for their services. Parficular
attention is paid to trustee training, to ensure that they remain abreast
of legislative changas and developments within this specialist area.
The assets of the fund are under the control of the trustees, who are
advised by external consultants.

Sub-committees for strategy and investments meet gquarterly and the
benefits sub-committee meets monthly.

A second portfolio option has been introduced for staff attaining the age
of 55, which has a lower exposure to the volatility of the equity markets.
These staff may elect te remain on the main portfolio.

41-45

Total market value of the assets of the fund at 31 March 2008 amounted
to R2,6 billion, which is unchanged from the previous year, Fund returng
reflected an increase of 16,4% during its financial year, but a particularly
high volume of withdrawals and retirements have rasulted in the
unchanged financial position,

Pensioners were awarded an increase of 109% effective from 1 January 2008,
which Is in line with the pensioner increase policy of the fund o award at
least inflationary increases, subject to affordability.

As required by the Pension Funds Act, 50% of the trustees are membear-
elected. The term of office for all employer- and member-elected trustees
is three years, after which they are eligible for re-election. Trustee
elections will be held during the 2009 financial vear. Induction training is
provided to new trustees, who alse participate in the regular angoing
training noted above.

Apart from retirement benefits, the following are provided by the fund:

* afuneral benefit of R7 500 for the principal member and spouse and
a lesser benefit for thelr dependent children;

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 « 105




« a death bengfit of three times annual salary as well as the member’s
gross equishare is available to provide benefits to dependants and
beneficiaries, payable in the event of death in service and where the
death is accidental, & further benefit of twice annual salary is payable;
and

+ aninsured disability benefit is provided to qualifying staff members,
equating to 75% of pensionable salary earned at the time of
disablement, payable until attainment of normal retirement age
subject to continued disablement, after which the normal retirement
benefit becomes effective.

Employees of RCS Investment Holdings (Pty} Limited and its subsidiaries
are not members of the Foschini Group Retirement Fund, but receive
comparable benefits from the Liberty Life Provident Fund.

Wheare required, employees of subsidiaries trading outside South Africa
belong to umbrella funds that comply with the legistation of the relevant
country.

A formal risk assessment of the retirement fund is undertaken at least
annually. Taking into account mitigating factors, HV/AIDS remains the
highest potential risk to the fund. Risk is minimised by undertaking regular
actuarial valuations, external expert prevalence projections and ongoing
programmes on HIV/AIDS education and awareness. The fund is moreover
able to amend its benefit lavels.

The Foschini Group Medical Aid Scheme

The Foschini Group Medical Aid Scheme is an in-house, subsidised
medical scheme that is designed to best suit the needs of most
employzes. Membership is voluntary except for senier employees.
The average number of principal members at 31 December 20CG7
(the financial year-end of the scheme) was 2 291, covering approximately
4 690 tives in total.

The scheme is administared by the Metropolitan Health Group and is fully
compliant with the Medical Schemes Act.

The board of trustees of the scheme is responsible for all aspects of its
operations, which are reviewed by both the Foschini group medical aid
audit committee and the external auditors. The board of trustees makes
use of a medical schemes consultant and an actuary who provide
specialised advice and pariicipate in monthly operational and quarterly
board meetings. The trustees and audit commitiee receive no
remuneration for their services.
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The accumulated funds ratio of the scheme at 31 Dicember 2007 was

92, 4% which is well in excess of the required minim
excessive for a small in-house scheme that will be
volatility than the norm as a result of sporadic large ¢

m of 25%, but not
subject to greater
2ims.

The financial health of the scheme favourably infl

nced contribution

increases which tock effect in January 2008, the ingeases being 4,5%
and 7,5% for the two benefit plans available compareg to 3,1% and 4,6%
for the previous year. In bath years the increases werg significantly below
medical inflation. In addition, general benefit improvelents were applied
to match or exceed inflation in the various medical cgegories.

A risk assessmant of the scheme is undertaken at legst annually, both by
the trustees and the administrators. The highest rE identified by the
frustees is the volume of legislation affecting medica§ schemes. Keepirg
abreast of all current and pending legislation and adgpting the scheme’s
rules accordingly assists in managing this risk.

Other health plans

An external medical scheme, Ingwe Health Plan, is algp available to group
employeas and is subsidised by the group in the e way as the in-
house scheme. The plans offered cater for lower §come earners and
provide basic healthcare through capitation agrégments with large
hospital groups. Ingwe forms part of the black-emppwered African Life

group. Currently a total of 318 group empleyees arg
with their dependants.

members, together

Employees outside South Africa may elect 1o join mgdical schemes that

are similarly funded by the group.

Al permanent staff of RCS Investment Holdings (i:y) Limited and its

subsidiaries are required to become members of a
choice offered by Discovery Health.

Bursary scheme

The group cperates a bursary scheme for children o
by the Foschini Foundaion. This scheme is independ
the South African Institute of Race Relations on ou
reward academic excellence in children of employee:
not have access to tertiary education.

edical plan of their

employees, funded
tly administered by
behalf and aims 10
who may otherwisg
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Educational assistance

Low-interest loans are available to employees to assist with the costs of
tertiary education for their children. These loans are available on an annual
basis for each child and are repayable over two vears to improve
affordability.

Home assistance

Similarly, low-interest loans are available 1o employees to assist with the
purchase or improvement of property. These loans are weighted towards
providing greater assistance in the purchase or improvement of property
within the lower price brackets. In the past year R264 000 was lent to
qualifying employees who made use of this benefit. Of these employees
86% were from previously disadvantaged backgrounds.

Employees requiring further financial assistance for hame purchases or
improvements may also borrow against their equishare in the Foschini
Group Retirement Fund, subject to its rules. This is an outsourced lending
facility, using members' shares in the fund as security, with the result that
the interest payable by employees is minimised. The tota! of these loans
at the year-end was R6,9 million.

Sponsorship

Employees are encouraged to underiake studies that will assist them in
their current or future career with the group. Sponsorship varies according
io the level of study and requires greater financial commitment from
employees at higher educational tevels. Support for matriculation study
fees is 100%.

Coupled to this, the group offers sponsorship for the Unisa Retail
Certificate, an intensive one-year retail-specific diptoma.

Of employees receiving general sponsorship at the end of the current
financial year, 89% were from previcusly disadvantaged groups, a
percentage similar to that of previous years.

Healthcare

The group has delegated the management of occupational health 10 an
external service provider. Curative and preventative care is provided from
a centrally located occupational health clinic permanently staffed by two

nursing sisters with qualifications in occupational health. A medical doctor
is on site twice a week to assist with cases requiring specialised attention.

The clinic provides a service o all employees working at the head office
campuses as well as those at the disiribution centres.

Services offerad include family planning, HIV testing, primary healthcare,
counselling for psyche-social stress, health education and health
screening.

The service provider is also responsible for the management of ill health
within our stores through the WAKE programme, ag well ag any injuries on
duty in terms of the Commission for Occupational Injuries and Diseases
Act {COIDA). It also facilitates the group's disability benefit processes,
which provide an income-replacement benefit to employees who are
unable to work as a resutt of ill health or injury for an indefinite or fixed
period of time.

Staff safety

The group is committed to ensuring a safe and healthy working
environment for all of its staff. Like most other retailers, it operates within
a low risk environment.

The group complies with all relevant legislation, in particular the
Occupational Health and Safety Act of 1993,

The statistics for reported incidents involving siaff members of the group
are set out betow:

2008 2007
Number of working days lost 399 1 465
Number of incidents 1340) 399
Average cost per incident 339 R371
Totat cost of incidents NUSEED | R148 196

The majority of incidents reported were minor, and there were no fatalities.
In 232 instances, not more than three working days per incident were lost,
cornpared to 278 last year.
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HIV/AIDS

The group has a formal HIV/AIDS policy in place, aimed at combating the
spread and minimising ihe impact of HV/AIDS on our employees, their
families, our customers and the community at large. It does so by
providing education and information about HV/AIDS and promoting non-
discriminatory practices. This policy has been communicated to al
existing employees, is avaifable on our intranet and is included in the sign-
on pack for all naw employees.

In an effort to minimise the impact of HIV on our staff as well as attendant
costs to the group, we provide free and confidential access for all
employees to testing, counselling, treatment and support. Employees are
encouraged to asceriain their HIV status in order to enable them to take
responsibility for their heaith. Those employees whose status is negative
are encouraged to adopt safe behaviour to retain this status, whilst those
that test HIV-positive are given access to the support and treatment they
need to remain healthy and able to work productively for as long as
possible.

Since 2005, HIV-positive employees who are members of the Faschiri
Group Medical Aid Scheme have had access to a full disease
management service provided by a managed healthcare provider.
Employees who register on the programme receive free HIV iesting,
counselling, information and prophylactic medication, as weli as
antiretroviral therapy when required.

In September 2006 the group launched the first phase of a
comprehensive HIV/AIDS workplace programme. This is now well
entrenched and as at the year-end 538 employees had been tested
through an external network of pharmacies arcund South Africa on a
voluntary basis. This programme is managed by Occupational Care
South Africa. On World AIDS Day, 1 December 2007, we announced that
free treatment and support for HIV-positive employees would now be
extended to all permanent employees through a comprehensive disease
management programme provided by QUALSA. Treatment includes
antiretroviral therapy.

According to a risk assessment commissioned by the group and
conducted by the Health Monitor Company in 2005, it was estimated that
6,99% of the company’'s employees wouid be HIV-positive in 2007 (for
20086, their estimate was 6,86% and in 2005, it was 6,6%). The estimated
average cost to the group for 2007 associated with HIV infection was
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ime and flexitime
R9,4 million. This
ding antiretroviral
, increased group
ertise, additional
| costs.

R11 054 per HIV-positive permanent, permanent part
employee, equating o a total group cost for that year
cost was based on all potential incremental costs, inc
{reatment, paid sick leave, funeral costs, lost producti
life and disability expenses, cost of training and lost
cost of incapacity as well as generally increased medi

Experience to date has indicated that the actual cos
been substantially less than was predicted in that asse
of compilation of this report, we have been notified tha
registered on the QUALSA programme at an average
R10 644 per employes. This equates to a gress annu
R319 320 before taking into account recoveries from

to the group has
ment, At the time

Ongaing free and confidential on-site HIV counsgli
continues to be available through the clinic at ofr head office in
Cape Town.

In addition to the measures described above, on-si‘itesting for head
office employees through OCSA was introduced for tie first time in the
past year as part of our annual Health Days.

We nave also embarked on a pilot voluntary coungelling and testing
campaign in collaboration with two other large retailgs with the aim of
making voluntary counselling and testing more accesgible to employees
working in shopping centres. The counselling and testfg was outsourced
to Action Against AIDS, an NGQ, and took place at the (hvendish shopping
tentre in Claremont, Cape Town. The campaign Jproved exiremely
successful, all available appointments being utilised, agd ptans to expand
it to other shopping centres, as well as to include nipre retaiters, have
been finalised.

A similar campaign for Namibia is being investigated.

Suppliers

It is important that our manufacturing and merchandfge suppliers share
the same ethics and values as ourselves. Our supplier§ have been issued
with supplier agreements for signature which requirg their compliance
with, inter alia, labour, and customs and excise legislafon.

Regular audits are undertaken at their premises. We regjuire any recorded
deviations from agreed standards to be remedied if {Re suppliers are to
retain a businass relationship with the group.
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Environment

In line with the group's objective of minimising its environmental impact,
an environmental committee was established by the cperating board
during the past year. The committee comprises senior managers frem all
areas of the business and meets monthly. lts scope is all-encompassing
and its mandate is to minimige the environmeantal impact made by the
group and its stakeholders in all identified spheres. It reports quarterly to
the chief executive officer and two members of the operating board. In
order to ensure that the process is fully inclusive, the committge issues
reguiar e-mails to all staff encompassing all aspects of environmental
awareness.

Whilst retail businesses suppiying clothing and related products have a
low Impact on the enviranment, we are well aware that responsible use of
limited resources is imperative. There have been no environmental
incidents of any significance within the group and no penalties or fines
have been imposed by any environmental regulatory authority.

I addition, the following measures remain in force:

* 2 member of the operating board has the responsibility for setting
enviranmental policy, chjectives, targets and reporting processes;

* an environmental policy has been compiled;

« an environmental risk assessment is undertaken annually;

+ ali of the group’s known direct and indirect environmental impacts
have been identified and tabled;

* an ongoing, interactive awareness campaign with all of our staff
cencerning envirenmental issues is undertaken; and

* an uncertaking by the group exists to reduce and control each
identified negative impact and to make optimal use of diminishing
natural resources.

Qur enviranmental policy is available 10 all staff through our intranet.
Qur direct impacts
Cardboard, paper and plastics

The amount of cardboard and waste paper generated by our distribution
centres and head office remains appreximately 130 000 Kilograms per
month, the majority being sold to recyclers. A portion of the waste
cardhoard is shredded and utilised as protective packaging. Plastic wasta
from these sites is minimal as a result of the elimination of shrink-
wrapping of cartons, Residual plastic waste is sold to the recycling
industry.

Cardboard and other waste at stores continues to be managed by
shopping centre disposal processes and the informal sactor.

Plastic hangers are recycled, the cleaning and sorting processes heing
perfarmec by The Workshop and House Horizon in Stellenbosch and Chris
Steytler Industries in Bellvile. This provides employment to their
differently-abled employees. These facilities recycled 3,5 million hangers
during the past year.

All plastic bags used by the stores are durable and reusable, being made
of sheeting that is at least 40 micrens in thickness. In certain divisions use
is also made of recyclable paper packets.

Electricity and water

With the current energy crisis, there is a cencentration of effort
surrounding power-saving initiatives.

Head office buildings utilise energy management systems and enargy-
gfficient lighting to minimise the use of electricity. Signage has been
placed in head office buildings to ensure that staif do not make use of
unnecessary lighting where it is not required. This includes unused
conference rooms and display areas.

The air conditioning plant in the main head office corplex houses ice
tanks that generate ice during off-peak hours, which is used for day-time
cooling. We have reduced the operating time of the air conditioning plant
by two hours per day.

Where possible, computers at head office locations are swilched off at
night, and computer procurement now includes a requirement for energy
efficiency.

The Fskom demand side management initiative continues to be met with
contractual chstacles and the project to install electronic control-gear and
enargy-saving lighting in all of our stores remains in abeyance. However,
we remain hopeful of a positive outcome. All new and refurbished stores
are as a matter of course fitted with energy-saving lighting and control-
gear.

Where it is practical and safe to do so, stores are now switching off all or
most lights outside trading hours.

Water is primarily consumed for personal and hygiene purposes. Regular
maintenance ensures that there is minimal wastage.

Electricity and water expenditure is monitored by the trading and service
divisions each month against budgets and records of the previcus year,
and varlances are followed up.
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We are investigating the electricity cost per square metsr by traéing division for afl

of the stores. Where there is a discrepangy it is folfowed up.

Printers, faxes and laser cartridges

All printers and fax machines make use of recycled 'aser cartridges.

In addition, we are investigating the use of double-sided prin
throughout the group.

Vehicles

Company vehicles are checked and serviced in acc
manufacturers’ prescribed intervals. Merchandise transpol
outsourcad professionals who, by the nature of their operation
vehicles perform at optimai efficiency. As this is one of the gro
environmental impact, we Intend to engage with the service p
ascertain how best carbon emissions can be minimised,

Air conditioning systems

in terms of a regular maintenance programme. Refrigerants are

ng as a standard

ance with the
is managed by
ensure that their
's larger areas of
viders in order to

t discharged into

All air conditioning systems are maintained by outsol‘jed technicians

the atmesphere but recoverad and recycled. Only refrigerants t
requirements of the Montreal Protocol are used.

Electronic waste

t comply with the

Fluorescent tube and general lamp disposal at head officas and distribution centres

is controlled by an environmental waste management company.
currently rely on the disposal processes of their local muni
shopping centres in which they are located.

Redundant computers that are not donated are sent to an est
recycling coempany. They are stripped of recyclable materials
components are disposed of in a manner that is not harmful to

Used watch batteries from both our jewellery stores and head
workshop are similarly disposed of in an environmentally-friend

1 the main, stores
alities or of the

lished electronic
nd the unusable
e environment.

ice walch repair
mannar.

Via our intranet, staff members are encouraged to make use offhe environmental
disposal service for old cellphone components offered by @l MTN franchise

dealerships.
Our indirect impacts

Property development

The group will not enter into rental agreements where delopers have not

conducted the required environmental impact assessmants.

Suppliers

their compliance with, infer akia, labour, and customs and excise

gislation. Regular

Suppliers have baen issued with supplier agreements for signa%tre which require

audits are undertaken at the premises of our merchandise supp!

ors and deviations

from agreed standards must be remedied if the suppliers are tdretzin a business

relationship with the group.
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value added statement

for the years ended 31 March

2008 2007
Note Rm %
Retail turngver 7 668,7 72300
Dividends received 17,2 22,8
Paid to suppliers for goods and services 4381,1) (4 179,4)
Value added 3304,8 30734 100,0
Applied as follows:
Employees
Remuneration to employees 11327 9645 N4
Providers of capital
To lenders as finance charges 120,1 1047 3.4
To shareholders as dividends 692,6 5772 18,8
Taxation
Taxation 565,3 5556 181
Reinvested
Reinvested in the group to finance future expansion and growth 1 794,1 8714 28,3
Employment of value added 33048 30734 100,0
Notes to the Value Added Statement
1. Reinvested in the group to finance future expansion and growth
Depreciation and amortisation 174,1 5,6
Deferred taxation (34N a.n
Retained income 732,0 23,8
8714 283
2. State taxes
Direct taxation as above 5556
Met value added taxation 2689
Employees’ taxation 1204
Regional Services Council levigs 3,6
Channelled through the group 9485

2008 2007
@ Employees: 34,3% 31,4%
@ FReinvested: 24,0% 28,3%
O Taxation: 17,1% 18,1%

() Providers of capital: 24,6% 22.2%
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This tablg is a summary of the group's reporting against the Global Reporting Initiative's Sustainability Reporting Guidelines.

GR! reference

Section in this report

1 Vision and Strategy

1.1 Vision and strategy
1.2 CEQ's statement
2  Profile
2.1 Name of organisation
22 Major products and services
2.3 Operational structure
24 Organisational structure
2.5 Geographic locations
2.6 Mature of ownership/legal form
2.7 Nature of markets served
2.8 Scale of reporting organisations

29 List of stakeholders

2.10 Contact person

2.1 Reporting period

212 Date of previous report

213 Boundaries of report

2.14 Significant changes

2.15 Basis for reporting

216 Restatements of information

217 Cecisions net to apply GRI principles
2.18 Criteria/definitions

219 Significant changes in measurement
220 Assurance

2 Independent assurance

2.22 Additional information

3 Governance Structure and Management Systems

31 Governance structure

3.2 Independence, non-executive directors
3.3 Board member expertise

3.4 Board level pracesses

35 Executive compensation

3.6 Organisational structure

37 Mission and value statements

3.8 Shareowner communication

3.9 Identification of major stakeholders

310 Approaches to stakeholder consultation

an Feedback from stakeholder consultation

312 Information used from stakeholder engagement
313 Precautionary approach

34 Externally developed charters, principles, initiatives
315 Principal memberships

3.16 Managing upstream and downstream impacts
317 Managing indirect impacts

318 Decisions regarding location and changes in operation
3.19 Sustainability programmes and procedures

3.20 Certification status

112 » Foschini Group Annual Report 2008

Corporate Profile
Chief Executive Officer’'s Report

Administration

Corporate Profile
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Annual Financial Statements
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report

Directorate; Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report; Sustainability Report
Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Profile; Sustainability Report

Corporate Governance Report
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Not reported on
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Corporate Governance Report
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Not reported on

Sustainability Report

Sustainability Report
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4  Econcmic
EC1 Net sales
EC2 Geographic breakdown of markets
EC3 Cost of goods, materials and services
EC4 Contracts paid in accordance with agreed terms
ECS Payroll and benefits
ECE Distributions to providers of capital
ECY Retained earnings
ECB Taxes paid
ECS Subsidies received
EC10 Donations

5 Environment
EN1 Materials used

ENZ2 Waste from external sources
EN3 Direct energy use

EN4 Indirect energy use

ENS Total water use

ENG Land in biodiversity-rich habitats
EN7 Major impacts on biodiversity
ENS Greenhouse gas emissions

ENS Ozone-depleting substances
EN10 Significant air emissions

EN11 Total amount of waste

EN12  Significant discharges to water
EN13  Significant spills
EN14  Significant impact of products and services
EN15 Reclaimable product
EN16 Fines
6 Social
LA1 Breakdown of workforce

LA2 Employment creation
LA3 Trade union representation
LA4 Labour relations

LAS Recording of eccupational accidents and diseases
LAG Heafth and safety committees

LA7 Injury and absentee rates

LAS HIV/AIDS

LA9 Training

LA10 Equal opportunity

LA Diversity

HR1 Human rights policies

HR2 Human rights and investment/procusrement
HR3 Hurnan rights and supply chain

HR4 Non-discrimination

HR5 Freedom of assoctation
HR6 Child labour

HR7 Forced labour

501 Community

802 Bribery and corruption

503 Palitical contributions

PR1 Customer health and safety
PR2 Producis and services

PR3 Respect for privacy

Annual Financial Statements
Not reported on

Value Added Statement

Not reported on

Value Added Statement
Value Added Statement
Value Added Statement
Value Added Statement

Not applicable

Sustainability Report

Not reported on
Not reporied on
Not reported on
Not reported on
Not reported on
Not reported on
Not applicable
Not reporied on
Not reported on
Not applicable
Not reported on
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not reported on
Not applicable

Sustainability Report
Sustainability Report
Not reported on

Not reparted on
Sustainability Report
Not reported on
Sustainability Repont
Sustainability Report
Sustainability Report
Sustainability Report
Sustainability Report
Not reported on
Sustainability Report
Not reported on
Sustainability Report; Corporate Governance Report
Not reported on

Not reported on

Not reparted on
Sustainability Report
Sustainability Report
Corporate Governance Report
Not reported on

Not reported on

Not reported on
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directors qpproval and
company secretary’s certificatd

for the years ended 31 March

Directors’ responsibility for and approval of
the group annual financial statements

The board of directors (the board) is responsible for the
content and integrity of the group annual financial statements
and related iniormation included in this report. It is their
responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements
fairly present the siate of affairs of the company and the
group as at the end of the financial year and the resulis of
their operations and cash flows for the financial year, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards.
The group's external auditors are engaged to express an
independent opinion on the group annual financial
statements.

The group annual financial statements are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.
The accounting poticies, unless otherwise stated, are
consistently applied and supported by feasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.

The direciors acknowledge that they are ultimately
responsible for the system of internal control and review its
operation primarily through the audit and risk committees
and various other management systems.

A strong control environment is maintained by applying &
risk-based system of internal accounting and administrative
controls and by ensuring adequate segregation of duties. In
addition, Group Audit Services (internal audit) conduct
specific risk-hased audits and co-crdinate audit coverage
with the external auditors.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information
and explanations given by management, the internal auditors
and the external auditors, that the system of internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may
be reffed on for the preparation of the group annual financial
statements. However, any system of internal control can
pravide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The direciors have every reason to believe that the group will
continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future, and
the annual financial statements have been prepared on the
basis of this assumption.

The annual financial statements and group annual financial
statements set out on pages 118 to 167 were approved by
the board en 11 June 2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

E OSRIN A D MURRAY
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

114 = Foschini Group Annual Report 2008

Company secretary’s certificate

| certily that Foschini Limited has lodged with the SBgistrar of
Companies all returns as required by a public g@mpany in
terms of section 268G(d) of the Companies Acillo. 61 of
1973, as amended, and that all such retumns are,Ji§ the best
of my knowledge and belief, trus, correct and up i date.

D SHEARD
Secretary

11 June 2008




independent auditor's report

for the years ended 31 March

To the members of Foschini Limited

We have audited the annual financial statemants and the
group annual financial statements of Foschini Limited, which
comprise the balance sheets at 31 March 2008, and the
income statements, the statements of changes in equity and
cash flow statements for the year then ended, and the notes
to the financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes
and the directors’ report as set out on pages 118 to 167,

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and in the
manner required by the Companies Act of Scuth Africa.
This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and
maintaining internal contro! relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; ard
making accountng estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an apinion on these financiat
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabie assurance whether the financial statements are
free from misstaternent.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of materiai
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due ‘o
fraud or error. In making those rigk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation:
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circurmnstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an
cpinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaiuating ihe overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated and separate financial
position of Foschini Limited at 31 March 2008, and its
consolidated and separate financial performance and
censolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act
of South Africa.

KPMG Inc.
Registered Auditor

Per Patrick Farrand
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor

Cape Town

11 June 2008

Foschini Group Annual Repert 2008 » 117




directors’ report

for the years ended 31 March

Nature of business

Foschini Limited is an investment holding company whose
subsidiaries, through their retail operating divisions -
Foschini, branded as Feschini, Donna-claire, Fashionexpress
and Luella; Markham; Exact!; TFG Apparel Supply Company;
the sports division, branded as Sportscene, Totalsports and
DueSouth; the jewellery division, branded as American Swiss,
Matrix and Stermns; @home, branded as @home and
@homelivingspace; and FG Financial Services - retail
clothing, jewellery, accessories, cosmetics, sporting and
outdoor apparel and equipment and homewars to the broad,
middle income group throughout southern Afica.

The RCS Group provides a range of broader financial services
to customers of the group and to customers of unrelated
retailers.

The group cperates in the retat and financial services
segments, almost entirely within the South African Commen
Monetary Area.

Retall turnover emanating from Swaziland and Botswana
accounts for 0,6% of the group’s turnover.

General review

The financiat results are reflected in the annual financial
statements on pages 118 to 167.

Share capital

The group's share buy-back programme commenced at the
end of May 2001. At 31 March 2008, 24,0 million shares are
held by a subsidiary, and a further 11,9 miliion by the group’s
share incentive trust. These shargs, representing 14,9% of
the company's issued share capital are treated as treasury
shares and have been eliminated on consolidation. Further
details of the authorised and Issued share capital are
reflected in note 14.

Dividends
Interim ordinary

The directors declared an interim ordinary dividend of
118 cents per ordinary share, which was paid on Monday,
7 January 2008 to ordinary shareholders recorded in the
books of the company at the close of business on Friday,
4 January 2008.

Final ordinary

The directors declared a final ordinary dividend of 170 cents
per ordinary share payabie cn Monday, 14 July 2008 to
ordinary shareholders recorded in the books of the company
at the close cof business on Friday, 11 July 2008.
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Preference

The company paid the following dividends to hoidrs of 6,5%

cumulative preference shares:;
1 October 2007 - R13 000
(2 October 2006 — R13 000)
31 March 2008 — R13 000
{26 March 2007 — R13 000).

Directors

The names of the company's directors appear &
and 13 of this report.

pages 12

The following changes took place during the cusent year:

A D Murray (appointed 2 April 2007}

S N Bowley (appointed 2 April 2007}

S N Bowtey (resigned 1 August 2007}

The following directors retire by rotation in
articles of association but, being eligible, offer 4
re-election as directers:

R Stein (executive)

N H Goodwin (independent non-executive)

M Lewis {independent non-executive)

For details of directors’ interests in the compiie

shares, refer to note 14.5. Details of directors’ g
are set out in note 33.

Secretary
The company secretary of Foschini Limited is Mg
Her business and postal address appear on thd
cover of this report.
Subsidiaries

The names of, and certain financial informatio
the company’s key subsidiaries appear on pagel
Earnings of subsidiaries

The total profits (losses} of consolidated subsicliries are as
follows:

Profits
Losses

Net consolidated profit after taxation




Special resolutions

On 5 September 2007 shareholders renewed the appraval,
as a general authority, of the acquisition by the company or
any of its subsidiaries of the issued ordinary shares of the
company, valid until the next annuat general meeting. At the
next annual generat meeting to be held on 3 September 2008
shareholders will be asked to renew this general authority, as
sef out in the notice to members.

No other special resolutions were passed during the year
under review.

/

Special resolutions passed by subsidiary
companies

No special resolutions of any significance were passed dur ng
the year under review.

Staff share incentive and option schemes

Detaits are reflected in note 32.1.

Post-balance sheet event

Details are reflected in note 23.
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group balance sheet

as at 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Note

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwitl and intangible assets
Preference share invesiment
Investment in associates

Staff housing loans

Private label card receivables
Loan receivables

Participation in export partnerships
Deferred taxation asset

QOO O LR

-

Current assets
Inventory 11
Trade receivabies — retail 12
Private label card receivables
Other receivables and prepayments
Loan receivables

Farticipation in expori partnerships

Cash 13

4 902,6
Total assets 70744
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity holders of Foschini Limited
Share capital 14 3,0
Share premium 498,7
Treasury shares 15 (1 230,2)
Dividend reserve 16.1 408.,8
Hedging reserve (deficit} 16.2 12,1
Share-based payments reserve 16.3 91,6
Insurance cell reservas 16.4 1,5
Retained earnings 4 059,7
Minority interest 17
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing debt 18
Operating lease liability
Deferred taxation liability 10

Current liabilities

Interest-bearing debt 18
Trade and other payables 19
Taxation payable

Post-retirement defined benefit plan 20

Totai liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
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group Income

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

statement

2008

Note
Revenue 25 92536
Retail turnover 7 668,7
Cost of turnover {4 479,2}
Gross profit 31895
Interest received 26 10564
Dividends received 17,2
Net trading expenses 27 {2 357,6)
Gperating profit before finance charges 27 1905,5
Interest paid 28 (120,1)
Income from agsociate 0,9
Profit bafore tax 1786,3
Income fax expense 29 (580,2)
Profit for the year 1 206,1
Aftributable to:
Equity holders of Foschini Limited 11284
Minority interest 777
Profit for the year 1 206,1
Earnings per ordinary share (cents)
Basic 30.1
Diluted 30.2
Dividend per ordinary share (cents)
Interim
Final 16.1
Total

2007
Rm

85278

72300
{41951}

30349
877.4
22,8

(2 048,1)

18870
(104,7)

17823
(590,3)

11920

1119.2
72,8

11920

5342
914,8

100,0
170,0

270,0
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group statement
of changes in equity

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Attributable
to equity
holders of
Share Share  Treasury Other  Retained  Foschini
capital  premiym  shares  reserves  eamings Limited
Rm Rm Rm Rm Am Rm
Euity at 31 March 2006 31 4987  (504.0) 3767 28934 [EFLTAY
Totai recognised income and expenses for the year - - - 1,3 11192 REFHUE
Effective portion of changes in fair value of
cash flow hedges” 1,3 13
Profit for the year 11192 BREEENA
Change in degree of control -
Profit on diiution of interest in subsiciary 121 112,1
Share-based payments reserve movements 19,2 19,2
Transfer from dividend reserve 1336,6) 3366 -
Dividends paid {500,6) (500,6)
Transfer to dividend reserve 4088 (4088} -
Proceeds on delivery of shares by share frust 92,9 92,9
Delivery of shares by share trust 1074 (107.4) -
Shares purchasad by share trust (288,4} (288,4)
Equity at 31 March 2007 31 498,7 (6850) 4694 35374 [REELERS
Total recognised income and expenses for the year - - - 124 11284 [QRELIA
Effective partion of changes in fair valug of
cash flow hedges® 124 12,4
Profit for the year 11284 ERRESES
Change in degree of contral
Investment in associate
Profit on dilution of interest in subsidiary 2.1
Share-based payments reserve movements 0,7
Insurance cell reserves movements 15 15
Transfer from dividend reserve (408,8) 4088
Dividends paid (592,6) (592,6)
Transfer to dividend reserve 4088 {408,8) -
Proceeds on delivery of shares by share trust 109,5 109,5
Delivery of shares by share trust 2151 (215,1) -
Shares purchased by share trust and subsidiary 01 {760,3) (760,4)
Equity at 31 March 2008 30 4987 (1230,2) 5140 40597 38452

* Denotes items recognised directly in equity
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Wity Total
kerest equity
Rm Rm

3356,8
11933

1,3
11920

7,2
112,1
19,2

(592,2)

929

(288.4)

4 004,9
12185

12,4
12061

1194
20
92,1
30,7
15

(677,4)

109,5

(760,4)
290,9 4136,




group cash flow statement

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

2008 2007
Note Rm
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating profit before working capital changes 35.1 10742 11879
Increase in working capital 352 {568,3) (218,1)
Cash generated by operations 505,9 9698
Increase in private iabel card receivables (241,6) (346.,6)
Decrease {increase) in foan receivables 150,3 (49,0
Interest received 1056,4 8774
Interest paid (120,1} (104,7)
Taxation paid 35.3 (735,1} (718,2)
Dividends received 17,2 228
Dividends paid 35.4 (677,4) (552,2)
Net cash (outflows) inflows from operating activities (44,4) 99,3
Cash tlows from investing activities
Purchase of property, ptant and equipment {274,4) {304,4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6,4 4,0
Acquisition of client list (1,8) 2.8
Invesiment in associate 6,1) -
Decrease in participation in export partnerships 10,6 6.0
Decrease in staff housing loans 1,6 1.2
Proceeds on dilution of interest in subsidiary 355 2115 183,3
Net cash outflows from investing activities {62,2) (112,7)
Cash flows from financing activities
Shares purchased by share trust and subsidiary (760,4) (288.4)
Proceeds on delivery of shares by share trust 109,5 82,9
Increase in interest-bearing debt 7418 2155
Net cash inflows from financing activities 90,9 20,0
Net {decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year 57 6,6
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 69,1 62,5
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 63,4 69,1
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group segmental analysis

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries
RCS Group Retait
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Rm Rm Rm Rm

REVENUE~
External 8742 7216 83794 7 806,2
Inter-segment - - - -

8742 721 Gl 83794 7 806,2

386,7 1518,8
(65,3) (54.8) 65 3 54, 8

1171 @0
269,6 1515,8

Total revenue

SEGMENT RESULT
Operating profit before finance charges

External interest
Inter-segment interest

Interest paid

Profit before tax and income from associate

* Includes cetail turnover, interest received and other income

SEGMENT ASSETS

Non-current assets 87,0 , 1126,3

Current assets 1004,6 , 3 898,0
Inter-segment assets (liabilities) 12,9 , (12,9) (12,9
Total assets 1 888,5 17413 EENRE 4 862,7
SEGMENT LIABILITIES

Non-cusrent liabilities 4957 , 194,3

Current liabilities 120,9 \ 1 906,0

inter-segment liabilities (assats) 6659 7254 (665,9) {725,4)

Total liabilities 1282,5 ERRAK 14344 1160,7

SEGMENT INFORMATICN

Capital expenditure 271 . 2473 3044
Depreciation and amortisation 131 191,6 1741

All retail divisions within the group operate in an established retail market and are therefore considered to be subjel
risks and rewards.

Segment revenue and expenses
Revenue and expenses that are directly attributable to segments are allocated 1o those segments.

Those that are not directly attributable to segments are allocated on a reasonable basis.

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets include alt operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating cash, receivableg
and property, plant and equipment, net of related allowances and accumutated impairmenis.

nventories

While most such assets can be directly attributable to individual segmenits, the cairying amount of certain assets us
two or more segments is aflocated to the segments on a reasonable basis. Segment liabilities include all operating lig
consist principally of trade payabies, salaries and accruals.

i jointly by
ilities, and

Inter-segment transfers

Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment result include transfers between Husiness segments.

These transfers accur at market prices and are eliminated on consolidation.
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notes to the financial statements

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity

Foschini Limited {the "company™ is a company domiciled
in South Africa, The consolidated financial statements of
the company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2008
comprise the company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “group”) and the group's interests in
associates.

Basis of Preparation
Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the group's accounting policies, which
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and have been consistently applied with those
adopied in the prior year.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the
direciors on 11 June 2008.

Basis of Measurement

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the
going concern and historical cost bases, except where
otherwise stated.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consofidated financial stalements are presented in
South Alfrican Rands, which is the company's functional
currency, rounded to the nearest milfion, unless otherwise
stated.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below:

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the parent company, its
subsidiaries, special-purpose entities (SPE) and
associates. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
prepared for the consistent reporting period using
consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power, directly or
indirectly, 1o govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity s0 as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that are
presently exercisable are taken into account. The financial
staternents of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Gains made on dilution
of interest in subsidiaries are recognised in equity,

The group has established a SPE in the form of the shzre
incentive trust. The group does not have any direct or
indirect shareholding in the share incentive trust. An SPE
is consolidated if, based on an evaluation of the substance
of its relationship with the group and the SPE's risks and
rewards, the group concludes that it contrals the SPE.
The results of the share incentive trust that in substance is
controtled by the group, are consolidated.

Associates are those entities in which the group has
significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to
exist when the group holds between 20 and 5C percent of
the voting power of ancther entity. Joint ventures are those
entities over whose activities the group has joint cont-ol,
established by coniractual agreement and requiring
unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating
decisions. Associates and jointly controlled entities are
accounted for using the equity method (equity accounted
investees) and are initialty recognised at cost. The group’s
investment includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net
of any accumufated impairment losses. The consolidated
financial staterents inclede the group's share of the
income and expenses and equity movemenis of equity
accounted investees, after adjustments to align the
accounting pelicies with those of the group, from the date
that significant influence or joint control commences until
the date that significant influence or joint control ceases.
When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interestin an
equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that
interest {including any fong-term investments) is reduced
to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the group has an obligation or has
made payments on behalf of the investee.

All intra-group transactions, intra-group balances and
any unrealised gains and losses are eliminated on
consolidation. Unrealised gains arising from transactions
with equity accounted investees are eliminated against
the investment to the extent of the group’s interest ir the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

The financial statemenis of foreign operations are
transtated in terms of the accounting policy on fareign
currencies.

The company’s financial statements measure investments
in subsidiaries at cost.

Cost of Turnover

Cost of turnover is calculated as the cost of goods sold,
including promotional costs.
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notes to the financial statements continued

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Dividends

Dividends and the related secondary tax on companies are
accounted for in the period when the dividend is declared.
Dividends declared on equity instruments after the balance
sheet date, and the refated secondary tax on companies
thereon, are accordingly not recognised as liabilities at the
balance sheet date. Final dividends declared after the
balance sheet date are however transferred to a dividend
reserve.

Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits

The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised
during the period in which the empioyee renders the
related service. The accruals for employee entitlements to
wages, salaries, annual and sick leave represent the
armount which the group has a present obligation to pay as
a result of employees’ services provided to the balance
sheet date. The short-term employee benefits have been
calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current
wage and salary rates.

Other long-term employee benefits

These are empioyee benefits (other than post-employment
benefits and termination benefits) that are not expected to
be settied within 12 months after the end of the period in
which the employees render the related service.

The group’s net obligation in respect of long-term
employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods; thal bengfit is discounted using
market-related rates and the fair value of any related
assets is deducted. The calculation is performed using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. Any actuarial gains or losses
are recogrised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Post-employment benefits

The company and its subsidiaries contribute to several
defined benefit and defined centribution plans.

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution pension, provident
and retirement funds are charged against income as
incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The Projected Unit Credit Method is used to determine the
present value of the defined benefit medical aid obligations
and the related current service cost and, where applicable,
past service cost. Actuarial gains or losses in respect of
defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in
income. Past service costs are recognised as an expense

126 + Foschini Group Annual Report 2008

on a straight-line basis over the average perid@ until the
benefits become vested. To the extent that the Hi
already vested, past service costs are

immediately.
Post-retirement medical aid benefils

same accounting methodology described in
defined benefit plans above.

Share-based payment transactions

The group grants share options 10 certain g
under an employee share plan. The fair value

measured at the grant date using a binomj
pricing model and is spread over the option {4
incurred in adminigtering the schemes are exg
incurred.

Expenses
Interest expense

intarest expense comprises interest paid and (I
borrowings calculated using the effective intde
method. All borrowing ¢osts are recognised as a

Operaling lease payments

Leases where the lessor retains the risks and righ
ownership of the underlying asset are clagfi
operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases are recd
the income statement on a straight-line basisg§l
term of the lease.

Contingent rent is expensed as incurred.
Finance Lease Payments

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks andie
of ownership of the underiying asset to the g
classified as finance feases.

Assets acquired in terms of finance leases are c
at the lower of fair value and the present val
minimum lease payments at inception of the e
depreciated over the estimated usefu! life of tH
The capital element of future obligations urder tH
is included as a liability in the bafance sheet.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned betw
finance charge and the reduction of the ou
liability. The finance charge is allocated to ea
during the lease term so as to produce a consianigeri
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the (i




notes to the financial statements continued
for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

Financial Instruments

Afinancial instrument is recognised when the group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised if the group's
contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the financia!
assets expire or if the group transfers the financial asset to
another parly without retaining conirot ar substantialy all
risks and rewards of the asset. Reguiar way purchases and
sales of financial assets are accounted for at trade date,
being the date that the group commits itself io purchase or
sell the asset. Financial liabiiities are derecognised if the
group's obligations specified in the contract expire or are
discharged or cancelled.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments recognised on the
balance sheet include cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables, staff housing loans, participation in
export partnerships, investments, interest-bearing debt
and trade and other payables,

Measurement

Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value.
For those instruments not measured at fair value through
profit and loss, directly aftributable transaction costs
are included on initial measurement. Subsequent to initial
recognition financial instruments are measured as
described helow.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measwred at amortised cost,
based on the relevant exchange rates at balance sheet date.
Outstanding cheques are included in trade and other
payables and added back to cash balances included in the
balance sheet. Cash and cash gquivalents comprise cash on
hand and amounts held on deposit at financial institutions.

Held-to-maturily investments

If the group has the positive intent and ability to hold debt
securities to maturity, then they are classified as held-to-
maturity investments. The preference share investment is
classified as a held-to-maturity investment.

These investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses.

The fair value of held-to-maturity investments is
determined by reference 1o their quoted bid price at
the reporiing date. The fair value of these investments is
determined for disclosure purposes only.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Listed investments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets arg carried at fair value, which is markel valug
calculated by reference to stock exchange-guoted selling
prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date,

after taking into account any impairment losses. Unlisted
investments are shown at fair value, which is determined
by the directors using appropriate valuation bases (after
taking into account any impairment losses), unless their
fair value cannot be reliably determined, in which case
they are shown at cost tess accumulated impairmant
losses. Currently the group does not have any availatie-
for-sale financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Staff housing loans, loan receivables, private labet card
receivables, trade receivables — retail and participation in
export partnerships are classified as loans and receivables
and are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method, less accumulated impairment losses. Amortised
cost for the group's participation in export partnerships is the
group’s cost of original participation less principal subsequant
repayments received, plus the cumulative amortisation of the
difference between the initill amount and the maturity
amount, less any writedown for impairmens of uncotlectabyity.
The fair value of loans and receivables, determined for
disclosure purposes is estimated based on the present value
of futura principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Non-derivative financial labilities including interest-
hearing debt and trade and other payables are recognised
at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal
payments and plus amortisations.

The fair value of non-derivative financial liabilities, determined
for disclosuse purposes, is estimated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at
the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Derivative financial instruments

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising
from operational, financing and investment activities. In
accordance with its treasury policy, the group does not hold or
issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Derivative financial instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value, with the gain or loss on
remeasurement being recognised immedigtely in profit or
loss. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge
accounting, recognition of any gain or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge (refer hedging accounting policy).

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimatad
amount that the group would receive or pay (o terminzte
the swap at the balance sheet date, taking into accolnt
current interest rates and the current greditworthiness of
the swap counterparties.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is the present
value of their forward price.
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1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Detivative financial instruments continued
Share capital

Ordinary shares

Crdinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly atiributable to the issue of ordinary shares and
share options are recognised as a deductien from equity,
net of any tax effects.

Preference share capital
Preference share capital is classified as equity, Dividends
thereon are recognised as distributions within equity.

Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

All fair value gains and losses on subsequent measurement
of financial instruments are recognised in profit or 0ss,
except for hedged instruments and availabie-for-sale
assets. Hedged instruments are accounted for as described
in the hedging accounting policy. Gains and losses arising
from available-for-sale financial assels are recognised
directly in equity, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on available-for-sale
mongtary items which are recognised in the income
statement. When an investment classified as available-for-
safe is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss in equity
is transferred to profit or loss.

Oftset

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet when the group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounis, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simulianeously.

Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of each entity within the group is
determined based cn the currency of the primary
economic environment in which that entity operates.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in cuirencies other than the entity’s
functional currency are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling on the transaction date.

Monetary asseis and liabilities denominated in such
currencies are transiated at the rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Foreign currency gains and losses arising on
fransiation are recognised in profit or loss, except for
differences arising on the translation of available-for-sale
equity instruments, which are recognised directly in eguity.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities dencminated in such
currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction.

Foreign aperations

As at the halance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of
foreign operations, including goodwill and fair vatug
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adjustments arising on acquisition, are translat into the
presentation currency of the group at the rate ofxchange
ruling at the balance sheet dats and thej income
statements are translated at the exchange ros at the
dates of the transactions or the average ges if it
approximates the actual rates.

Gains and tosses arising on translation of @@ assets,
fiabilities, income and expenses of foreign EBerations
are recognised directly in equity as a foreigigicurrency
translation reserve.

Goodwill

All business combinations are accounted {or fERapplying
the purchase method. Goodwill representSERmounts
arising on acquisition of subsidiaries, associatejiand joint
ventures and is the difference between the gt of the
acquisition and the group’s interest in the net {3 value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and continger@iabiiities
of the acquiree. When the difference is negativ@linegative
goodwill), it is recognised immediately in profit §i loss.

Goodwill is measured at cost less any ag@mulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated @b cash-
generating units and is not amortised buillls tested
annually for impairment and whenever thille is an
indication of impairment,

In respect of equity accounted investees, Ul carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carryingnount of
the investment.

Hedging

Gains and losses from remeasuring thglhedging
instruments relating to a fair value hedge at fajilvalue are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

To the extent that they are effective, gains and [@ses from
remeasuring the hedging instruments relatinglie a cash
flow hedge to fair value are initially recognigled directly
in equity. If the hedged firm commitment @ forecast
transaction resulis in the recognition of a ndafinancial
asset or a lighility, the cumulative amount regnised in
equity up to the transaction date is adjusted @&ainst the
initial measurement of the asset or liability. For§her cash
flow hedges, the cumulative amount recognisgin equity
is included in net profit or loss in the perioq@when the
comymitment or forecast transaction affects prigt or loss.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is Jcognised
immediately in the income statement,

Where the hedging instrument ar hedge relJ@bnship is
terminated but the hedged transaction is still gibected to
oceur, the cumulative unrealised gain or (0ss ahat point
remains in equity and is recognised in accordar@e: with the
above policy when the transaction occurs. f Jie hedged
transaction is no longer expected to occur, thegmulative
unrealised gain or loss is recognised in € income
statement immediately,
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Impairment of Assets
Financial assets

A financial asset is assassed at each reporling date to
determine whether there is any objective evidence that it
is impaired. A financial asse! is considered to be impaired
if objective evidence indicates that one or more evants
have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset.

An Impairment loss in respect of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost is calcutated as the difference
between its carrying amount, and the present value of the
estimated fulure cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an
availatle-for-sale financial asset is calculated by reference
{0 its current fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for
impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Alt impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss, Any
cumulative [0ss in respect of an available-for-sale financial
asset recognised previously in equity is transferred to
protfit or loss,

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be
related objectively te an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost and availzble-for-sale
financial assets that are debt securities, the reversal is
recognised in profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial
assets that are equity securities, the reversal is recognised
directly in equity.

Non-financial assets

The carrying values of the group’s non-financial assets,
other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determing whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives or that are not yet available for use,
recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverabie amount, A cash-generating unit is the smallest
identifiable asset group that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or asset groups. Impairment (055838 are recognised
in profit or toss. Impairment losses recognised in respact
of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units and
then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (group of units) on a pre rata basis. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
10 sell. In assessing valug in use, the estimated future cash

flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In
respect of other assets, impafrment losses recognised in
prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, An
fmpairment loss is reversed only io the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount hat
would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
rzalisable value, Net realisable value is the estimated
sefling price in the ordinary course of btsiness, less selling
BXpenses,

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in-first-out
principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inveniories and bringing them to their present location
and condition.

Property, Plant and Equipment

ltems of property, ptant and equipment are measured at
cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The cost of seli-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the
asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Certain items of property, plant and equipment that had
been revalued to fair value on or prior to transition to IFRS,
are measured on the basis of deemed cost, being the fair
value at the date of transition.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated o1 a
straight-line basis over the periods of their estimated
useful lives, at the following rates per anaum;

Shogpfittings 22%
Passenger vehicles 20%
Commercial vehickes 25%
Computers and refated equipment 20% — 33%
Furniture and fittings 16,67%
Buildings 3.33%

Land is not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, usefu! lives and residual values are
reassessed at each reporting date.
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1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued
Property, Plant and Equipment continued

The cost of replacing part of an item cf property, plant anc
equipment is recogrised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will fiow to the group, and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. The day-to-day servicing
costs of property, plant and equipment are recognised in
prafit or loss as incurred.

Gains or losses on the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are credited or charged to income. The profit or
loss is ihe difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the group, which
have finite useful lives, are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumutated impairment
losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it
increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite uselul lives is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of intangible assets, other than
goodwill, from the date that they are available for use. The
estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
pericds are as follows:

Client lists 50%
Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balange sheet when the
group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date an¢ adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

Revenue Recognition
Turnover

Turnover represents the invoiced valug of retail sales,
excluding intra-group sales and Value Added Tax. Sales are
recognised when significant risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred 10 the buyer, tharg is no
continuing management involvement with the goods, the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably, costs and
possible return of goods can be measured reliably and
receipt of the future econcmic benefits is probable.
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received or receivable, net of refurns and
discounts and rebates.

Interest received

Interest is recognised on a time-preportion b
account of the principal outstanding and the e
over the period to maiurity, when it is probable
income wili accrue to the group.

Dividends received

Dividends received on equity instruments are
when the right to receive payment is establishd

Merchants’ commission

Commission income is recognised when |
transaction on which the commission is earneg
concluded.

Club income
Club income is recognised in the income statement
Insurance income

Insurance income is recognised in the incomefR
when due and no further services are required.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and defd

income tax expense is charged to the income
except to the extent that it relates o a transac
recognised directly in equity, in which case it is §
in equity.

Current tax is the expected taxation payable, cal
the basis of taxable income for the vear, using th
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance §
and any adjustment of taxation payable for previo

Deferred taxation is recognised using the bal
method, to take into account the effect of
differences between the tax base of an asset
and its balance sheet carrying amount. Deferrecii
recognised for the following temporary differg
initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recogmiti
assets and liahitities in a transaction that is not 4
combination and that affects neither accoufm
taxable profit; and differences relating 10 inves
subsidiaries and associates to the extent

probably will not reverse in the foreseeab
Deferred tax is measured at the 1ax rates that arg
to be applied to temporary differences when the
based on the laws that have been enacted or sulj
enacted by the reporting date.

is not

Deferred tax assets and #abilities are offset if
legaty enforceable right to offset current tax liab
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by
tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on di§
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entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a nat basis, or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simultaneously.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences and assessed losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which such deductible temporary differences and
assessed losses can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.

Secondary taxation on companies is provided in respect
of dividend payments or declarations, net of dividends
received or receivable, and is recognised as a tax charge
in the year in which the related dividend is declared and
the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

Earnings Per Share

The group presents hasic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calcutated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable 1o ordinary
shareholders of the company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the peried.
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprise share options granted to employees.

Treasury Shares

Foschini Limited shares purchased and held by
subsidiaries are classified as lreasury shares and are
presented as a reduction of equity.

Dividends received on treasury shares are eliminated on
consolidation.

Gains or losses on disposal of treasury shares are
accounted for directly in equity.

Issued and weighted average numbers of shares are reduced
by treasury shares for eamings per share purposes.

Segmental Reporting

The group is primarily & retailer of fashion goods, sports
appared, jewetlery, cosmetics, celiphones and homeware
with significant business interests in the finance services
industry. On a primary basis, the company is organised
into two major operating divisions:

¢ Retail —~ comprising the group's varipus trading
divisions; and

* RCS Group ~ comprising RCS Personal Loans, RCS Cards
and RCS Private Label Cards.

The group operates solely in the southern African market
and accordingly has not identified any secondary
segments.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length
hasis.

Segment results include revenue and expenses directly
attributable to a segment and the relevant portion of
enterprise revenue and expenses that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to a segment, whether from external
transactions or from transactions with other group
segments. Segment results are determined before any
adjustments for minority interest and taxation.

Segment assets and labilities comprise those operating
assets and liabilities, excluding taxation, that are directly
atiributable 1o the segment or can be allocated 1o the
segment on a reasonable basis. Segment assets zre
determined after deducling related allowances that ere
reported as direct offsets in the group's balance sheet.

Segment capital expenditure represents the total costs
incurred during the period to acquire segment assets that
are expected 10 be used during more than one pericd,
namety, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
other than goodwill.

Significant Judgements

The preparation of financial statemenis in conform ty
with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Aciual resuits may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and undertying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgerments made in applying the group's accounting
policies, that potentially have a significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are as
follows:

Trade receivables impairment

Trade receivables are disclosed net of any accumulated
impairment losses. The calculation of the impairment
amount is performed using the internationally-recognised
Markov mode!. The Markov model uses delinquency roll
rates on customer balances to determinge the inherent bad
debt in a debtors’ book. The directors believe that tre
application of the Markov model resuits in {rade
receivables balances being measured reliably.

Other

Further estimates and judgements are made relating to net
realisable value of inventory; residual values, useful lives
and depreciation methods; goodwill impairment tests
frefer note 3); estimating the fair value of share optiens
granted (refer note 32.1); and pension fund and employee
ohbligations (refer note 32).
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2. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and buildings
At deemed cost
Accumulated depreciation

Carrying value at the end of the year

Shopfittings, vehicles, computers and furniture and fittings
At cost
Accumutated depreciation

17815
{1133,1)

Carrying value at the end of the year

Total
At cost/deemed cost
Accumulated depreciation

(1191,2)

Carrying value at the end of the year

Analysis of movements

Shopfittings,
vehicles,
computers
Land and and furniture
buildings and fittings

Carrying value at the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

205,5 576,6 782,1
- 274.4 274,4
(0.4) (5.9) (6,3)
(6,1} (196,7) (202,8)

Carrying value at the end of the year

199,0 648 4 8474

None of the group's assets are in any way encumbered.

Registers of the land and buildings are available for inspection at the head office of the company at Parow EastJ
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2008 2007
Rm
3. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill
At cost 27,0
Accumulated impairment losses -
Carrying vaiue at the end of the year 27,0
Intangible asset on acquisition of Instinct brand
At cost 1.6
Accumulated amortisation -
Carrying value at the end of the year 1.6
intangible asset on acquisition of client lists
At cost 44
Accumulated amortisation {2,1)
Carrying value at the end of the year 2,3
Total
At cost 33,0
Accumulated impairmant losses/amortisation (2,1}
Carrying value at the end of the year 30,9
Intangible asset  Intangible asset
on acquisition of  on acquisition of
Goodwill Instingt brand client lists Tota!
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 27,0 1.6
Additions - -

Impairment losses/amartisation - -

Carrying value at the end of the year 27.0 16

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent fiabilities acquired through business combinations.

The Instingt brand intangible asset represents registered rights to the exclusive use of certain trademarks and brand names.
The client lists are name lists purchased by the RCS Group which are used to invite individuals to apply for loans.
Indefinite life goodwill is tested annually for impairment and as soon as there is an indication of impairment.

2008 2007
Rm Rm

Impairment testing of indefinite life goodwill
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated to two
individual cash-generating units as follows:

Totalsparts acquisition 9.3
RCS Personal Finance piecemeal acquisition 17,7
27.C

The recoverable amount of both cash-generating units has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation, using cash
flow projections which cover a three-year period. The cash flows have been discounted at a rate of 10%.

The fotlewing significant assumptions have been applied when reviewing the goodwill impairment:

- asset values have been based on the carrying amounts for the financial peried,

— {uture expected profits have been estimated using historical information and approved budgets;

— Totalsporis' sales growths and gross margins were based on historical performance, while costs were assumed to grow
in line with expansion and expectation of inflation; and

— RCS Personal Finance projections are based on historical performance as well as anticipated growth in advances and
expectations of future interest rates.
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2008 2007

4. PREFERENCE SHARE INVESTMENT
Held-to-maturity investment
Cumulative preference shares

Comprises an investmant of R200 miliion, redeemahle from 25 August 2011, with
dividends payable biannually on 15 December and 15 June.

This investment eams dividends at a rate of 63% of prirse compounded semi-annualty,
The group’s management of and exposure to credit and market risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.

5. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
RCS Home Loans (Proprietary) Limited
Effective Inteliigence (Proprietary) Limited

The group's share of profit in its equity accounted investees for the year was
R0O,9 million (2007: Rnif). This share of profit is in respect of Effective Intelligence
(Proprietary) Limited, as the group did not recognise its share of losses relating to
RCS Home Loans (Proprietary) Limited since the group has no obligation in respect
of these losses.

Summary financial information for equity accounted investeas, not adjusted for the
percentage ownership held by the group, are as follows:

RCS Home Loans (Proprietary) Limited
Revenue

Net loss before taxation
Taxation

Net loss after taxation

Non-current assets
Current assets

Equity
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Effective Intelligence (Proprietary) Limited
Revenue

Net profit before taxation
Taxation

Net profit after taxation

Non-current assets
Current asseis

Equity
Current liabilities
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2008 2007
fm
6. STAFF HOUSING LOANS
Leans and receivables
Staff housing loans 38
Deduct amount 10 be repaid within one year, included in other receivables and
prepayments 0.9
29
Housing loans made to employees are secured by mortgage bonds, bear interes
at varying rates linked to prime, and are repayable over varying periods, not
exceeding 20 years.
The group’s management of and expesure to credit and market risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.
7. PRIVATE LABEL CARD RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables
Private label card receivables 826,7
Deduct amount to be repaid withir one year, included in current assets 67%.7
155,0
Private label card receivables comprise a number of ingividual ursecured
revolving card accounts, which attract interest at variable rates as per the
National Credit Act.
The effective interest rate on these receivables for the year under review is 35,3%
(2007: 34,2%).
The amounts are repayable over periods not exceeding two years.
There is a cession over these receivables in favour of The Standard Bank of
South Africa Limited (SBSA) and Foschini Retail Group (Proprietary} Limited jointly
in relation to their respective funding. Refer note 18.
The group's management of and expesure to credit and market risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.
8. LOAN RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables
Loan receivables 866,5
Deduct amount to be repald within one year, included in current assets 160,2
706,3

Loan receivables comprise a number of individual unsecured loans. The loans hear interest at fixed rates determined on the
initial advance of the loan based on the risk profile of the customer. The effective rate of interest earned during the year under
review is 36,7% (2007: 36,3%). These loans are repayable over periods not exceeding five years.

Thera is a cession over these receivables in favour of The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited {SBSA) and Foschini Retall
Group (Proprietary) Limited jointly in relation to their respective funding. Refer note 18.

The group’s managemend of and exposure to credit and market risk is disclosed in notes 21 and 22.
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2008

9.  PARTICIPATION IN EXPORT PARTNERSHIPS
Loans and receivables
Certain subsidiary compan:es participated in various export partnerships, whose
business was the purchase and export sale of containers. The partnerships bought
and sold the containers in terms of long-term suspensive purchase and credit sale
agreements respectively, with repayment terms usually over a 10- 10 15-year period
Deduct amount to be repaid within one year, included in current assets

The group’s management of and exposure to credit and market risk is disclosed
in notes 21 and 22.

10. DEFERRED TAXATION

Balance at 1 Aprii

Prior year gverprovision

Rate change

Current year movement in temporary differences
Secondary tax on companies
Operating leases
Working capital allowances
(apital allowances
Restraint of trade payments
Export partnerships {refer note 9)

At 31 March

Arising as a result of:

Deferred tax assets
Secondary tax on companies
Operating leases
Working capital allowances
Capital allowances
Restraint of trade payments
Trademarks

Deferred taxation assat

Deferred tax liability
Capital alfowances
Working capital allowances
Export partnerships {refer note 9

Deferred taxation fiability

Total deferred taxation

In the event that the total availabte distributable reserves of R4 573,7 (2007: R4 006,8) million were declared g

to sharehotders, the related secondary tax on companies would amount to R415,8 (2007: B445,2) million,
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2008 2007
Rm

11. INVENTORY
Merchandise
Raw materials
Goods in transit
Shopfitting stock
Consumables

11948
44,4
34,3
18,1

13

12929

Inventory writedowns included above

64,2

12. TRADE RECEIVABLES — RETAIL
Leans and receivables
6-manth revalving credit
12-month extended credit

13701
865,1

22352

The effectiva rate of interest earned on the above receivables during the year
under review is 15,3% (2007 12,8%).

The group's management of and exposure to credit and market risk is disciosed
in notes 21 and 22.

13. CASH
Bank balances

69,1

¢ & & & & 0 o 2 0 & 0 " " 0 0 0
¢ & @ & & & & 5 8 5 " " O OO " e
® & & & & & & * & 2 " O " " " P
® & & & & & & & 8 2 8 B O O O " 0 0
¢ & & & % 6 9 0 O O O B S e
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14. SHARE CAPITAL
14.1 Authorised
200 000 {2007: 200 000) 6,5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each
600 000 000 (2007: 600 000 000) ordinary shares of 1,25 cents each

Number of shares

2008 2007

14.2  Issued
Ordinary share capital
Ordinary shares of 1,25 cents each
Total in issue — company and group 240 498 241 ERLURLLPLY
Shares held by subsidiary (wZIEEE ISR (16 877 827)
Shares held by share incentive trust [RRE:ERLYAR (11 667 877)

LRI 240 498 241
204 564 465 EPARRCLYAXT
Preference share capital

200 000 (2007: 200 000) 6,5% cumulative preference shares of R2 each

Balance at the end of the year — company

Balance at the end of the year — group

Total issued share capital - company

Total net issued share capital — group

14.3 Dividends
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled io receive dividends as declared from time to time and are e
vote per share at meetings of the company. Holders of the cumulative preference shares receive a cumulgRve dividend
of 6,5 cents per share at interim (September) and year-end (March) of each year.

14.4  Unissued
In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act No. 61 of 1973, and fimited to the issuing of shares |
company's obligations under the staff share incentive schemes, the unissued ordinary shares are under il control of
the directors enly until the ferthceming annual general meeting.

138 « Foschini Group Annual Report 2008




notes to the financial statements continued

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

14. SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED
14.5 Directors’ interest

At 31 March 2008, 1he directors had the following interests in the company’s issued shares:

Options Price per 2007
Shares exercised share Year of Total
000's 000’s R delivery 000's

Non-executive
E Osrin (beneficial) 105,0 - - - 100,0
D M Nurek (non-beneficial) 10,0 - - - 10,0
F Abrahams - - - - -
S E Abrahams - - - - -
L F Bergman® - - - - -
WV Cuba - - - - -
N H Goodwin {beneficial) 270 - - - 27,0 27,0
1420 - 142,0 137,0
M Lewis {beneficial) 2221 - - - 2221 2221
M Lewis [non-beneficial) 14 9326 - - - 14 932 6 14 0556
151547 - 15 154,7 142777
D M Polak {beneficialy** 22738 - - - 22738 1188,0
D M Polzk {non-beneficial) 2120 - - - 212,0 212,0
D M Polak - - 6,35 2008 4792
D M Polak - - 16,60 2008 2833
D M Polak - - 18,80 2008 2000
D M Polak - - 9,70 2008 302,5
D M Polak - - 16,60 2008 2833
D M Polak - - 18,80 2008 200,0
D M Polak - 200,0 36,00 2009 200,0 200,0
D M Polak - 150,0 60,95 2009 150,0 150,0
D M Polak - 200,0 36,00 2011 2006 200,0
0 M Polak - 150,0 60,95 20M 150,0 150,0
D M Polak - 150,0 60,95 2013 150,0 150,0
24858 850,0 33358 39983
Total non-executive 17 7825 850,0 18 632,5 18 4130
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Options Price per 2008
Shares exercised share Year of Total
000's 000's R delivery 000's

14. SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED
14.5 Directors’ interest continued
Executive
A D Murray (bensficial# 10358 - - -
A D Murray (non-beneficial) 137.6 - - -

A D Murray - - 18,80 2008
A D Murray - - 16,60 2008
A D Murray - 200,0 9,70 2009
A D Murray - 133,3 60,95 2009
A D Murray - 116,7 36,00 2009
A D Murray - 123.3 18,80 2010
A D Murray - 166,7 16,60 2010
A D Murray - 83,3 60,55 2010
A D Murray - 133,3 60,95 20
A O Murray - 16,7 36,00 2011
A D Murray - 83,3 60,55 2012
A D Murray - 133,3 60,95 2013
A D Murray - 83,3 60,55 2014
11734 13732
R Stein {beneficial) 600,8 - - -
R Stein (non-beneficial) 2757 - - -
R Stein - - 18,80 2008
R Stein - - 16,60 2008
R Stein - - 6,35 2008
R Stein - 90,0 36,00 2009
R Stein - 143,3 9,70 2009
R Stein - 76,7 60,85 2009
R Stein - 93,3 18,80 2010
R Stein - 116,7 16,60 2010
R Stein - 90,0 36,00 2011
R Stein - 76,7 60,95 2011
R Stein - 76,7 60,95 2013
876,5 763,4
Total executive 20499 21366
Total 198324 2986,6

* L F Bergman resigned as a non-executive director of the group with effect from 14 Agril 2008,
“* D M Polak retired on 31 Decermnber 2007 but continues to serve as a non-executive director from this data.
# A D Murray was appointed as an executive director on 2 April 2007 and as group CEQ on 1 January 2008.

No changes have been advised since 31 March 2008 other than the resignation of L F Bergman.
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15. TREASURY SHARES
In terms of a special resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the company on 5 September 2007 shareholders
renewed the approval, as a general authority, of the acquisition by the company or any of its subsidiaries, of the issued ordinary
shares of the company, not exceeding 20% in aggregate in any one financial year. The general authority is subject to the
Listings Reguirements of the JSE Limited and the Companies Act No. 61 of 1973 of South Africa as amended, and is valid
only untit the company’s next annual general meeting.

Number of shares

2008 2007
Foschini Stores (Proprietary) Limited 16 877 827 16 877 827
The Foschini Share incentive Trust 11 667 877 11 049 675
Balance at the beginning of the year 28 545 704 27 827 502
Foschini Stores (Proprigtary) Limited 7171997 -
The Foschini Share Incentive Trust 5 307 620 5270714
Shares purchased during the year 12 479 617 5270714
The Foschini Share Incentive Trust {5 091 545} (4 852 512)
Shares delivered during the year (5 091 545} (4652 512)
Foschini Stores (Proprietary) Limited 24 049 824 16 877 827
The Foschini Share Incentive Trust 11 883 952 11 667 877

Balance at the end of the year 35933776 28 545 704

As at 31 March 2008 a subsidiary, Foschini Stores (Proprigtary) Limited, hetd 24 049 824 (2007: 16 877 827) shares,
representing 10,0% {2007: 7,0%) of the company's sharg capital. The Foschini Share Incentive Trust held 11 883 952
(2007: 11 667 877) sharas, representing 4,9% (2007: 4,9%) of the company's share capital.
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16, RESERVES
16.1 Dividend reserve
A liability for cash dividends and the related secondary taxation on companies {STC) charge is recognised ighe period
when the dividend is dectared. An amount egual to dividends declared subsequent to the balance shiiet date is
transterred to the dividend reserve.

A final dividlend of 170,0 (2007: 170,0) cents per ordinary share was declared on 29 May 2008 payable on 14
This wit give rise to STC of R33,7 million {net of relevant STC credits).

No liability has been raised, as this dividend was declared subsequent to the balance sheet date.

2008 2007
fm 8Bm

Balance at 1 Agril
Transfer from dividend reserve to distributable earnings
Transfer to dividend reserve from distributable earnings

336,6)
108,8

08,8

Balance at 31 March

16.2 Hedging reserve {deficit)
The hedging reserve (deficity comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

Balance at 1 April (1,6)
Unrealised gain on hedging instrumants 13
Balance at 31 March {0.3)
16.3 Share-based payments reserve

This compriges the cumulative fair value of options granted 1o employees

after 7 November 2002.

Balance at 1 April M7
Sharg-based paymeant reserve movement 19,2
Balance at 31 March 60,9

16.4 Insurance celi reserves
As the insurance cells are defined as short-term insurers, they are required
in terms of the provisions of the Short-Term Insurance Act No. 53 of 1998
o maintain a contingency reserve for adverse claims developmeni. This
reserve is cafculated at a minimum of 10% of net writien premium as
defined in the legislation.

No distribution of this reserve ¢an be made without the prior approval of
the Registrar of Short-Term Insurance.

Balance at 1 April
Transfer to reserves

Balance at 31 March
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17.

18.

19.

20.

MINORITY INTEREST

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited (SBSA} increased its shareholding in the RCS Group from 35% to 45% during the

current financial year,

RCS Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited issued new shares during the year which resulted in a dilution in shareholding
of 10% (refer note 35.5), thus taking SBSA's total shareholding to 45% at 31 March 2008, with the remaining 55% being

held by the group.

2008 2007
Rm fim

INTEREST-BEARING DEBT

Non-current

Unsecured fluctuating loans in terms of long-term bank facilities at prevailing
interest rates

10146

Current

59

Included in interest-bearing debt is an amount of R495,2 {2007: R389,7) million
advanced by The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited (SBSA) to RCS Investment
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (RCSHH) and its subsidiaries in terms of a funding
agreement between the parties. This funding agreement is not subject to any
guarantee or security from Foschini Limited or any of its subsidiaries except RCSH
and accordingly can orly be repaid out of the cash flows of RCSIH and its
subsidiaries. Refer notes 7 and 8.

The group’s borrowing powers in terms of the articles of association of the
company are unlimited.

The group’s management of and exposure to market and cash flow and liquidity
risk is disclosed in notes 21 and 22.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other liabilities

VAT payable

Other payables and accruals

828,2

36
3399

1177

The group's management of and exposure to market and cash flow and liquidity
rigk is disclosed in notes 21 and 22.

POST-RETIREMENT DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Post-retirement medical aid

Batance at 1 April

Accruals made during the year

80,1
4.0

Balance at 31 March

84,1

Further details in respect of post-retirement medical aid benefits are inciuded in note 32.5.
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| 21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
i 211 Qverview
The group has exposure to the foltowing risks from its use of financial Instruments:

e credit risk;
» cash flow and liquidity risk; and
e market risk.

This note presents information about the graup's exposure to each of the above risks and the group's BB

policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative disclosures are included §
these consolidated financial staiements.

The board of directars has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the group’s risk m
framework. The board has established the risk committee, which is responsible for developing and mo

The group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the gr
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monior risks and adherence to limits. Risk management pd
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the group’s activities. The gro
its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and construct
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the
by the group. The group audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
the audit committee.

|

| 212 Credit risk

| Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the group it a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument {a

| its contractual obligations and arises on trade receivables — retail, cash equivalents, investments, parti
export partnerships, staff housing loans, loan receivables and private tabel card receivables.

Trade receivables — retail
The group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
concentration of credit risk.

The risk arising on trade receivables — retail is managed through a stringent group policy on the grantingli
review and monitoring of credit sales. The group has established a credit policy under which each new ciii
analysed individually for creditworthiness before payment terms and conditions are offered. A creditjicili

established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval frg
management committee; these limits are reviewed annually.

The group does not require collaterat in respect of trade and other receivables.

The group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respe

and other receivables. The allowance is calculated using the internationally-recognised Markov model, TR

model uses delinquency roll rates on customer balances 1o determine the inherent bad debt in a deb
The board of directors believe that the application of the Markov model results in trade receivables bala
measured fairly,
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

21.2

21.3

214

Credit risk continued

Cash equivalents and investments

The group limits its exposure to credit risk through dealing with well-established financia! institutions with high credit
standing, and thus management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations. The group does not
consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk in respect of which adequate impairment has not been
raised.

Participation in export partnerships

A company listed on the JSE Limited has warranted certain important cash flow aspects of the subsidiary companies’
participation in export parinerships. The group does not consider there to be any significant concentration of cradit
risk in respect of which adequate impairment has not been raised.

Staff housing loans, toan receivables and private label card receivables

The group fimits its exposure to credit risk through a stringent group policy on the granting, continual review and
maonitoring of loan advances. The group does not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk in
respact of which adequate impairment has not been raised.

Cash flow and liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall dus. The group's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it wili always have sufficient cash flow to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incusring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the group's
feputation.

This risk is managed through cash flow forecasts, the optimisation of daily cash management and by ensuring 1hat
adeguate borrowing facilities are maintained. In terms of the articles of association, the group’s borrowing powers are
unlimited,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices
will affect the group's income or the value of its heldings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management i to manage and contral market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the
return.

The group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks
arising from operational, financing and investment actwities. In accordance with its treasury policy, the group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

Currency risk
The group is exposed to currency risk as operating subsidiaries underiake transactions that are denominated in foreign
currencies. These currencies are the euro, US Dollars {USD) and Sterfing (GBP).

At any point in time it is the group’s intention to hedge all its estimated foreign currency exposure in respect of forecast
purchases over the following six months. The group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, most
with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date. When necessary, forward exchange contracts are rolled
over at maturity.

Refer to note 22.3 for further details.

Interest rate risk
The group is exposed to interest rate risk as il both borrows and invests funds. This risk is managed by maintairing
an approgriate mix of fixed and floating rate instruments with reputable financial institutions.

In addition, the RCS Group enters into interest rate swap contracts for the purposes of cash flow hedging since the
loan receivables largely bear interest at fixed rates whilst borrowings bear inferest at variable rates.
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21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED
21.5 Capital management
The group primarily makes use of equity for capital
management purposes.

The board's policy is to maintain a strong capitat base
S0 as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence, and to sustain future development of
business. The board of directors monitors the return on
equity, which the group defines as profit for the year
divided by total average equity, including minority
interests. The board of directors also monitors the level
of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The board seeks to maintain a balance between the
higher returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and Security
afforded by a sound capital position. The group's
medium-term target is to achieve a return on equity of
35%, in 2008 the return was 29,6% {2007: 32,5%).

From time 1o time the group purchases its own shares
on the market. The shares are primarily intended to be
used 1o meet the group’s ohligations in terms of its
share option schemes {refer note 32).

There were no changes in the group's approach to
capiial management during the year.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements
excepl for the subsidiaries of RCS Investment
Heldings {Proprigtary) Limited who in terms of the
shareholders' agreement with SBSA cannot lend in
excess of 70% of their combined trade receivables
value. This requirement has been met for the year
under review.
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
221 Credit risk
Exposure
The maximum exposure 1o credit rigk is represented by the carrying amouni of each financial asset in the balance
sheet.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Carrying amount
2008 2007
R Rm

Held-to-maturity investments

Preference share investment 200,0
Loans and receivables
Staff housing loans 2,9
Private label card receivables 826,7
Loan receivables 866,5
Participation in export partnerships 111
Trade receivables - retail 22352
Cther receivables and prepayments 186,9
Cash and cash equivalents 69,1
Interest rate swaps used for hedging
Assets -
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging
Assets -
Liabilities (0,3}
4 4981
The group believes that there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Impairment losses
The group manages the ageing of its trade receivables — retail book on
both a contractual and recency basis, bul uses the recency basis to
calculate writeoff and impatrment losses. Recency refers to the number of
payment cycles that have elapsed since the fast qualifying payment was
received,
Recency categories range from 0 to 5, at which point the account will be
charged off, unless the payment profile score is above a fixed level,
The ageing of past due unimpaired trade receivables — retail at 31 March
was:
Recency 1 346,3
Recency 2 107,9
Recency 3 45,7
Recency 4 15,0
Recency 5 2,2
5171
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
22.1  Credit risk continued
Impairment losses continued

The moverment in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade
receivables — retail during the year was as follows:

Balance at 1 April
Impairment raised
Impairment 10ss recognised

Balance at 31 March

During the year the group renegotiated the terms of customers to the value
of R131,0 (2007 R51,4) million. No impairment in respect of these
customers was recognised (2007 Rnil).

The group manages the ageing of its loan receivables and private label
card receivables on a contractuai basis.

The ageing of past due unimpaired oan receivables at 31 March was:

Past due 0 — 30 days

Past due 31 — 60 days

Past due 61 — 90 days

Past due more than 91 days

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of ioan
receivables during the year was as follows:

Balance at 1 Aprit
Impairment raised
Impairment loss recognised

Balance ai 31 March

No lean receivables have been renegotiated during the year (2007: Rnil).

The ageing of past due unimpaired private label card receivables at
31 March was:

Past due 0 — 30 days

Past due 31 — 60 days

Past due 61 - 90 days

Past dug more than 31 days

The movemsnt in the allowance for impairment in respect of private label
card receivables during the year was as follows:

Balance at 1 April
Impairment raised
Impairment loss recognised

Balance at 31 March

Included in the carrying amount of private Iabel card receivables is R73,5 (2007: Rnil) million refating to
whose terms have been renegotiated, which would otherwise have been past due.

Customers that are not past due and have a good track record with the group make up 74,9% of the trade ei

— retail book (2007: 75,0%), 84,5% of loan receivables (2007 83,6%) and 57,6% of the private label card
(2007: 65,7%).
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
22.2  Cash flow and liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liakilities:

Carrying
amouni

31 March 2008

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing debt

Trade and other payables

31 March 2007
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Cash flows

Less than More than
Tyear 1-5years 5 years

Interest-bearing debt 10205 10205 59 10146 -

Trade and other payables 11717 11717 11717 - -

Derivative financial fiabilities

Interest rate swaps used for hedging - {6,3) 4.3) 2,0) -

Forward exchange contracts used for

hedging 0,3 1851 185,1 - -
21925 23710 1 368,4 1012,6 -

The foliowirng table indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with derivatives that are cash flow hedces

are expected to occur and impact profit o loss:

31 March 2008
Interest rate swaps
Assets

Forward exchange contracts
Assets

31 March 2007
Interest rate swaps

2,0

(134,9)
(132,9)

18

(134,9)
(133,0)

Assets - 6,3 43 2,0 -

Forward exchange contracts

Liabilities 0,3 (185,4) (185,1) - -
0,3 {178,8) (180,8) 2,0 -
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
22.3 Currency risk
Exposure to currency risk
Exposure to currency risk is hedged through the use of forward exchange contracts. At 31 March the froup had
forward exchange contracts in various currencies in respect of future commitments, which do not relatejlls specific
Balance sheet items. These amounted o

Rand

eq@valent
Foreign {at @rward
currency COr rate)
000's R'000

31 March 2008

UsD 17 528 151 467
BUro 214 2 350
GBP 73 1 068

124 885

31 March 2007

usp 19 396
euro 190 850
GBP 130 | 856

1% 102

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate 31 March spot raf
2008 2007 2008 2007

ush 7,15 7,06 8,14 7,30
euro 10,14 9,06 12,43 9,76
GBP 14,34 13,37 16,04 4,35

Sensitivity analysis
The group is primarily exposed to the US Dollar, euro and British Pound currencies. The following analysjindicates
the group’s sensitivity at year-end to the indicated movements in these currencies on financial instrumentqgiassuming
that alt other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The rates of sensitivity are the rates $&ed when
reporting the currency risk to the hoard and represents management's assessment of the potential changgliin foreign
currency exchange rates at the reporting date.

A 10% strengthening of the Rand against the following currencies at 31 March would have increased @ecreased)
gquity and profit of loss by the amounts shown below.

Equity Profifger loss
HEm Rm

31 March 2008

USD 11,4

euro 0,2

GBP 0,1

31 March 2007

usH 17,4

auro 0,1 -
GBP 0,1 -

A 10% weakening of the Rand against the above currencies at 31 March weuld have had the equal but opp@isite effect
on the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that alf other variables remain constag
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

224

22.5

Interest rate risk
Profile
At 31 March the interest rate profile of the group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:

Carrying amount

2008 2007
RAm
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets 716,2 866,5
Financial kahilities (100,0} -
616,2 866,5

Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 35479 31339
Financial lizbilties (1 662,3) (1020,5)
1885,6 21134

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, ang
the group does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as hedging instruments under a fair value hedge
accounting model. Therefore a change in interest rates at 31 March would not affect profit or loss.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

An increase of 100 basis peints in interest rates at 31 March would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates,
remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2007.

Profit or tpss Equity
RAm Rm

31 March 2008
Variable rate instruments
Interest rate swaps

Cash flow sensitivity {net)
31 March 2007

Variable rate instruments 94,7 -
intarest rate swaps 46 7.5
Cash flow sensitivity (net} 99,3 7.5

A decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at 31 March would have had the equal but opposite effect on equity
and profit or loss on the basis that all other variabies remain constant.

Fair values
Fair values versus carrying amounts
The fair values of financial assets and abilities reascnably approximale their carrying values in the balance sheet,
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23,

24.

25,

26.
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POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENT _
No significant events took place between the end of the financial year under review and the date of signature of thej
statements.

financial

2008 2007
Rm Rm

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Authorised capital commitments

Contingent liabilities
There are no known contingent liabilities requiring disclosure.

Forward exchange commitments

Refer to note 22.3.
REVENUE
Retail turnover 7 668,7
Interest received (refer note 26} 1056,4
Dividends received — retail 17,2
Merchants' commission — RCS Group 397
Club income — retail 175,6
Ctub incorme — RCS Group 55
Customer charges income — retail 16,5
Customer charges income ~ RCS Group 99,1
Insurance income - retait 80,0
Insurance income — RCS Group 66,0
Cellular income — one2cne airtime product 22,6
Sundry income - retail 6,3
9 253,6
INTEREST RECEIVED
Trade receivabies - retail 3855
Loan receivables 47
Private label card receivables 347.9
Sundry — RCS Group 1,1
Sundry - retail 7.2




notes to the financial statements continued
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27. OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE CHARGES

Operating profit before finance charges has been arrived at after taking account of:

Net trading expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Employee costs: normal
Employee costs: bonuses
Employee costs: resiraint payments
Employee costs: share-based payments
Store occupancy costs: normal

Store accupancy costs: operating lease liability adjustment

Net bad debt and provision movement - retail

Net bad debt and provisicn movement — RCS Group
Other operating costs

Other revenue

The foflowing disclosable amounts are included above:
Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fees

Fees for other services
{Profit) loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Retirement fund expenses
Stafi discount
Net foreign exchange loss

28, INTEREST PAID

Interest expense on financial Yiabilities measured at amortised cost

2008 2007
Rm

(204,7) (174,1)
(1 053,9) (920,9)
- (4!4)
(35,4} (20,0)
(30,7) (19.2)
{575,8) B12,7)
(7,7) 7,7
(217.2) (187.8)
(253,7) (132.4)
(489,8) (466,5)
51,3 3976
(2 357,6) (2 048,1)
2.8

0.1

01

797

11,4

1.4

104,7

Foschini Group Annual Report 2008 » 153




notes to the financial statements continued

for the years ended 31 March

Foschini Limited and its subsidiaries

29. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
South African current taxation
Current year
Prigr year (over) under provision
Secondary tax on cempanies
Capital gains tax

South African deferred taxation
Current year
Rate change
Prior year under (over) provision
Secondary tax on companies

Non-South African current taxation
Current year
Prior year under pravision

Non-South African deferred taxation
Current year

Reconciligtion of fax rate

Effective tax rate

Exempt income

Non-deductible expenditure

Non-South African tax rate

Prior year under provision

Rate change

Secondary tax on companies and withholding tax on dividends

South African statutory rate
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2008 2007

50,7
6,6
58,3
0.4

(34.4)

7.0
6.6

7.9
0.1
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30. EARNINGS PER SHARE

304

30.2

Basi¢ and headline earnings per share

The calculation of fasic and headline eamings per share at 31 March 2008
was based on profit for the year aftributable to ordinary shareholders of
Foschini Limited and headling earnings of R1 128,4 (2007: R1 119,2) million
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares as follows:

Profit attriputable to equity holders of Foschini Limited

Headline earnings

2008 2007
Rm

1128,4 1 119,2
11284 11192

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issug

Earnings per ordinary share {cents)

2006 282 464 209 493 784

5470 534,2

Headline earnings per ordinary share (cents)

547,0 534,2

Diluted earnings and headline earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings and headline eamings per share at
31 March 2008 was based on profit for the year attributable to ordinary
sharehoiders of Foschini Limited and headline earnings of Rt 128,4 (2007:
R1 119,2) million divided by the fully diluted weighted average number of
ordinary shares as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares as above
Number of shares that would have been issued for no consideration

206 282 464 209 493 784
3451493 7 895 952

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used for dilution

209733 957 217 389 736

Diluted earnings per share (cents)

538,0 514,8

Dituted headline earnings per share (cents)

538,0 514,8

31. OPERATING LEASE OBLIGATION
The group teases most of its trading premises under operating leases.

Leases on trading premises are contracted for periods of between five and ten
years, with renewal options for a further five years, wherever possible. The lease
agreements for certain stores provide for a minimum annual rental payment and
additional payments determined on the basis of turnover, Turnover rentals, where
applicable, average approximately 4,5% of turnover. Rental escalations vary, but
average at a rate of approximately 8% per annum.

At 31 March, future non-cancellatle minimum lease rentals are as follows:

iess than 1 year
More than 1 year and less than 5 years
More than 5 years

534,1
1253,9
255,2
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

321
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Share incentive schemes
Certain employees of the group participate in its share incentive schemes.

The scheme rules of the 1990 and 1997 schemes provide that delivery and payment for the shares take plage in three
equal tranches or the second, fourth and sixth anniversary of the date on which the cptions were exercise]
The scheme rules of the 2007 scheme provide that, upon fulfiiment of certain performance conditions,fihe share

appreciation rights (SARS) may be converted from the third anniversary of the grant date.

The fair value of options granted and exercised after 7 November 2002 was determined using a binom#li option-
pricing madel. The assumptions used in determining the fair value are as follows:

2008

Options granted and exercised during the financial year
ending 31 March

Exercise price R38,30 to R70,63 QEEXEERLE
Expected volatility 26,7% t0 31,1% 29,0% o

Expected dividend yield 3,4% to 7,2% 3,6% 148, 9%
Risk-free interest rate 8,1% to0 9,5% 7,3% tqB8.6%
The group recognised total expenses of R30,7 (2007: R13,2} million related to these equity-settled sifiie-based
payment transactions during the year.
Details of the share options outstanding at the end of the year are set out below,

Number of share options
Foschini Staff Share Incentive Scheme {1990}
Options granted, but not exercised at 1 Aprii h 009
Options exercised during the year ) 009)
Cptions grarted, but not exercised at 31 March -
Foschini 1997 Share Qption Schemne
Cptions exercised, subject to {uture delivery, at 1 April 16 840 174 17 O30 730
(ptions exarcised during the year, subject to future delivery 325 000 4 G4m 676
Options forfeited during the year {1519 351) (448 729)
Options delivered during the year {5 091 545) (4 648 503)
Options exercised, subject to future delivery, at 31 March 10 554 278 16 84 174
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32, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTINUED

321

Share incentive schemes continued

Foschini 2007 Share Incentive Scheme
SARs granted, subject to fulfilment of conditiens, at 1 April
SARs granted during the year, subject to fulfilment of conditions

SARs granted, subject to fulfilment of conditions, at 31 March

Options in terms of the 1997 scheme will be delivered during the
following financial years:

Year Average price
2009 37,66
2010 21,17
2011 47,40
2012 40,46
2013 60,01
2014 58,47

SARs in terms of the 2007 scheme may be converted fram the
2011 financial year.

These schemes are administerad by The Foschini Share Incentive
Trust which holds shares in Foschini Limited as foliows:

Shares held at the beginning of the year
Options exercised during the year
Shares delivered during the year

Shares purchased during the year

Shares held at the end of the year

Number of share options
2008 2007

4077 500 -

4077 500 -

4744 429
1696 703
2573048

210 002

1221 760
108 336

10 554 278

11 667 877 11043 675
- (19 009)

(5 091 545) {4 633 503}
5 307 620 5270714

11 883 952 11 667 877
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTINUED
32.2 Staff housing ioans
Refer note 6.

32.3 Retirement funds
Foschini Group Retirement Fund: Defined contribution plan
The Foschini Group Retirement Fund, which is governed by the provisions of the Pension Funds Act No, 28 of 1956,
is a defined contribution plan. it provides comprehensive retirement and associated benefits for memberg@@and their
dependants.

All permanent employees of wholly-owned subsidiaries of Foschint Limited, excluding those that are mengers of the
Mamflex or Swaziland Funds, are members of the retirement fund,

An actuarial valuation of the fund was performed as at 31 December 2006, in which the valuator reporigl that the
fund was in a sound financlal position.

The actuarial valuation as at 31 December 2009 is due to be performed during the 2611 financial year.

Investment Solutions Pension Fund: Defined contribution plan
All employees above an annually determined pensionable salary threshoid pay 7,5% of their above-thresholll earnings
as contributions into this fund, which is an umbretla retirement funding arrangement.

Investment Solutions Provident Fund: Defined contribution plan
All employees above an annually determined pensionable salary threshold are required to be members ogihis fund.
The employer contributes 1,5% of employes's earings to this fund.

Liberty Life Provident Fund: Defined contribution pian
Employeas of RCS Investment Holdings {Proprietary) Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary, are not memgers of The
Feschini Group Retirement Fund, but receive comparable benefits from the Liberty Life Provident Fund.

Namflex Pension Fund: Defined contribution plan

All permanent employees in Namibia under normal retirement age are required to be members of the Nami{gx Pension
Fund. This fund is a meney purchase arrangement whereby the members pay 7,5% of their pensionabli#salary as
contributions towards retirement benefits.

Swaziland Provident Fund: Defined contribution plan
All permanent employees in Swazifand under normal retirement age are required to be members of thefiswaziland
Provident Fund, whereby members pay 7,5% of their pensionable salary as contributions to this fund.

The emplovers and the members make equivalent contributions in respect of retirement benefits. In agiition, the
employers cover death and disability benefits, reinsurance, and administration and management costs.

Number of members Contributions
2008 2007 2008 2007
Summary per fund: Rm Rm

The Foschini Group Retirement Fund
Namflex Pension Fund

Swaziland Pension Fund

Liberty Life Provident Fund
investment Solutions Pension Fund
investment Solutions Provident Fund

10 235 10 000
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32, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS CONTINUED

324

325

32.6

Medicat aid

The Foschini Group Medical Aid Scheme: Defined benefit plan

The company and its wholly-owned subsidiasies operate a defined benefit medicat aid scheme for the benefit of their
permarent employees (excluding those employed in Namibia and Botswana). Membership of the scheme is voluntary,
except for senior employees.

Total membership currently stands at 2 277 principal members,

These costs are ¢harged against income as incurred and amounted to R20,1 (2007: R18,2) million, with employees
contributing a further R20,1 million to the fund.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2007, the scheme earned contributions of R39,5 million and reflected a
net surplus of R1,0 million after the deduction of all expenses. The fund had net assets totalling R40,4 million.

The projected surplus in respect of the year ending 31 December 2008 is R0,1 million.

Bankmed Medicat Aid Scheme: Defined benefit plan
Permanent employees in Namibia are voluntary members of the Bankmed Medical Aid Scheme.

These costs are charged against income as incurred and amounted te RQ,5 (2007: RO,5} million, with employees
contributing a further RO,5 million to the fund. There are currently 65 members of this fund.

Ingwe Health Plan: Defined henefit plan

An external medical aid scheme, Ingwe Health Plan, is also avaiiable to group employees and is subsidised by the
group in the same way as the schemes mentioned above. The plans offered cater for lower income earners, and
303 employees are currently members. Costs charged to income total 81,8 million.

Discovery Health: Defined henefit plan
All permanent staff of RCS Investment Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary are required to
become members of their choice of the medical plans offered by Discavery Health.

These costs are charged against income as incurred and amounted to R2,3 million. Total membership currently stands
at 269 principal members.

Post-retirement medical aid
Qualifying retired employees are entitled to medical aid benefits, which have been fully provided for (refer note 20).

The cost of providing post-retirement medical ai¢ has been determined in accordance with (AS 19 and the charge
against income for the year was Rnil (2007 R4,0) millior.

The principal assumptions at the last valuation date, being 31 March 2008, were as foliows:

Net discount rate 2%
Withdrawal rates 0% — 24%
Normal retirement age 60 — B5 years
Other

Group employees and pensioners are entitled {o a discount on purchases made at stores within the group.
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33. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Remuner- Pension Travel Other
Fees ation fund  afiowance benefits*
R'Q00 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Norr-executive

E Osrin 7575 - - - -

D M Nurek 296,9 - - - -

F Abrahams 210,0 - - - -

S E Abrahams 246,2 - - - -

L F Bergman 1525 - - - -

WV Cuba 152,5 - - - -

N H Goodwin 188,8 - - - -

M Lewis 1580,0 - - - -

D M Polak* - - - - -

otal 21544 - - - -

Executive

A D Murray# - 25075 241,06 2173 6 156,2 91220
R Stein - 1649,3 176,8 2173 4 076,5 61199
D M Polak ** - 25275 236,2 2126 83,8 3 060,1
Total - b 684,3 654,0 647,2 103165 RG]

Total remuneration 2008 2 1544 6 684,3 6540 6472 103165 dlELlE

Non-executive

E Osrin 7125 - - - -
D M Nurek 236,3 - - - -
- Abrahams 178,7 - - - -
S £ Abrahams 201,2 - - - -
L F Bergman 135,0 - - - -
WV Cuba 135,0 - - - -
N H Goodwin 158,8 - - - -
M Lewis 130,0 - - - -
Jotal 18875 - - - -
Executive

D M Polak™* - 31108 286,0 269,9 184,3
R Stein - 15196 1581 206,9 97.8
Total - 46304 4441 476,8 2821
Total remuneration 2007 18875 46304 4441 476,8 2821

* Other benefits include medical aid and group life cover, as well as restraint payments covering a four-year term of R6,G (2007
A [ Murray and R4,0 (2007: Rnil} mitlion to R Stein.
™ D M Polak retired on 31 December 2007, but continues 1o serve as a non-executive director from this date.
# A D Murray was appointed as an executive director on 2 April 2007 and as Group CEO on 1 January 2008,

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 2, the fair value of share options granted to employees is experged in the
income statement over the term of the optien. An amount of R3,7 (2007: R2,1) million, R1,% (2007: R¥,1) i@llion and
R2,7 (2007: R2,5) million was recognised in respect of options granted to Messrs A 0 Murray, R Stein and §fM Polak
respectively. These amounts are not included in the amounts reflected ahove.
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Shareholders
An analysis of the principal shareholders of the company is provided in the Shareholdings section of the annual report.

For details of directors' interests refer to note 14.5.

Subsidiaries
During the year, in the ordinary course of business, cartain companies withir the group entered into arm's length transactions.
These intra-group transacticns have been eliminated on consolidation.

Other related parties
The Foschini Group Retirement Fund
The Foschini Group Retirement Fund is administerad by Foschini Retail Group {Proprietary) Limited, a subsidiary of Foschini Limited.

2008 2007
fim Rm:
Administration fee earned from The Foschini Group Retirement Fund 1,3
An executive director of Foschini Limited {Mr R Stein} is also a trustee of the
Feschini Group Retirement Fund.
Directors
Remuneration
Details selating to executive and non-executive directors’ remuneration are
disclosed in note 33.
Interest of directors in contracts
Mo directors have any interests in contracts.
Executive directors are bound by service contracts,
Loans to directors
Mo loans have been made to directors,
Employees
Details relating to the share incentive schemes are disclosed in note 32.1.
Key management perscnnel
Key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling activities, directly or indirectly, including any
director of that entity, Executive directors and associates of ail subsidiary companies
and Foschini Limited have been classified as key management personnel.
No key management personnel had a material interest in ary contract of
significance with any group company during the year under review.
Remuneration paid to key management personnet is as follows:
Remuneration 49,5
Pension fund 53
Travel aliowance 7.4
Other benefits 1,8
Performance bonus 4,5
Fair value of share options granted* 16,9
Total remuneration 85,4

* The fair value of options granted is the aanual expense determined in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based payments.

Refer to note 33 for further disclosure regarding remuneration paid to executive directors of the company.
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continued

35. CASH FLOW

35.1

35.2

35.3

354

35.5

Operating profit before working capital changes
Profit efore tax
Adjusted for:

interest received

interast paid

Dividends received

Income from associate

Depreciation and amortisation

Share-based payments

Operating lease liability

(Profit) loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

1786,3

(1 056,4)
120,1
(17,2}

(0,9)
204,7
30,7
7.7
{0,8)

Operating profit before working capital changes

1074,2

Working capital changes

Decrease (increase} in inventory

lncrease in trade and other receivabies
{Cecrease) increase in trade and other payables

2,9
(141,3)
(429,9}

Increase in working capital

(568,3}

Reconcitiation of taxation paid

Amount urpaid at the beginning of the year
Current year provision

Amount unpaid at the enc of the year

(735,1)

Reconciliation of dividends paid
Dividends declared during the year
Dividends paid by subsidiary to outside shareholders

(592,6)
(84,8)

(677,4)

Proceeds on dilution of interest in subsidiary

As part of the agreement entered into with The Standard Bank of
South Africa Limited (SBSA) (refer note 17), RCS Investment Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited issued further shares, which were acquired by SBSA.
This resulted in a further dilution of 10%.

SBSA's holding in this subsidiary at 31 March 2008 was 45%.

The cash flow effects of the acquisition by SBSA of this further 10% are
reflected below.

Purchase consideration

Fair vafue of net assets
Profit on dilution

Procesds on dilution of interest in subsidiary

i ‘
(234,7) l
(565,3) t
64,9

i .

i

i

||
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36.

37.

RECLASSIFICATION
Certain comparative figures have been restated in order to improve disclosure. These adjustments have no effect on
comparative earnings.

The effect on the comparative balance sheet is as follows:

2007
Rm
Changes to current liabilities
Increase in trade and other payables 32,6
Increase in post-retirement — defined benefit plan 841
Decrease in employee benefits accruals (116,7)

The increase in trade and other payables is as a result of reclassifying the leave pay and AIDS accruals which were previously
included with post-retirement medical aid as employee benefit accruals.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIQNS TO BE ADOPTED IN FUTURE YEARS
There are Standards and Interpretations in issue that are not yet effective. These include the fallowing Standards and
Interpretations that are applicable to the group and may have an impact on future financial statemants:

IFRS 8 Segmental reporting
This statement, which will be applicabie to the group for the year ending 31 March 2010, requires significant additior.al
disctosures as it extends the scope of segmental reporting.

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements

This statement, which will be applicable to the group for the year ending 31 March 2010, requires changes to the titles of
financial statements and the presentation of all non-owner changes in equity as a separate statement of comgrehensive
income. It is not expected to have a material impact on the group.

IFRS 2 Share-based payment

An amendment to the current IFRS 2 has been published which will be applicable to the group for the year ending
31 March 2010. The amandment was mace to clarify the terms “vesting conditions” and “cancellations”. It is not expected to
have a material impact on the group.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations, tAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and IAS 31 interests in Joint Ventures

A revised IFRS 3 Businsss Combinations has been issued by the Internationat Accounting Standards Board (JASB) with
consequential amerdments to IAS 27, IAS 28 and 1AS 31, The amendments made relate mainly to the appiication of the
acquisition method and wili be applicable to the group for the year ending 31 March 2011,
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~Foschini Limited

as at 31 March

BALANCE SHEET
2008 2007
Note

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investment in preference shares 200,0 .
Interest in subsidiaries Appendix 1 1 968,5 B
Deferred taxation -

2 168,5 - r
Current assets
Interest in subsidiaries Appendix 1 527,7 ;
Other receivables 5,1
Cash and cash equivalents 0,3

533, - ;

Total assets 27016 - i
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 14.2 34
Share premium 498,7 ‘
Dividend reserve 16.1 408,8
Distributable reserve 1726,3 )

2637,2 - ;
Current liabilities
Other payables 55
Taxation payable 58,9

«s Il

Total equity and liabilities 27016 - :
Guarantee: The company has guaranteed the overdraft facilities of subsidiary companies.
The amounts utilised amounted to 1 376,0
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Foschini Limited continued
for the years ended 31 March

INCOME STATEMENT

Profit before taxation”
Taxation — current year

Profit atiributable to ordinary shareholders after taxation

* after taking account of:
Dividends received — subsidiary companies
— preference

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity at the beginning of the year
Profit for the year
Dividends paid

Equity at the end of the year

2008 2007
Rm

3438

(52,9)

2909

275.0

16,9

2 875,6 31619
4542 2909
(692,6) (577.,2}
2 637,2 2 8756

Q °

o
*
.
]
.
..
'y
®
.
L2
.
.
.
°

® o5 0085 0 0 0 08
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Foschini Limited continued
for the years ended 31 March

APPENDIX 1: SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

lssued 2008
share 2008 2007 Indebted-
capital Cost Cost ness
Name of subsidiary Note R Am

Trading Subsidiaries

Foschini Retail Group (Pty) Limited 2,37 2
Retail Credit Sclutions (Pty) Limited 2 18 200
What U Want To Wear (Pty) Limited 2 66 200
Markhams (Pty) Limited 2 1
Fashion Retailers (Pty) Limited 4 250 006
Foschini Finance (Pty) Limited 2 6
Foschini Stores (Pty) Limited 26 1
Foschini Swaziland (Pty) Limited 5 2
Foschini Investments {Pty) Limited 2 10 -

Total trading subsidiaries 102,8 102,8 2 393,2
Other* 1,1 17 0.9

Total 103,9 104.5 23923

Summary

Investment in shares at cost
Amounts awing by subsidiaries — non-current portion

Total non-current portion
Amounts owing by subsidiaries — current portion

Total interest in subsidiaries

Notes

1. The company owns, directly or indirectly, ail the ordinary shares in the subsidiaries listed above.
2. Incorporated in South Africa

3. Included is an amount of R102,5 (2007: R102,5) million representing the fair vatue of 102 500 R1 preference shies i
on 28 February 2002, The directors' valuation thereof at 31 March 2008 is R102,5 (2007: R102,5) mitlion.
Incorporated in Namibiag

Incerporated in Swaziland

The loan to subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and no fixed date for repayment has been determinad.
The loan to subsidiary is unsecured, bears interest at rates determinad from time to time and no fixed date for rep&ment has
been determinac.

Noe o

* A schedule of these details is available on request.
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APPENDIX 2: RELATED PARTY INFORMATIGON

2008 2007
Rm
Loans to and from related parties are disclosed in appendix 1.
Interest was received from the following related party:
Foschini Retail Group (Pty) Limited 56,0
Dividends were raceived from the following related parties:
Retail Credit Solutions (Pty) Limited 158,3
Foschini Retail Group (Pty) Limited 535
Foschini Investments (Pty) Limited 8,0
Foschini Finance (Pty) Limited 9,9
Markhams (Pty) Limited -
Sport Scene (Pty) Limited 0,5
Pages Stores (Pty) Limited 43
Foschini Stores (Pty) Limited 40,5
2750
Preference dividends were received from the following related party:
Foschini Retail Group (Pty) Limited 6,5
Dividends were paid to the following related parties:
Foschini Stores (Pty) Limited 40,5
The Foschini Share Incentive Trust 36,1
76,6
- CC 0O C 0
C C O C C
o 0 0 0.
0 0 0 ©
o000 ¢
00 00 ¢
f— _‘:’ - © 00,00
= e DI C IV VY
' o 00 o
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shareholdings

Foschini Limited

Analysis of shareholdings at 31 March 2008

Spread analysis Number of Number of tage of
shareholdings % of total shares held in issue
1 -1 000 shares 1930 51,0 796 691 0,3
1 001 — 10 000 shares 1218 322 4192 295 1,7
10 001 — 100 000 shares 354 10,5 13 072 150 55
100 001 —- 1 000 000 shares 196 52 60 696 439 252
1 000 001 shares and over 43 11 161 740 666 67,3
3781 100,0 240 498 241 100,0
Distribution of shareholdings
Number of Nurnber of tage of
Category shareholdings % of total shargs held in issue
Banks 84 2.2 55925933 23,2
Companies 223 59 39 002 491 16,6
Insurance companies 28 0,7 7385139 31
Mutual funds 170 45 47 671 031 198
Nominee companies and trusts 568 15,0 17 293 446 7.2
Pension and provident funds 230 6,1 60 258 382 251
Individuals 2478 65,6 11 970 819 5,0
3781 10,0 240 498 241 100,0
Beneficial shareholdings greater than 5%
Beneficial interests — direct and indirect as per share register and
information supplied by nominee companies as at 31 March 2008 Holding centage
Foschini Stores {Pty) Limited 24 049 824 10,0
Public Investment Corporation 14 25% 406 59
[nvestment Sctutions 13 685 663 57
Lewis family 15154 737 6,3
67 141 630 279
Fund managers’ holdings greater than 5%
According to disclosures made, the following fund managers
administered client pertfoiios which included more than 5%
of the company's issued shares Holding centage
lnvestec Asset Management (SA) 46 363 882 18,3
Prudential Portfolio Managers 18 949 390 79
Franklin Resources Inc 12 357 438 51
77 670710 32,3
Shareholding spread Number of
beneficial Number of Pergentage of
Category shareholdings 9% of total shares held in issue
Public 3744 99,0 182 824 675 76,0
Directors 34 0,9 21733790 91
Trustees 2 0.1 11883 952 49
Subsidiary 1 - 24 (049 824 10,0
Total 378 1000 240 498 241 100,0
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notice of annual general meeting

Foschini Limited

Notice is hereby given that the seventy-first Annual
General Meeting of shareholders of FOSCHINI LIMITED
will be held at Stanley Lewis Centre, Voortrekker Road,
Parow East, Cape Town on Wednesday, 3 September
2008 at 12h15 for the following purposes:

Ordinary resolution number 1

To receive and adopt the annual financial statements of the
comnpany and the group for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Ordinary resolution number 2

To reappoint KPMG Inc. as auditors of the company until the
following Annual General Meeting, and to authorise the
directors to determine their remuneration for the past year.

Ordinary resolution number 3

To approve the rernuneration to be pai¢ to non-executive
directors for the year ending 31 March 2009, details of which
are as foliows:

Chairman R780 000
Deputy chairman R175 000
Audit committee chairman R120 000
Risk commitee chairman R85 000
Director R160 GCO
Member of audit committee R40 000
Member of remuneration committee R32 500
Member of transformation committee R32 500

Ordinary resolution number 4

To re-elect Mr R Stein who is retiring by rotation as executive
director, in accordance with the provisions of the articles of
association of the company, Mr Stein, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election as an executive director.

R Stein (58)

Ronnie Stein has been an executive director of the company
since 1999. He is a member of both the risk and
transformation committees.

Ordinary resolution number 5

To re-elect Mr N H Goodwin who is retiring by rotation as an
independent non-executive director, in accordance with the
provisions of the articles of association of the company;
Mr Goadwin, being eligible, offers himself for re-election as an
independent ncn-executive directar,

N H Goodwin (68)

Neville Goodwin has been a director of the company since
1989, first as an executive director and for the past number of

years as an independent non-executive director. He is a
member of the audit committee.

Ordinary resolution number 6

To re-elect Mr M Lewis who is retiring by rotation as & non-
executive director, in accordance with the provisions of the
articles of association of the company; Mr Lewis, being eligitle,
offers himself for re-election as a non-executive director,

Mr M Lewis (49)

Michael Lewis has been a non-executive director of the
company since 1989,

Special resolution number 1

“"Resolved that, the company hereby approves, as & general
approval contemplated in sections 85(2) and 85(3) of the
Companies Act, 1973 (Act No. 61 of 1973), as amended (“the
Act", the acquisition by the company or any of its subsidiaries
from time to time of the issued ordinary shares of the
company, upen such terms and conditions and in such
amounts as the directors of the company may from time te
time determine, but subject to the articles of asscciation of the
comoany, the provisions of the Act and ihe Listings
Requirements of the JSE Limited (“JSE™) as presently
constituted and which may be amended from time to time, and
subject to the following:

1. the repurchase of securities being effected through the
order back operated by the JSE trading system and done
without any prior understanding or arrangement between
the compary and the counterparty (reported trades are
prohibited);

2. approval by shareholders in terms of & special resolution
of the company, in annual general/generat meeting, which
shall be valid only until the next arnual gengral meeting or
for 15 manths from the date of the resclution, whichever
period is shorter;

3. repurchases may not be made at a price greater than 10%
above the weighted average of the market value for the
securities for the five business days immediately
preceding the date or which the transaction is effected;

4. at any point in time, a company may only appoint one
agent to effect any repurchase/s on the company’s behalf;

5. issuers may only undertake a repurchase of securities, if,
after such repurchase, it still complies with paragraphs 3.37
to 3.41 concerning shareholder spread requirements;

6. an issuer or its substdiary may not repurchase securities
during a prehibited period as defined in paragraph 3.67;
and
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notice of annual general meeting continued

Foschini Limited

7. in terms of this general approval, the acquisition of
ordinary shares in any one financial year may not exceed,
in aggregate, 20% of the cempany’s issued share capital
of that class, at the time that approval is granted, and the
acquisition of shares by a subsidiary of the company may
not exceed 10% in aggregate, in any cne financial year, of
the number of issued shares of the company of that class.

Statement by the board of directors of the company

Pursuant to and in terms of the Listings Requirements of the
JSE, the board of directors of the company hereby states;

1. the intention of the directors of the company is o utilise
the general authority if at some future date the cash
resources of the company are in excess of its
requirements. Int this regard the directors will take account
of, inter akia, an appropriate capitalisation structure for the
company, the long-term cash needs of the company, and
will ensure that any such utilisation is in the interests of
shareholders; and

2. in determining the method by which the company intends
0 repurchase s securities, the maximum number of
securities to be repurchased and the date on which such
repurchase will take place, the directors of the company
wili ensure that:

2.1 the company and the group will be able o pay their
debts as they become due in the ordinary course of
business for the next 12 months;

2.2 the assets of the company and the group will be in
excess of the liabilities of the company anid the group
for the next 12 months. For this purpose, the assets
and fiabilities will be recognised and measured in
accordance with the accounting policies used in the
latest audited consolidated annual financial
statements;

2.3 the issued share capital and reserves of the
company and the group will be adequate for the
purposes of the business of the company and the
group for the next 12 months; and

2.4 the working capital available to the company and the
group will e sufficient for the group's requirements
for the next 12 months.

The board of directors of the company wilt nofify tha
shareholders of the terms of the repurchase of the company
shares by publishing an announcement in the press in
accordance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE should
the company or its subsidiaries curmuiatively repurchase maore
than 3% of the company's issued share capital,
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The hoard of directors will ensure that its sponsor Jvides the
necessary sponsor letter on the adequacy of (@ working
capital in terms of section 2.12 of the JSE Limi@ Listings
Requirements, prior to the commencement of any plkchases of
Foschini Limited shares on the opers markst after thejlé
Annual Generai Meeting of the company on 3 Septej

Reason and effect of special resolution numbg

The reason for special resolution number 1 is {4
company a general authority in terms of the g%
acquisition by the compary or any of its subsidiarig

issued by the company, which authority shall be viJ until the

earlier of the next annuat general meeting of the @@mpany or

the variation or revocation of such general authoritiey special

resolution by any subsequent general meeting of thificompany,

provided that the general authority shall not extenciiéeyond 15

months from the date of this general meeting. The glissing and

registration of this special resofution will have tigll effect of

authorising the company or any cf its subsidiarieJgc acquire

shares issued by the company.

Ordinary resolution number 7

“Resolved that, any director of the company be arjjis hereby

authorised to do all such things and sign all suchocuments

as may be necessary for or incidentat to the implerjiéniation of

ordinary resolutions 1 t0 6 and special resoluticiggumber 1

proposed at the meeting convened to consider this Fesolution

To transact any other business that may be trafsacted at

an annual general meeting.

Section 11.26(b) of the Listings Requirements rgiuires the

following disclosure, some of which is included infiee annual

report of which this notice forms part:

— directors and management (section 11.26(b}R) — rafer
pages 12 to 15;

— major shareholders (section 11.26(b)(i)} - refefpage 168;

— material change (secticn 11.26(h){ii)) - therciave been
no material changes in the affairs or financia@osition of
Faschini Limited and its subsidiarias since theflate of its
financial year-end and the dale of this notice;

— directors’ interests in Foschini Limited sharge (section
11.26(0)(v)) — refer note 14.5;

— share capital of Foschini Limited (section 11g@6({[h)v) —
refer note 14;

~ directors’ responsibility statement (section 1186(b)vi)) —
the directors, whose names appear on pagesyl? and 13
of the annual report of which this notice gms part,
collectively and individually accept full responsiility for the




notice of annual general meeting continued

Foschini Limited

accuracy of information pertaining to this notice and
certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief there
are no facts that have been omitted which would make
any statement false or misleading, and that all reasonable
enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that
this notice contains all such information; and

— litigation statement (section 11.26(b){ii) — there was no
material fitigation against the company or any of its
subsidiaries at the end of the financial year.

General instructions

Members are encouraged to atterd, speak and vote at the
annual general meeting.

If you held shares in ceriificated form (i.e. you have not
dematerialised your shares) or are registered as an “own
name” dematerialised shareholder, then:

— you may attend and vote at this meeting; alternatively

— you may appoint a proxy to represent you at the meeting
by completing the attached form of proxy and ledging it
with the transier secretaries of the company at leasi 24
hours before the time of the meeting.

If you have dematerialised your shares and are not registered
as an “own name dematerialised shareholder” {i.e. specifically
instructed your Central Securities Depository Participant
{"CSDP") to hold your shares in your own name on the
company’s sub-register), then, subject to the custody
agregment between yourself and your CSDP or broker:

— if you wish to attend the meeting you must contact your
GCSDP or broker, as the case may be, and obtain the
relevant letter of representation from i; alternatively

- if you are unable to attend the meeting but wish to be
represented at the meeting, you must contact your CSDP
or broker, as the ¢ase may be, and furnigh it with your
voting instructions in respect of the meeting. You must 1ot
complete the attached form of proxy. The instructions
must be provided in accordance with the custody
agreement between yourself and your CSDP or broker, as
the case may be, within the time period required by your
CSDP or broker, as the case may be.

CSDPs, brokers or their nominees, as the case may be,
recorded in the company’s sub-register should, when
authorised in terms of their mandate or instructed to do so by
the owner on behalf of whom they hold dematerialised shares
in the company, vole by either appointing a duly authorised
rfepresentative 10 attend and vote at the meeling or by
completing the attached form of proxy in accordance with the
instructions thereon and lodging it with the transfer secretaries
of the company at least 24 hours before the time of the
meeting.

By order of the board

D SHEARD
Secretary

11 June 2008
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FOSCHINI

Form OF proxu FOSCHINI LIM]TED'

Foschini Limited
JSE cade: FOS ISIN: ZAEQ00031018
Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa {Reg. No. 1937/009504/06)

To be retumed to The Transfer Secretaries, Computershare Investor Services Pty) Limited, 70 Marshall Street, Joharnesburg, 2001
(PC Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107) as soon as possibte and not later than 24 hours before the meeting, excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays.

FORM OF PROXY (N.B. FOR USE ONLY BY CERTIFICATED AND “OWN NAME"” DEMATERIALISED SHAREHOLDERS)
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING WEDNESDAY, 3 SEPTEMBER 2008 AT 12h15

[/We (full names)

of {address)

being a member(s) of Foschini Limited and entitled to votes (ONE PER SHARE HELD)

herehy appoint or failing him/her

or failing him/her the chairman of the mesting as my/our proxy to act for me/us at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be
held at 12h15 on Wednesday, 3 September 2008 at Stanley Lewis Centre, 340 Voortrekker Road, Parow East and at any adjournment

thereof as follows:

Insert X in appropriate block

For Against Abstain

Ordinary resclution No. 1 — approval of annual financial staternents

Ordinary resolution No. 2 — reappointment of the auditors

Crdinary resolution No. 3 — approval of directors' fees for the year ending
31 March 2009

Ordinary resolution No. 4 — election of Mr R Stein as a director

Crdinary resolution No. 5 — election of Mr N H Goodwin as a director

Ordinary resolution No. 8 — election of Mr M Lewis as a director

Special resolution No. 1 — general authority to repurchase company shares

Qrdinary resolution No. 7 — general authority of directors

Signed this day of 2008

Signature Assisted by (where applicablg}

Please read the notes on the reverse side of this proxy form.
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form of proxy continued

Notes

1.

The person whose name stands first on the proxy form and who is present at the annual general maeting will be enfitled to act
as a proxy o the exclusion of those whase names follow thereafter. f no proxy is inserted in the spaces provided, : chairman
shall be deemad 1o be appointed as the proxy. 5

Unless otherwise instructed above, a proxy is entitled to vote as he thinks fit,

A proxy appointed by a member to attend, speak and vote in his stead need not also be @ member of the company. *

In order to be effective this proxy form, and the power of attorney or other authority {f any} under which 1t is signe§l, must be
RECEIVED by the transfer secretaries of the company, Computershare Investor Services (Pty} Limited not less than twengy-four (24)
hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting or any adjcurnment thereof, as the case may be, at which the proxy
proposes to vote, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

Any alteration or correction made to this proxy form must be initialled by the signatory/ies, but may not be acce[&ed by the
chairman.

dematerialised shareholder, then you may attend and vote at this meeting; alternatively you may appoint a proxy to regresent you
at the meeting by completing the attached form of proxy and lodging it with the transfer secretaries of the comgany 1o be
RECEIVED at lsast 24 hours before the time of the mesting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.

If you hold shares in certificated form (i.e. you have not dematerialised your shares) or are registered as an "}m name”

If you have dematerialised your shares and are not registered as an “own name dematerialised shareholder” (i.e. ppecifically
instructed your Central Securities Depositery Participant {*CSDP") to hold your shares in your own name on the comg@any's sub-
registen), then, subject to the custody agreement between yourself and your CSDP or broker:

* il you wish to attend the mesting you must contact your CSDP cr broker, as the case may be, and cbtain the refgvant letter
of representation from it; aternatively

» if you are unable to attend the mesting but wish to be represented at the meeting, you must contact your CSDR or broker,
as the case may be, and furnish it with your voting instructions in respect of the meeting. You must NOT camplete the
attached form of proxy. The instructions must be provided in accordance with the custody agreement between ypurself and
yaur CSEP or broker, as the case may be, within the time period required by your CSDP or broker, as the case njay be.

CSDPs, brokers or their nominees, as the case may be, recorded in the company's sub-register should, when authorisgd in terms
of their mandate or instructed to do so by the owner on behalf of whom they hold dematerialised shares in the company, vote by
either appointing a duly authorised representative to attend and vote at the meeting or by completing the attached fogm of proxy
in accordance with the instructions thereon and lodging it with the transfer secretaries of the company at least 24 haurs before
the time of the mesting, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays.
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administration

FOSCHINI LIMITED

Reg. No. 1937/009504/06
JSE codes: FOS - FOSP
ISIN: ZAECO0031019 - ZAEG00031027

ATTORNEYS
Edward Nathan Sonnenbergs Inc.

AUDITORS
KPMG Inc.

HEAD OFFICE

Stanley Lewis Centre, 340 Voortrekker Road
Parow East 7500, South Africa
Telephone +27 (0) 21 938-1911

PRINCIPAL BANKER
First Rand Bank Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Stanley Lewis Centre, 340 Voortrekker Road
Parow East 7500, South Africa

SECRETARY

D Sheard BComm, CA(SA)

Stanley Lewis Genire, 340 Voortrekker Road
Parow East 7500, South Alrica

PO Box 6020, Parow East 7501, South Africa

SPONSOR

UBS South Africa {Pty) Limited
64 Wierda Road East, Wierda Valiey,
Sandton 2196, South Africa

TRANSFER SECRETARIES

Camputershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited

oth Floor, 70 Marshail Street, Johannesburg 2001, South Africa
PO Box 61051, Marshalitown 2107, South Africa

Telephone +27 (0) 11 370 5000 o

UNITED STATES ADR DEPOSITARY
The Bank of New York, 620 Ave. of the Americas, New York, NY 10011

WEBSITE
hitp://www.foschinigroup.com/

Financial calendar

Financial year-end
Annual report
Annual general meeting (71st)
Interim profit announcement
Dividend payments -

. Ordinary - final

. = inlerim
Preference - interim

— final

31 March 2008

31 July 2008

3 September 2008
30 October 2008

July 2008
Janvary 2009
September 2008
March 2009
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